IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE

)
In re: )
y CHAPTER 11
SEMCRUDE, L.P., et al, )
)
Debtors, ) Case No. 08-11525 (BLS)
)
) (Jointly Administered)
)
)
)
SEMGROUP, L.P., et al, )
)
Plaintiffs, )
)}  Adversary No.
V. );
)
JOHN A. CATSIMATIDIS, et al., )
)
Defendants. )
)
)

DEBTORS’ VERIFIED COMPLAINT FOR BREACH OF CONTRACT,
DECLARATORY JUDGMENT, BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY,
INJUNCTIVE RELIEF, AND VIOLATION OF THE AUTOMATIC STAY

SemGroup, L.P. (“SemGroup”), and certain direct and indirect subsidiaries of
SemGroup, as debtors and debtors-in-possession (collectively, “SemGroup™ or the “Debtors’ ),!

in these chapter 11 cases and Plaintiffs in this adversary proceeding (collectively, “Plaintiffs™),

' The jointly administered Debtors in these chapter 11 cases, along with the last fow (4) digits of each Debtor’s

federal tax identification number, are: SemCrude, L.P. (7524), Chemical Petroleum Exchange, Incorporated
(8866), Faglwing, L.P. (7243), Grayson Pipeline, L.L C. (0013}, Greyhawk Gas Storage Company, L.L.C
(4412), K.C. Asphalt L.L.C. {6235), SemCanada II, L.P. (3006), SemCanada L.P. (1091}, SemCrude Pipeline,
LLC. (9811}, SemFuel Transport LLC (6777), SemFuel, L P. (1015), SemGas Gathering LLC {4203), SemGas
Storage, L L.C (0621), SemGas, L.P. (1095}, SemGroup Asia, L.L C. (5852), SemGroup Finance Corp (3152),
SemGroup, LP. (2297), SemKan, L.L.C. (8083), SemManagement, L L.C. (0772), SemMaterials Vietnam,
LL.C (5931), SemMaterials, L P (5443), SemOperating GP, LL.C. (5442), SemStream, L.P. (0859),
SemTiucking, L.P. (5355), Steuben Development Company, L L.C. (9042), and SemCap, L L.C. (5317)
SemGroup Holdings, L P (6746} is also a Debtor, but is not currently jointly administered.
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allege for their Complaint against Defendants John A. Catsimatidis (“Catsimatidis”), Matthew F.
Coughlin, 1l (*Coughlin™), Martin R, Bring (“Bring”), J. Nelson Happy (“Happy™), Myron L.
Turfitt (“Turfitt”) (collectively, the “Catsimatidis Group™) and United Refining Energy Corp.
(“UREC™) (collectively, “Defendants™) as follows:

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Catsimatidis, the owner of Gristedes’s Supermarkets and United Refining
Company {(“United Refining™), wants to acquire the Debtors. He is attempting to do so not
through the Debtors’ well established bidding process, which is open, transparent, and orderly,
but by trying to seize control of the management committee of SemGroup’s general partner (the
“Management Committee™) to force through his own self-interested proposal.

In furtherance of his scheme, Catsimatidis has blatantly and openly violated
material terms of a Confidentiality Agreement he entered into with the Debtors in order to gain
access to the Debtors’ confidential business information. Through a variety of tactics including
direct appeals to the Debtors’ employees, secret meetings with select members of the Debtors’
management, misleading press releases, and an unauthorized website — all in direct violation of
the Confidentiality Agreement ~ he has attempted to hijack and control management’s
reorganization efforts by publicly proclaiming that he himself would reorganize the Debtors. His
attempts to drive off current and prospective bidders have thwarted the Deblors® efforts to
maximize the value of the estate through a competitive bidding and sale process. Catsimatidis
has inserted himself (and four of his business associates) into the role of fiduciaries for the
Debtors, despite the fact that, as active bidders, they are plagued by fatal conflicts of interest that
prevent them from having the remotest possibility of fulfilling those duties. In his drive to

acquire seats on the Management Committee, he has ignored what is in the best interest of the
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Debtors by purporting to release past conduct of certain members of the Debtors’ pre-bankruptcy
leadership. In short, Catsimatidis is an acquisition-minded outsider who is masquerading as a
fiduciary to the detriment of the Debtors and the integrity of the chapter 11 process.

Although the Debtors are pleased that Catsimatidis has expressed such a strong
interest in acquiring the Debtors, Catsimatidis has rebuffed every attempt on the part of the
Debtors to persuade him to comply with the established bidding process, comply with the terms
of the Confidentiality Agreement between himself and the Debtors, and for him and his business
associates to recuse themselves from their assumed roles as fiduciaries for the Debtors as a result
of their conflicts of interest.

The Debtors are committed to maximizing the value of their estates for the benefit
of all creditors, whether through reorganization, sale of business units, or a combination of
approaches. In order to preserve the integrity of the Debtors’ reorganization and sale process,
and to preserve and protect the value of the estates, the Debtors are compelled to seek relief from
the Bankruptcy Court. In short, the Debtors respectfully request that the Court order Defendants
to cease and desist from further violations of the Confidentiality Agreement; withdraw from their
positions on the Management Committee; refrain from continuing to obstruct the bankruptey
process; and otherwise comply with the established bidding process.

JURISDICTION & VENUE

1. This Court has jurisdiction to consider this matter pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 157
and 1334 because this is a civil proceeding arising in or relating to Plaintiffs’ case under chapter
11 of title 11 of the United States Code (the “Bankruptcy Code™). This is a core proceeding
pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 157(b).

2. Venue is proper in this Court under 28 U.S.C. § 1409.

L)
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3. This proceeding is initiated pursuant to Rule 7001(7) & (9) of the Federal Rules
of Bankruptcy Procedure.

PARTIES

4, Plaintiffs are each debtors and debtors-in-possession in the above-captioned
bankruptcy cases by virtue of having filed voluntary petitions for relief under chapter 11 of the
Bankruptcy Code on July 22, 2008 and October 22, 2008 (the “Petition Dates™). Plaintiffs may
be served through their undersigned counsel of record.

5. John A. Catsimatidis is, upon information and belief, a resident of the State of
New York and may be served with process through UREC’s registered agent, National
Registered Agents, Inc., 160 Greentree Dr, Suite 101, Dover, DE 19904.

6. Matthew F. Coughlin, 111 is, upon information and belief, a resident of the State of
Oklahoma and may be served with process at International Insurance Brokers, Ltd., 600 Mid-
Continent Tower, 401 South Boston Ave., Tulsa, OK 74103.

7. Martin R. Bring is, upon information and belief, a resident of the State of New
York and may be served with process at Ellenoff Grossman & Schole LLP, 150 East 42nd Street,
New York, NY 10017.

8. J. Nelson Happy is, upon information and belief, a resident of the State of New
York and may be served with process at 823 Eleventh Ave., New York, NY 10019.

9. Myron L. Turfitt is, upon information and belief, a resident of the State of New
York and may be served with process through UREC’s registered agent, National Registered

Agents, Inc., 160 Greentree Dr., Suite 101, Dover, DE 19904.
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10.  United Refining Energy Corp. is, upon information and belief, a Delaware
Corporation. UREC may be served with process through its registered agent, National
Registered Agents, Inc., 160 Greentree Dr., Suite 101, Dover, DE 19904,

BACKGROUND

A. Management Committee of SemGroup, GP, L1.C

11. The Management Committee of SemGroup, G.P., L.L.C. (“SGGP™), the general
partner of SemGroup, is similar to a board of directors. Its members are collectively authorized
to make a variety of specific management decisions relating to SemGroup and, indirectly,
relating to its subsidiaries. For example, among other responsibilities, the Management
Committee has the authority to retain or discharge SGGP’s and SemGroup’s officers; set
SemGroup’s operating budget; and approve certain asset sales.

12, There are nine “seats” on the Management Committee. Prior to the Petition Date,
the right to those nine seats was divided equally among three groups: (i) three seats were
controlled by Thomas L. Kivisto (“Kivisto™), the former Chief Executive Officer of SemGroup;
(i1) three seats were controlled by A.R. Thane Ritchie (“Ritchie™), a hedge fund investor; and (iil)
three seats were controlled by The Carlyle Group and Riverstone Holdings LLC
(“Carlyle/Riverstone”).>  Under the applicable Operating Agreement, the Management
Committee cannot take any action with respect to certain enumerated matters without at least one

vote by Carlyle/Riverstone.

2

Carlyle/Riverstone has the right to appoint three members, but as of the date hereof, has appointed only two
members Each of their two appointed members exercises 1 5 votes on the Management Committee
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B. Catsimatidis

13.  Catsimatidis is the owner of the Red Apple Group, which operates a chain of
grocery stores in New York and also owns United Refining, a company he acquired from a
bankiuptey proceeding.

C. Catsimatidis Approaches the Debtors About An Acquisition Outside the Bidding
Process

14, On or around September 26, 2008, Coughlin, an associate and business pariner of
Catsimatidis, contacted Terrence Ronan (“Ronan™), the Chief Executive Officer of SemGroup.
Coughlin indicated that Catsimatidis was interested in speaking with Ronan about the possibility
of acquiring the Debtors.

15.  Catsimatidis spoke to Ronan by telephone. During their conversation,
Catsimatidis represented that he was indeed interested in acquiring the Debtors. However,
Catsimatidis indicated that he wished to do so without involving The Blackstone Group
(“Blackstone™). Blackstone is tasked with providing financial advisory services to the Debtors,
and is, among other things, responsible for vetting potential bidders and conducting an orderly
and transparent process for marketing the Debtors® business units, as well as advising the
Debtors in connection with structure and capital requirements for a chapter 11 plan of
reorganization. Before ever meeting with Blackstone, Catsimatidis expressed to Ronan his
concern that the involvement of Blackstone was unlikely to result in a “deal” for Catsimatidis.

16.  Consistent with his responsibilities to maximize value of the Debtors’ estates for
the benefit of creditors, Ronan informed Catsimatidis that it would be improper to give him
special treatment not accorded to other potential bidders. Ronan advised Catsimatidis that
Blackstone was responsible for running the marketing process, and that a transparent and

competitive bidding process would be necessary to obtain the highest value for the Debtors.
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D. Catsimatidis Executes Confidentiality Agreement, Purportedly For Possible
Acquisition of the Debtors’ Assets

17. Catsimatidis began laying the groundwork for an acquisition of, or investment in,
the Debtors or some of their business units. In late October 2008, Catsimatidis requested access
to the Debtors’ confidential, non-public records in order to evaluate the Debtors’ assets. In order
to explore a possible transaction with Catsimatidis, the Debtors were willing to grant
Catsimatidis access to its confidential records, but, as with all other interested bidders, the
Debtors required Catsimatidis to execute a confidentiality agreement in order to protect the
Debtors’ confidential information and ensure the integrity of the process swrrounding any
transaction.

18.  On November 5, 2008, after negotiating the terms of the agreement, Catsimatidis
executed a Confidentiality Agreement (the “Confidentiality Agreement”).  Exhibit A,
Confidentiality Agreement (Nov. 5, 2008). Catsimatidis signed the Confidentiality Agreement
as the “Chairman, CEO” of UREC, a special purpose acquisition company (a “SPAC”) that
Catsimatidis created [or the express purpose of acquiring a petroleum services company.

19.  The Confidentiality Agreement imposes strict and unambiguous requirements on
Catsimatidis and his associates with regard to the Debtors. For example, for a period of two
years, Catsimatidis and UREC, acting alone or as part of a group, are prohibited from, inter alia,
acquiring, or offering to acquire, any voting securities in the Debtors; making any public
statements relating to a possible reorganization of the Debtors; or otherwise seeking to influence,
or take control of, the Debtors’ management:

In consideration of and as a condition to the Confidential
Information being furnished to you, you hereby further agree that,
without the prior written consent of the Company [defined as
SemGroup, LP and affiliated companies], for a period of two years

from the date hereof, neither you nor any of your Affiliates, acting
alone or as part of a group, will:
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(1) acquire or offer or agree to acquire, directly or indirectly,
by purchase or otherwise, any voting securities (or direct or
indirect rights or options to acquire any voting securities)
of the Company, or any material portion of the assets or
properties of the Company,

ES EJ £
(i)  make any public announcement with respect to, or solicit or
submit a proposal or offer for, directly or indirectly, any
merger, business combination, recapitalization,
reorganization, asset purchase or other similar

extraordinary transaction involving the Company or any of
its securities, assets or properties,

3§ &* H
v) otherwise seek to influence or control, in any manner

whatsoever, alone or in concert with others, the
management, general partner or policies of the Company,

# #* *
Exhibit A, Confidentiality Agreement § 12.
20.  In other words, by executing the Confidentiality Agreement, Catsimatidis agreed,
for a two year period, to conform to the bidding process established by the Debtors and to refrain
from taking actions that could circumvent or undermine that process.

E. Less Than a Month Later, Catsimatidis Blatantly Violates the Confidentiality
Agreement By Seizing Control of the Management Committee

21.  Even after executing the Confidentiality Agreement, Catsimatidis persisted in his
requests to circumvent Blackstone and the established bidding process. In mid-November 2008,
Catsimatidis requested an immediate meeting with Ronan and all of the Debtors’ business unit
leaders in order to explore in more detail the possibility of purchasing the Debtors.

22, Although the Debtors were pleased that Catsimatidis was so obviously eager to
explore a possible acquisition, the Debtors continued to request that Catsimatidis work through

Blackstone and the established bidding process. The Debtors continued to believe that the
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maximum value to the Debtors would be gained through a transparent and orderly bidding
process in which all interested bidders would be given an equal opportunity to participate on a
level playing field.

23, Thwarted in his initial efforts to circumvent the bidding process, Catsimatidis
appears to have shifted tactics in late November 2008. Instead of attempting an arms-length
transaction with the Debtors’ management, as contemplated by the Confidentiality Agreement,
Catsimatidis began a campaign to force through a self-interested deal and drive off potential
competition by seizing control of the Management Committee.

24, On November 25, 2008, Catsimatidis created an Oklahoma limited lability
company, Tulsa Energy Acquisitions, LLC (“TEA™), which was to serve as his investment
vehicle for SemGroup.

25. Approximately one week later, TEA executed simultancous agreements with
Kivisto and Ritchie. See Exhibit B, Term Sheet executed by Kivisto and Coughlin (Dec. 3,
2008); Exhibit C, Assignment of Interest executed by Kivisto, Coughlin and Happy (Dec. 5.
2008); Exhibit D), Term Sheet executed by Ritchie and Coughlin (Dec. 7. 2008). Kivisto, who
had been terminated by SemGroup and is under investigation by the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the United States Attorney’s Office, agreed to appoint Catsimatidis’s designees
to all three of his seats on the Management Committee through the end of 2009. Ritchie,
likewise, formally agreed to appoint Catsimatidis to one of his seats through October 2009 and
also, upon information and belief, appointed Happy to one of his seats without a formal
agreement. Both Kivisto and Ritchie agreed to transfer their equity interests in SGGP and
SemGroup to TEA. Upon information and belief, Kivisto has transferred units he controls to

TEA, but Ritchie has not yet transferred units to Catsimatidis. What is clear is that Catsimatidis
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contemplates that his acquisition vehicle, TEA, will own a majority of the post-reorganization
equity of SemGroup.

26.  As a further indication of Defendants’ intentions to serve their personal interests
at the expense of the Debtors, the term sheets entered into between TEA, on the one hand, and
Kivisto and Ritchie, on the other, appear to attempt to alter important legal rights of SGGP and
the Debtors. For example, the term sheets refer to a “release or deemed release.” See Exhibit B
at 3; Exhibit D at 3. Further, the Ritchie term sheet provides that if SGGP’s Operating
Agreement is amended to reduce the “rights of indemnification and exculpation afforded Ritchie,
such amendments or alterations shall be ineffective and Ritchie shall continue to be indemnified
and exculpated by [the Debtors and SGGP] as if the provisions of the Operative Documents
effecting exculpation and indemnification continued in full force and effect.” Exhibit D at 3.
Although Catsimatidis’s company has no right to do so, it is purporting to provide releases,
indemmifications, and exculpations to Kivisto and Ritchie on behalf of the Debtors and SGGP.
The Debtors specifically reserve their rights to pursue any claim purportedly released by the
Defendants.

27. Despite Catsimatidis’s express agreement not to “seek to influence or control, in
any manner whatsoever, alone or in concert with others, the management, general partner or
policies of the [SemGroup],” Catsimatidis now claims to control five of the nine votes® on the
Management Committee as a result of his transactions with Ritchie and Kivisto. The self-
proclaimed Catsimatidis members of the Management Committee (the “Catsimatidis Group™)

are: Catsimatidis, Happy (an attorney for UREC), Turfitt (President and a Director of UREC),

*  Carlyle/Riverstone designees have a total of three votes regardless of the actual number of designees then

serving
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Bring (an attorney for Catsimatidis), and Coughlin (Executive Vice President of TEA and a
Directar of UREC).

28.  Further, despite Catsimatidis’s contractual obligation not to “acquire or offer or
agree to acquire, directly or indirectly, by purchase or otherwise, any voting securities . . . of the
Company,” as a result of the transaction with Kivisto and Ritchie, Catsimatidis acquired
Kivisto's, and offered to acquire Ritchie’s, equity interests in SGGP and SemGroup.

F. In Further Violation of the Confidentiality Agreement, Catsimatidis Begins
Announcing Publicly That He Will “Reorganize” the Debtors

29.  Despite Catsimatidis’s clear obligation under the Confidentiality Agreement not
to make any “public announcement with respect to . .. any . . . reorganization,” on December 15,
2008, Catsimatidis issued a press release announcing that as a result of Catsimatidis’s “control”
of the Management Committee, “he intends to develop a reorganization plan for SemGroup L.P.”
Exhibit E, Catsimatidis Press Release (Dec. 15, 2008). According to the release, “Mr.
Catsimatidis said that he plans to work with creditors to develop a reorganization plan that
enables Sem{roup to repay its debts while preserving a majority of the 2,000 jobs currently at
risk.” Id.

30. Two days later, on December 17, 2008, Catsimatidis issued another press release,
announcing his plans to meet with the Debtors’ senior management. Exhibit F, Catsimatidis
Press Release (Dec. 17, 2008). He also announced that he had reached out to the Administrative
Agent for the Senior Secured Creditors regarding his efforts to craft a reorganization plan; and
that “[w]e intend to have a preliminary plan ready for consideration in January 2009.” Id

31, Over the next two weeks, and in direct violation of the Confidentiality
Apgreement, Catsimatidis continued to make numerous public statements relating to his purported

reorganization of the Debtors. On December 22, 2008, Catsimatidis traveled to Tulsa, Oklahoma
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to address the employees of the Debtors directly. Catsimatidis convened a town hall style
meeting and explained to the Debtors’ employees that he wanted save their jobs and “not have
[sic].. . Larry the Liquidator come in and liquidate the company, because those people don’t care
about the company, they don’t care about you, Larry the Liquidator only cares about how fast
can I sell it [sic], how much of a commission can 1 make selling it. Well, that’s not me.”
Catsimatidis boasted to the Debtors’ employees that he would keep their jobs in place. “We
need everyone at SemGroup. As a matter of fact, we may need to hire some people back.”

32. On the same day that Catsimatidis held the employee town hall meeting, he
arranged a “‘secret dinner” meeting for certain of Debtors’ business unit leaders, without
informing or including Debtors’ authorized officers. The invitation for the meeting was sent by
Coughlin the previous Friday. Exhibit G, Email from M. Coughlin to R. Majors (Dec. 19, 2008).
In the email, Coughlin identified himself as “one of the new members of SemGroup G.P.’s
Management Committee™ and asked certain business unit leaders to “join me Monday evening . .
. for a private dinner . . .. Please do not share this information with anyone . . ..” The dinner,
hosted by Catsimatidis, Happy, and Coughlin, was plainly an attempt to subvert and undermine
the authority of Debtors’ authorized officers, and is evidence of a further violation of the
Confidentiality Agreement.

33, Catsimatidis even created a website prominently featuring the SemGroup
proprictary logo and a “Reorganization Hotline.” The website’s home page, which has the
appearance of an official SemGroup web page, is entitled “Reorganization Updates from John
Catsimatidis.” Exhibit H, Copy of home page for semreorg.com (as of Feb. 5, 2008). The
website includes copies of press releases, news articles, a “Q&A” section in which Catsimatidis

purports to outline his plans for the Debtors and his reorganization efforts, and a “contact us”
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section that allows employees to contact Catsimatidis by email. The “Reorganization Hotline”
was established, according to Catsimatidis’s press release, to allow “SemGroup employees and
concerned citizens” to “leave a message” for Catsimatidis. Exhibit I, Catsimatidis Press Release
(Feb. 10, 2008) (announcing creation of hotline).

G. Catsimatidis’s Public Posturing Drives Off Bidders, Chills Bidding and Undermines
an Orderly Bankruptey Process

34 At the December 22, 2008 meeting at which Catsimatidis addressed the Debtors’
employees, one employee asked how Catsimatidis’s plans would impact asset sales. In response,
Catsimatidis declared that, “Right now, I think most of the asset sales are on hold . . . Nothing
currently going. And what I'm saying to the banks is that I want a whole company to reorganize,
not a half company to reorganize.”

35, This statement, and others like it, have driven away bidders interested in
individual assets of the Debtors. For example, a party that was preparing a bid for SemMaterials
terminated discussions after Catsimatidis made this announcement. From a bidder’s perspective,
there is no point in investing the time and energy in bidding on an asset that Catsimatidis
indicated an unwillingness to part with. Similarly, members of Blackstone, and others, have
reported to the Debtors that other potential bidders for the Debtors’ assets have expressed
reluctance to continue discussions as a result of Catsimatidis’s involvement,

36.  Furthermore, upon information and belief, Catsimatidis has also acted behind the
scenes in an effort to thwart asset sales. In late December, an asset sales process was taking
place with regards to certain SemGroup Europe Holding, L.L.C. (“SGEH™) entities and/or assets.
On December 23, 2008, the day after the “secret dinner” held by Catsimatidis, one of the
attendees of the dinner, the President and Chief Operating Officer of SGEH, Randy Majors

(“Majors™), ordered an abrupt halt to the SGEH asset sales process without consulting with the
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Debtors’ CIEO or Chief Reorganization Officer. Majors had, upon information and belief, been
informed that the involvement of the Red Apple Group (i e , Catsimatidis) would likely delay the
sales process or render it unnecessary. When the Debtors’ CEO learned of Majors’ unauthorized
order to halt the bidding process, he immediately elieved Majors of his responsibilities with
SGEH and ordered that the sales process continue.

37. It is not a coincidence that asset sales are “on hold™ That was precisely
Catsimatidis’s objective — to seize control of the Management Committee, drive away other
potential bidders, stifle a fair and competitive bankruptcy process, and ram through his own
acquisition.

H. When Confronted, Catsimatidis Falsely Claims To Have No Interest In Acquiring
the Debtors

38.  The fundamental problem with Catsimatidis’s attempts to control the
reorganization, and the resulting chilling of the bidding process, is that Catsimatidis is attempting
to control both sides of the negotiating table.

39.  As it became apparent to the Debtors that Catsimatidis’s actions were driving
away other potential bidders and, consequently, severely narrowing and limiting the Debtors’
options for reorganization, the Debtors’ counsel confronted Catsimatidis with the fundamental
conflict between his role on the Management Commiittee and as an active bidder for the Debtors.
In a letter dated January 29, 2009, the Debtors’ counsel explained that “we remain perplexed as
to how the Catsimatidis Group believes that it can be (i) in charge of, and have access to,
information regarding the debtor bankruptcy plan and asset marketing process and (ii) at the
same time, be an active bidder.” Exhibit I, Letter from M. Saslaw to T. Kennedy (Jan. 29, 2009).
The Debtors demanded, therefore, that the Catsimatidis Group “cease its hindrance of a fair

process, free of all conflicts .. ..” Id at 2.
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40.  The following day, the Catsimatidis Group brushed aside the Debtors’ assertion of
an improper conflict by making the astonishing assertion that:

Mr Catsimaitidis is not, and never has been, an “active bidder.’
As a member of the Management Committee his only current
interest is in assisting the Debtor in adopting a plan of
reorganization that will cause the Debtor to maximize the value of
the Debtor’s estate and thereby return the largest possible recovery
for its creditors.
Exhibit K, Letter from Catsimatidis Group to M. Sosland (Jan. 30, 2009). The letter was signed
by each member of the Catsimatidis Group.

41. This assertion borders on the absurd. From the outset of his contact with the
Debtors, Catsimatidis identified himself to Ronan, among others, as a bidder interested in
acquiring the Debtors. Other members of the Catsimatidis Group made similar assertions. More
than once, Happy asserted to representatives of the Debtors that all he wanted to do was “make a
deal.”

42, In fact, the Confidentiality Agreement executed by Catsimatidis affirmatively
states that the agreement is entered into “[i]n connection with your evaluation of a possible
transaction or {ransactions . . . with or involving SemGroup, L.P. (together with its affiliated
companies . . .) . . .." Exhibit A, Confidentiality Agreement at 1. If Catsimatidis was not a
bidder, then he misrepresented to the Debtors his intentions for gaining access to the Debtors®
confidential business information. Moreover, the Confidentiality Agreement plainly states that,
if “fa]t any time you determine not to proceed with the possible Transaction, you will promptly
notify the Company in writing ™ /d No such notice has been received by the Debtors.

43, Furthermore, UREC, the company on whose behalf Catsimatidis executed the

Confidentiality Agreement was established for the sole purpose of making an acquisition.

According to UREC’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, UREC is “a blank
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check company . . . formed for the purpose of acquiring, merging with, engaging in a capital
stock exchange with, purchasing all or substantially all of the assets of, or engaging in any other
similar business combination of an unidentified operating business.” Exhibit L, UREC Annual
Report on Form 10-K at 5 (Dec. 1, 2008). Furthermore, UREC was focused not just on any
company, but on a company exactly like SemGroup: “We are focused on identifying a
prospective target business in the energy industry throughout the world, with a particular focus
on businesses or assets involved in the refining of petroleum and specialized products (such as
petrochemicals) and services o the energy industry .. ..” Id

44, When Catsimatidis addressed the Debtors’ employees on December 22, 2008,
Catsimatidis bragged that UREC was waiting in the wings with $450 million in cash.
Catsimatidis declared that he was holding the cash as a “plum” and that there was “a possibility”
that UREC, and its cash, could be merged into the Debtors “to help SemGroup.”

45. Moreover, Catsimatidis’s denial of being a “bidder™ is directly contradicted by
statements made by his own counsel. United Refining and SemMaterials are parties to an
adversary proceeding currently pending before the Court* On January 15, 2009, United
Refining’s counsel, Richard J. Parks (“Parks”), contacted Debtors’ counsel, requesting that the
Debtors agree to a continuance of all “discovery as well as all other proceeding deadlines” in
relation to the adversary. Exhibit M, Email from R. Parks to A. Swartz (Jan. 15, 2009). Parks
explained that a continuation was appropriate because it did not make sense to invest in litigation
between the parties when Debtors would eventually become part of the Red Apple Group, a
holding company owned by Catsimatidis. “[I]f Mr. Catsimatidis is successful, the adversary
action is moot . . . [I]t is our desire not [to] divert expense and resources at this time if the

company is reorganized and becomes part of the Red Apple Group.”

' The adversary is styled United Refining Company v SemMaterials, L P (Adversary Case No 08-51404)
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46.  Catsimatidis is a bidder, plain and simple. He denies being a bidder only because
he does not wish to subject himself to an open and transparent bidding process. The disparity
between what Catsimatidis claims to be doing (acting as the philanthropic reorganizer — “That’s
just who I am™) and what he is actually doing (using five seats on the Management Committee to
try and push through a self-interested plan to ultimately acquire all or part of the Debtors while
preventing other potential suitors from parficipating in a transparent process) underscores and
illuminates the underlying conflict between Catsimatidis’s attempt to act as both seller and buyer
of the Debtors. His effort to assume both roles undermines the ability of the Debtors to
maximize the value of the estate through an open (and unconflicted) bidding process. Moreover,
his efforts to hijack control of the Debtors’ management and reorganization, along with his
refusal to operate within the established bidding procedures, constitutes a direct violation of the
Confidentiality Agreement he entered into with the Debtors.

47. While the Debtors are pleased to have attracted the interest of Catsimatidis with
regard to a possible acquisition, Catsimatidis refuses to act in a manner consistent with his
obligations under the Confidentiality Agreement and his fiduciary obligations as a member of the
Management Committee. As a result, the Debtors have been left with no choice but to seek

relief from the Bankruptcy Court.

COUNT1
Breach of Confidentiality Agreement

48.  The Debtors repeat and re-ailege each and every allegation contained in the
preceding paragraphs.

49.  Defendants breached the Confidentiality Agreement by, among other things: (i)
obtaining positions on the Management Committee and offering to acquire and possibly

acquiring voting securities of SGGP and SemGroup; (ii) making public announcements with
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respect to a reorgamization of the Debtors; and/or (iii) seeking to influence or control the
management, general partner or policies of SGGP and/or the Debtors. The Debtors are
investigating other possible breaches of the Confidentiality Agreement, and reserve their rights
to amend the Complaint to add further breaches.

COUNT II
Breach of Fiduciary Duty

50.  The Debtors repeat and re-allege each and every allegation contained in the
preceding paragraphs.

51. Members of the Manapement Committee owe fiduciary duties to the Debtors and
SGGP.

52.  The Catsimatidis Group has breached their fiduciary duties to the Debtors and
SGGP by purporting to represent the interests of the Debtors and SemGroup while, at the same
time, working on behalf of Catsimatidis, TEA and UREC with regard to a possible acquisition of
the Debtors. Additionally, the Catsimatidis Group has purported to affect certain legal rights of

Debtors in a manner contrary o the best interest of the Debtors and their constituents.

COUNT 111
Declaratory Judgment
53. The Debtors repeat and re-allege each and every allegation contained in the
preceding paragraphs.
54.  The Catsimatidis Group currently occupies five seats on the Management

Committee.
55.  The Confidentiality Agreement, however, prohibits Defendants from “seeking to
influence or control, in any manner whatsoever, alone or in concert with others, the management

or policies of the Company.” Exhibit A, Confidentiality Agreement § 12(v). This contractual
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obligation certainly should preclude members of the Catsimatidis Group from serving as
members of the Management Committee.

56. Furthermore, members of the Management Committee owe fiduciary duties to
SGGP and the Debtors. The Catsimatidis Group cannot fulfill those fiduciary duties as a result
of their expressed interest in affecting an acquisition of the Debtors. The Catsimatidis Group
cannot act in the best interests of SGGP and the Debtors, while at the same time pursuing a
possible acquisition of the Debtors. They cannot, consistent with their fiduciary obligations,
oceupy both sides of the negotiating table.

57.  Therefore, the Debtors respectfully request that the Court enter an order declaring
that Defendants’ contractual obligations to the Debtors and SGGP, and/or the fiduciary
obligations required of members of the Management Committee, preclude the Catsimatidis
Group from further serving as members of the Management Committee.

COUNT 1V
Injunctive Relief

58. The Debtors repeat and re-allege each and every allegation contained in the
preceding paragraphs.

59. Bankruptcy Code § 105(a) provides, in relevant part, that the “court may issue
any order, process, or judgment that is necessary or appropriate to carry out the provisions of this
title.” Under § 105(a), the Court may issue any order, including an injunction, that is necessary
to protect or preserve the property of the estate.

60.  Plaintiffs seek preliminary and permanent injunctions enjoining Defendants from
further breaching the Confidentiality Agreement and their fiduciary duties to SGGP and the
Debtors by, inter alia, (1) continuing to make public statements relating to the Debtors® possible

reorganization; (il) serving on the Management Committee; and (iii) pursuing an interest in
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investing in, or acquiring, the Debtors outside the bidding process established and conducted by
Blackstone.

61. If the Court were to deny Plaintiffs’ request for preliminary and permanent
injunctions, there is a substantial threat that Plaintiffs will suffer immediate and irreparable
injury for which there is no adequate remedy at law. Among other things, Defendants’ continued
breach of the Confidentiality Agreement and their fiduciary duties risks impairing the Debtors’
ability to maximize the value of their estates through the combination of an orderly
reorganization and asset marketing process.

62.  Any harm to Defendants from the issuance of an injunction will be significantly
outweighed by the harm to Plaintiffs if an injunction is not entered. Moreover, by entering into
the Confidentiality Agreement, Defendants agreed that the Debtors are entitled to injunctive
relief in the event of a breach of the Confidentiality Agreement. Exhibit A, Confidentiality
Agreement § 3.

63.  The Debtors plan to file 2 motion and brief to support their request for injunctive
relief and will request a prompt hearing.

COUNT V
Violation of the Automatic Stay

64.  The Debtors repeat and re-allege each and every allegation contained in the
preceding paragraphs.

65, The Debtors” filing of petitions for bankruptcy relief “operates as a stay,
applicable to all entities, of . . any act to . . . exercise control over property of the estate.” 11
U.S.C. § 362(a)(3) (emphasis added).

66.  Defendants violated the automatic stay by attempting to seize control of the

Debtors” estates. Catsimatidis has expressed, in no uncertain terms, his determination to acquire
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the Debtors. To that end he has, inter alia, acquired (or offered to acquire) the equity interests of
Kivisto and Ritchie, claimed to exercise control over the Management Committee, attempted to
thwart Debtors’ efforts to explore the possibility of sales of individual business units, and has
claimed publicly to be orchestrating the reorganization of Debtors. Importantly, Defendants
have carried out these acts not as unconflicted fiduciaries looking out for the best interests of the
Debtors, but as part of an effort to force Debtors into the control and ownership of Catsimatidis.
PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff' requesis the entry of a judgment: (i) finding that
Defendants breached the Confidentiality Agreement; (ii) declaring that the terms of the
Confidentiality Agreement, and/or the fiduciary obligations required of members of the
Management Committee, preclude the Catsimatidis Group from serving as members of the
Management Comumittee; (iii) finding that the Catsimatidis Group breached their fiduciary duties
to SGGP and the Debtors; (iv) granting a preliminary and permanent injunction precluding
further violations of the Confidentiality Agreement; (v) finding that Defendants’ violated the
automatic stay; (vi) awarding the Debtors any and al] damages to which they are entitled in an
amount to be determined by the court; (vii) awarding attorneys’ fees and costs where allowed by

contract or law; and (viii) granting such other and further relief as may be just.
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Dated: February 11, 2009
Wilmington, Delaware
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Respectfully submitted,

it uns Jrgd.

Mark D. Collins (No. 2981)
John H. Knight (No. 3848)
L.. Katherine Good (No. 5101)
Maris J. Finnegan (DE admission pending)
RICHARDS, LAYTON & FINGER, P.A.
One Rodney Square
920 North King Street
Wilmington, Delaware 19801
Telephone: (302) 651-7700
Facsimile: (302) 651-7701
Email: collins@rlf.com
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mfinnegan(@rlf.com

-and-

WEIL, GOTSHAL & MANGES LLP
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Dallas, Texas 75201

Telephone: (214) 746-7700

Martin A. Sosland

Michael Saslaw
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700 Louisiana, Suite 1600

Houston, Texas 77002

(713) 546-5000

John B. Strasburger

Sylvia A, Mayer

Andrew R. Swartz

Attorneys for the Deblors and
Debiors-in-Possession

22



IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE

Inre:
CHAPTER 11
SEMCRUDE, LP,, etal,

Debtors Case No. 08-11525 (BLS)

{(Jointly Administered)

SEMGROUP, L.P, etal,

Plaintiffs,
Adversary No.

V.
JOHN A. CATSIMATIDIS, et al,

Defendants.

vvvuvvvvvvvuvvvvvvvvvw

VERIFICATION OF DEBTORS’ COMPLAINT FOR BREACH OF CONTRACT,
DECLARATORY JUDGMENT, BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY,
AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

I, Terrence Ronan, the Chief Executive Officer of SemGroup, L.P., hercby
certify, on behalf of Debtors SemCrude, L.P., SemCrude Pipeline L.L.C., SemGas,
SemKan, [.1.C., SemGas Gathering, L.L.C., SemGas Storage, L.L.C., Greyhawk Gas
Storage Company, L.L.C., Stueben Development Company, LLC, Grayson Pipeline,
LLC, Eaglwing L.P., and SemGroup L.P., as debtors and debtors in possession, that I
have read the Debtors’ Complaint for Breach of Contract, Declaratory Judgment, Breach of
Fiduciary Duty, and Injunctive Relief against Defendants John A. Catsimatidis, Matthew
F. Coughlin, III, Martin R. Bring, J. Nelson Happy, Myron L. Turfitt, and United

HOLA3GBISS\0N\YW2I01] DOC\73451 0005



Refining Energy Corp. (the “Complaint™). The factual allegations in the Complaint are
true and correct to the best of my knowledge, information or belief based on reasonable
review of documents, investigation, and discussions with counsel.

.._/

Dated: February 11, 2009 AR O

Terrence Ronan

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me on February 11, 2009,

D Lo

Notary Public
o —}L}.“’ g !

ERRANAENUEECRNRES ST
e Motary Public Oklahoma )

B8, OFFICIAL SEAL K elora = an
5 DEBRA I JAEGER o = L
¥  ROGERS COUNTY X rinted Name of Notary

My Commission Expires: S5~ 20~ 2 612,
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CONFIDENTIALITY AG: NT

,Z?/_[ﬂg 5;2008

United Refining Energy Corp.
523 11* Avenue
New Yor, New York 10019

Ladies and Gentlemen:

In connestion with your evaluation of a possible transaction of transactions
(the “Transaction™) with or involving SemGroup, L.P. {together with its affiliated companies, the
“Company™), you have requested information concerning the Company and the Transaction from
the Company. As a2 condition to your receipt of such Confidential Tnformation (as hereinafter
defined), you agres to treat the Confidential Information and any other information concerning
the Transaction or the Company which is furnished to you or your Representatives (as defined
below) by or on behalf of the Company in accordance with the provisions of this Confidentiality
Agresment {this “Agreement”) and to take or refrain from taking cettain other actions herein set
forth. '

i. You recognize and acknowledge the competitive value and confidential nature of the
Confidential Inforination and the damage that would result to the Company and jts
Affiliates if any of the Confidential Information is disclosed to any third party. You
herchy agree that the Confidential Information will be used solely for the ‘purpose of
evalvating the Transaction and that all of the Confidential Information will be kept
confidentlal; provided that any such information may be disclosed only to the limited
group of your officers, dircctors, employess, agents, and outside pdvisors (such Persons
hereinafter collectively being referred to as “Representatives™), who are actually engaged
in and need to know the Confidertial Information for the purpose of ovaluating the
Transaction, who have been informed of the confidential nature of the Confidential
Information, and who have been advised by and agree with you that such information is
fo be kept confidential and shafl not be used for any putpose other than the evaluation of
the Transsction. You agree that you will canse your Representatives to observe all terms
of this Agresment, that you shall be responsible for any breach of this Agreement by aty

- of your Representatives, and that (at your own expense) you will gpecifically enforoe
your agreements with any such breaching Representatives through court proceedings.

2 The term “Confidential Information” includes () all information furnished by the
Compaty or any of its representatives, whether furnished before or afier the date hereof,
whether oral or written, and regardless of the manner jn which it is furnished, (i) all
abalyses, compilations, foresasts, studies, Interpreiations or other documents prepared by
yon or your Representatives in connection with your gvaluation of the Transaction
(inciuding, without Hmitation, such that reflects or is based upon, in whole or past, the
information furnished to yob or your Representatives pugsuant horeto), and (iit) the fact
that discussions of negotiations are taking place concerning a possible Trapsaction
between the Company and you, and any of the terms, conditions or other facts with
respect 10 any such possible Transaction, inchuding the status thereof. The term
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“Confidential Information® does not include any information which (i) at the tiwe of
disclosure or thereafter is generally available to and known by the public (other than as a
vesult of its disclosure by you or your Representatives in breach of this Agreement),
(i) was availableto youon a nen-confidential basis prior to disclosure by the Company,
ot (fit) becomes available to you on a nor-confidential basis from a Person who is pot
bound by a confidentiality agreement with the Company, or s not otherwise prohibited
from transmiting the information to you. The Confldential Informatiot: shall remain the
property of the Company. No rights to use, license, or otherwise exploit the Confidential
Information ate granted to you, by implication or otherwise. You will not by virtue of
our disclosute of the Confidential Information andfor your use of the Confidential
information acquire any rights with respect thereto, sll of which rights shall remain
exclusively with the Company.

3. Given the nature of the Confidential Information and our current discussions, the
Company would be itreparably damaged by any wnsuthorized disclosure or mse of any
Confidential Information or of our discussions or by any breach of this Agreement by you
ot your Representatives. Without projudice to the tights and remedies otherwise
avajlable to the Company, you agree that the Company shall be entitled, without the
requirement of posting a bond or other security, o equitable relief, including an
injunction or specific performance, in the event of any preach or threatened breach of the
provisions of this Agresment by you or your Representatives. Such remedies shall not bo
deemed o be exclusive remedies but shall be in addition to all other remedies available at
law or equity to the Company. In the event of litigation relating to this Agreement, if a
court of competont jutisdietion determines that you or any of your Representatives have
breashed this Agreement, then you shall be liable and pay 1o the Company the ressonable
costs and expenses (inelding attorney’s fees) incutred by the Company in connection

* with such litigation, including any appeal therefrom.

4. Tn the event you or any of your Representatives become legally competled (by deposition,
interrogatory, request for documents, subpoena, civil investigation, demand, order or
other legal process) to disclose any of the contents of the Confidential Information, or
either the fact that discussions or negotiations -are taking place concerning 2 possible
Transaction between the Company and you, or any of the terms, conditions or other facts
with respect to any such possibie Transaction, including the status thereof, the Company
agrees that you and yout Representatives may do so withont Hability, provided you
(i) promptly notify the Company prior to any such disclosure to the extent practieable,
(if) cooperate with the Company in any attempts it may make to obtain & protestive order
or other appropriate assurance that confidential treatment will- be afforded the
Confidential Information, and (iii) if no protective order is obtained and disclosute is -
required, (a) furnish only that portion of the Confidential Information that, in your
counsel’s opinion, you are legally compelied to disclose, and (b) take all reasonsble
messures to obtein reliable assurance that confidentinl treatment will be aecorded the

Confidential Information.

5. The Company may elect at any time to terminate further access by you to the
Confidential Information. At any time you deterimine not to proceed with the possible
Transaction, you will promptly notify the Company inwriting. Following any request by
the Company or any of its representatives, you agree (i) to promptly redeliver to the
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Company all written Confldential Information and any other written material sontaining
or reflecting any of the Confidential Information. in your possession or your
Representatives’ possession, (if) you and your Representatives will not retain any copies,
extracts or other reproductions in whole or in part, mechanical or slectronis, of such
written material, and (iti) ail computer records, documents, memorands, notes and other
writings whatsoever prapared by you or your Representatives based on the Confidential
Teformation will be destroyed, and that any such destraction shall be confirmed to the
Company in writing, '

8. You understand and acknowledge that neither-the Company tior any of its representatives
makes any representation or warranfy, express of implied, as to the accuracy of
completeness of the Confidential Informution. You agree that neither the Company nor
any of its representatives shall bave any Jiability o you or any of your Representatives
relating to or resulting from your or their use of the Confidential Information or any
errors therein or omissions therefrom. You further understand and agree that (i) the
Company (a) shall be free to conduct the process for 2 Transaction as it in its sole
disoretiop shall determine (including changing or ternpinating such process, providing any
information to any other Person, negotiating with any other Person or entering inio a
definitive agreement with any otber Person with respect to any transaction, in sach case,
at any titne and withowt notice to you or any othet Person) and (b) shall be free at ts sole
discretion to at any time accept or rejest any proposal relating to the Corapany for any
reason without notice to you or any other Petson, and (i) you shall have no ¢laira against
the Company or any of its representatives in connection with any of the foregoing.

7. For a period of two years after the date hereof, neither you nor any of your controlled
Representatives will not solicit for employment or hite, or cause t© be solicited or hived,
any employee of the Company: provided that this Agreement shell not prohibit any
advertisement or general solicjtation, (or hiring as & result thereof) that is not specifically
tatgeted at such persons,

8. You hereby represent and watrant that you are pot bound by the terms of 2 confidentiality
agreement or other agreement with & third party that would conflict with any of your
obligations under this Agreement.

9. in accepting and reviewing the Confidentis] Information, you represent and watrant that
you are acting solely for yourself. Further, you represent and warrant thet neither you nor
any of your controlled Representatives have discussed or shared, and you hereby
covenant that unless you have first reveived the written consent of the Company nejther
you nor any of your controlled Representatives will discuss or shate, with any third party
apy aspect of the Confidential Information or the fact that the Company is interested in a
proposed Transaction. You acknowledge that the effect of this covenant is that without
the full disclosure to and the written sonsent of the Compary, aeither you nor any of your
controlled Representatives can aot as agent, partner, co-participant or co-venturer for any
third party or third parties with respect to a proposed Transaction. In order to obtain the
consent of the Company, which the Compaty is entited to withhold in its sole discretion,
you shal} notify the Company of the identity of each Person for whom or with whom you
or any of your Representatives pad considered pursuing a possible Transaction and the
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nature and interest you or any of your Representatives and each gueh Person would have
in respect of such possible Transaction.

10.  You agres that, unless and until a binding agreement is entered into between the
Company and you with respect to the Transaction, neither the Company nor you will be
under any legal obligation of any kind whatsosver with respect 1o the Transaction by
virtue of this or any other written or oral expression, except with respect to the matters
specifically agreed to herein. Bxcept as provided in Paragraphs 8 and 9, herein, nothing
contained in any discussions between you and the Company or in any Confidential
Information shall be deemed to vonstitute a representation or warranty. Except for the
matters set forth in this Agreemnent or in any such binding agreement, nelther party shall
be entitled to rely on any statement, promise, agreement or understanding, whether oral
or wtitten, any custom, usage of trade, course of dealing or conduct.

1. You apree that all () communications regarding the Transaction, (ii) requests for
additional informetion, (i) requests for facility towrs or management weetings, and
{iv) disoussions or questions regarding procedures, will be submitted or directed only to
The Blackstone Group. You further agree that under no circumstances will you or your
Represenfatives disouss or otherwise cotamunicate atty aspect of the Transaction 1o axy
member of the management of the Company without the express written pertpission of
the Company. Without the Company’s prior writien consetit, you ghall not, and you shall
direct your Representatives not to, make any contact of any nature regarding a proposed
Transaction (including inguiries or requests concerning Confidential Information) with
any supplier, customer, bank or other lender of or to the Company or any of its Affiliates.

12.  In consideration of and as 4 condition 1o the Confidential Information being furnished to
you, you hercby further agree that, without the prior wiitten consent of the Company, for
a period of two years from the date hereof, neithet you nor auy of your Affiliates, acting
alone or as part of a group, will (i) acquire or offer or agree to soquire, directly or

indirectly, by putchase or otherwise, any voting securities (or direct or indirect rights or
options to asquire any voting securities) of the Company, of any material portion of the
assets or properties of the Company, (ii) make or participate in, directly ot indirectly, any
solicitation of proxles to vote, of 10 seck fo influence or comrol, in any manner
whatsoever, the voting of any seourities of the Company, (i) make any public
anmouncement with respest to, or solicit o submit & propogal or offer for, directly or
indireetly, any merger, business combination, recapitalization, regrganization, asget
purchase or other similar extraotdinary transaction involving the Company or any of its
seoutities, assets or propetties, (iv) form, join or in any way participate in, directly ot
indirectly, & “group” as defined in Sestion 13()(3) of the Securities Exchenge Act of
1934, as amended, in connection with any of the foregoing, (V) otherwise seek to
snfluence or control, in eny manner whatsoever, alone or in eoncert with others, the
management, general partner of policies of the Cotopany, (vi) disclose, directly or
indirectly, any igtertion, plan or arrangement Inconsistent with any of the foregoing,
(vii) advige, assist or encourage, directly or indirectly, any other person in connection
with any of the foregoing, (viif) take any action that could reasonably be expected to
requirs the Company to make & public aumotncement regarding the possibility of any of
the ovents described in this paragraph, or (ix) request the Company, directly or indirectly,
to amend or waive any provision of this paragraph.
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13.  Youacknowledge and agree that you are aware (and that your Representatives are aware
of, upon providing any Confidential Information to such Representatives, will be advised
by you) that the Confidential Information being furnished to you containg material, non-
public information regarding the Company and that the United States securities laws
prohibit any persons who have such matetial, non-public information from purchasing or
selling securities of the Company on the basis of such information or from
conpounicating such information {0 any person under circumstances in which it is
reasonably foresecablo that such person is likely to purchase or sell such securities on the
basile of such information.

14. This Agreement and all actions that may arise with tespect thereto (whether in tort,
contract or otherwise) shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of New York without regard to conflict of Jaws principles. The Uhited States
Bankruptey Court for the District of Delawate (the “Bankruptcy Court”) shall retain
exclusive jurisdiction to enforce the terms of this Agreement avnd to decide any claims or
disputes which may arise or result from, or be connected with, this Agresment or any
breach or defauit herennder, and any and all actions, suits or proceedings arising out of or
related to the foregoing shall be filed and maintained only in the Bankruptey Court, and
you hereby consent to and submit to the jurisdiction and venue of the Bankruptey Coutt;
provided, however, that if the bankruptey cases jointly administered under Case No. 08-
11525~(BLS) have closed, you agree {o meonditionatly and irrevocably submit to the
exclusive jurisdiction of the United Statés District Court for the Southern District of New
York sitting in New York County and avy appellate court thereof, for the resolution of
any such claim or dispute. You agree not o commence any such action, suit, of
proceeding except in such courts, and further agree that any service of arny process,
sunmons, notice or dosument by US registered mail or intgrmationally recognized carrier
to your address set forth above shall bo effeotive service of prooess in any action, suit of
proceeding brought agaiost you in any such court. You hersby unconditionally and
irrevooably waive, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, any ohjection which
you may now or hereafter have t0 the Inying of venue of any dispute ariging out of or
relating to this Agrecment brought in any courl specified above, or any defense of
inconvenient forum for the maintepance of such dispute. . Yon further agree that a

judgment in any such dispuie may he enforced in other jurisdictions by suit on the
judgment or in any other manner pmvidcx_i by lgxy.

15. The provisions of this Agresment shall be binding solely upon and inure to the benefit of
the patties hereto and their respective sucoessors and permitted assigus, c:fpressly
including any successor $0 or acquirer of the Company; provided that your obligations ate
personz] to you and may not be asgigned o another party.

16.  This Agreement represents the entire understanding and agreement of the parties hereto
and may be modified only by & separato written agreement executed by you and the
Company expressly modifying this Agreement. This Agreement supgrser%es and cancels
any and all prior agresments besween the parties hereto, express or implied, relating to

the Transaction,

17.  In the event that any provision o portion of this Agreement is de:tcrmined fo be invalid or
unenforoeable for any reason, in whole or in part, the remaining provisions of this
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Agreement shall be unaffected thereby and shall remain iy full force and effest o the
fullest extent permitted by law, and guch invalid or unenforceable term or provision shall
be deemed replaced by o term or provision that is valid and enforceable and that comes
closest to expressing the Company’s intention with respect to such jnvalid or
unenforceable tepm or provision.

18.  ‘The failurs or tefusal of the Company 10 insist upon gtrict performance of any provision
of this Agreement or to exercise any right in any one or more jstances or cireumstances
shall not be congtrued as a waives ot relinquishment of such provision ot right, nor shall
such failures or refisals be deemed 2 costom or practice contrary to such provision or
right. ‘

19.  For putposes of this Agreement, except as otherwise defined herein: (2) “Affiliate” shall
mesn, as 10 any Person, any other Persen which, directly or indirectly, cottrols, or is
controlled by, or is under commmon control with, such Pexson (for this purpose, “popirol”
(including “controlled by” and “uder common control with”) shall mean the possession,
directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of management of
policies of a Person, whether through the ownership of secutities or partpership or other
ownership ivterests, by contract of otherwise); and (b) “Person” ghall be broadly
interpteted to include any individual, corporation, company, partnership, timited Hability
company, tust ot other group or entity (including any court, government or agency,
comuission, board or authority thereof, federal, state or local, domestic, foreign ot
multinational).

20, This Agreement may be exscuted its any number of counterparts, sach of which when so0
executed shall be deemed an original, but such counterparts shall together constitute one
and the same Agreement.

21.  This Agreement shall terminate upon the earlier to occur of (i) the closing of the
Transaction contemplated by this Agreement, and (if) two years after the date hereof.

22, The Company acknowledges that i is patty to that certain adversary proceeding in the
Bankruptcy Court filed at Adversary No. 08-51404-BLS commenced by you in respect of
your claitn to that certain limited liability company interest algo claimed by the Compaty
by and through its subgidiary, ngMﬁteﬁals, LLC. The Company agtees with you that
the existence of this Agreement or any discussjons concerning a Transaction ghall not
prejudice any tight or clasm made it this adversary proceeding or any related proceeding
by you of the Company. Ror the avoidance of doubt, any Confidential Information
teceived pursuant to this Agreement may not be anslyzed, considered or offered into
evidence by you iu the adversaty proceeding described in this Paragraph 22 in
furtherance of your position upless otherwise obtained by you through the discovery
process in connection with such adversary proceeding.
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Plesse confitm your agreement with the foregoing by signing and returning to the
undersigned a duplicate copy of this Agreement.

Sincerety,

SEMGROUP, L.P.

By: SemGronp G.P., L.L‘C.,
its general parte

ACCEPTED AS OF THE DATE FIRST

08/08
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Term Sheet
December 5, 2008

Tulsa Energy Acquisitions, LLC (“TEA")

The undersigned holders (“Kivisto Owners”) of equity interests in SemGroup,
L.P. ("SGLP”) and its general partner, SemGroup G.P., L.L.C. (*SGGP" and

collectively with SGLP, the “Company”).

Exchange by Kivisto Owners of their entire interests in the Company for Class
A Units of ownership in TEA. The effectiveness of such exchange shall be
subject to any and all rights, obligations, pre-conditions, and contingencies set
forth in the Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership
of SemGroup, L.P. and the Second Amended and Restated Operating
Agreement of SemGroup G.P., L.L.C. and such other agreements to which the
interest in the Company owned by the undersigned is subject (each as
amended prior to the date hereof, collectively, the "Operative Documents”),
including, without limitation, the conditions with respect to transfers set forth in
Articles X, X and Exhibits A thereto (as the case may be) and the other terms
and conditions of this Preliminary Term Sheet. The Kivisto Owners make no
representations or warranties with respect to the admission of TEA as a
“Substitute Member” of SGGP and/or a “Substituted Limited Partner” of SGLP,
it being the sole responsibility of TEA to comply with any and all conditions
required to achieve that status, including, without limitation, acquiring the
consent of Carlyle/Riverstone (as such term is defined in the Operative
Documents) and the other Owners.

The ownership of TEA shall be as follows:

Class A Units: 10.0% apportioned pro rata among the holders of all
of the equity interests in the Company (“Owners”), including Kivisto Owners
Class B Units: 90.0% owned by John A. Catsimatidis ("JAC") or an

“Affiliate” (as hereinafter defined) of JAC.

Any class of Units of TEA (whether A, B or some other designation)
(hereinafter “Units”) shall have the same terms, rights and privileges except

as otherwise set forth herein.

If any Owner declines to participate in the Transaction, the Class A Units
attributable to that Owner will be retained by JAC.

All cash contributions to the capital of TEA shall be borne by Class B Units.
The Class A Units shall have no obligation to contribute cash to the capital of

TEA.

If additional capital contributions are obtained from any person other than
JAC or an Affiliate of JAC, necessitating the issuance of additional Class A
Units, the percentage dilution shall be borne pro rata by the holders of Class
A and Class B Units. Such dilution will, in all events however, be subject to
the “Anti-Dilution” provisions contained herein.
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» Anti-Dilution: TEA shall not (a) directly or indirectly through

intermediary subsidiaries owning an interest in the Company (or any of
its subsidiaries), issue additional Units or securities convertible into or
exchangeable for, or options to purchase, Units, or otherwise issue any
securities of any kind (“TEA Securities”) or (b) cause the Company or
any of its subsidiaries to issue additional membership interests, units,
partnership interests, or other securities convertible into exchangeable
for, or options to purchase any securities of any kind of such issuer (the
“SGLP Securities”, and collectively with the TEA Securities, the
“Securities”) (either of (a) or (b) an “Issuance”) unless prior to such
Issuance, TEA and/or the Company, as the case may be, notifies each
of the Kivisto Owners in writing of the contemplated Issuance and
grants to each of the Kivisto Owners the right (the “Right”) to subscribe
for and purchase additional Securities, or such other securities as are
issued, at the price per Security paid for such Issuance such that, after
giving effect to the Issuance and exercise of the Right (including, for
purposes of this calculation, the issuance of Securities upon conversion,
exchange or exercise of all securities so convertible, exchangeable or
exercisable issued in the Issuance pursuant to the Right (regardless of
whether any such conversion or exchange right is actually exercised)),
the Securities owned by each of the Kivisto Owners (rounded down to
the nearest whole unit of designation) shall represent the same
percentage of the outstanding Securities as was owned by each of the
Kivisto Owners prior to the Issuance and representing an indirect
percentage in the outstanding Securities of the Company (and its
subsidiaries) as of such date; provided, however, in no event may the
indirect percentage of the outstanding SGLP Securities owned
(indirectly) by each of the Kivisto Owners (rounded down to the nearest
whole unit of designation) fall below its Initial Ownership Percentage (as
hereinafter defined) unless neither JAC nor any of his Affiliates
participates in such Issuance. The Right may be exercised by each of
the Kivisto Owners at any time by written notice to TEA or the Company
(as the case may be) and received by TEA or the Company (as the
case may be) within thirty (30) days after receipt of the notice of the
exercise of the Right. The closing of the purchase and sale pursuant to
the exercise of the Right shall occur at least thirty (30) days after TEA or
the Company (as the case may be) receives notice of the exercise of
the Right. If the proposed Issuance is terminated, the obligations to
issue Securities to each of the Kivisto Owners in connection with such
proposed Issuance shall also terminate and, in such event, any amount
paid by each of the Kivisto Owners in respect thereof shall be returned
to each such Kivisto Owner. For purposes hereof, the ‘“Initial
Ownership Percentage” of any Kivisto Owner shall mean that
percentage equal to ten percent (10%) of the Original Ownership
Percentage set forth below its signature line below and shall be
adjusted to reset to account for Issuances in which neither JAC nor his
Affiliates participate and such Kivisto Owner elects not to exercise its

Right.
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+ The Manager of TEA shall be appointed by the holder of Class B

Units, and shall initially be Nelson Happy. TEA shall cause A.R.
Thane Ritchie (“Ritchie”) to remain a member of the Management
Committee of SGGP (“Manager”), and entitled to all rights and
privileges afforded to a Manager under the Operative Documents
(including without limitation, rights of exculpation and indemnification).
To the extent that the Operative Documents are amended or
otherwise altered in a way effecting or otherwise reducing the rights of
indemnification and exculpation afforded Ritchie, such amendments or
alterations shall be ineffective and Ritchie shall continue to be
indemnified and exculpated by the Company as if the provisions of the
Operative Documents effecting exculpation and indemnification
continued in full force and effect.

« In partial consideration for its assignment of interests in the Company

in exchange for Class A Units of TEA, TEA shall allocate (and/or
caused to be allocated) to each Kivisto Owner an amount of “qualified
nonrecourse financing” (as defined in Section 465(b)(6) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and the Treasury
Regulations thereunder) of the Company and its direct and indirect
subsidiaries that is no less than that amount necessary to be equal to
the taxable gain, if any, that would be realized by each such Kivisto
Owner if such Kivisto Owner were to dispose of its Units in TEA for no
consideration other than the release or deemed release of the
liabilities of TEA, the Company and/or its subsidiaries, as such gain is
determined immediately as of prior to the date hereof and, thereafter
from time to time.

For purposes hereof, the term “Affiliate” means any Person that
directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common
control with, such Person. As used in this definition of "Affiliate,” the
term "control" means either: (i) the possession, directly or indirectly,
of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and
policies of a Person, whether through ownership of voting securities, by
contract or otherwise; or (ii) a direct or indirect equity interest of ten
percent (10%) or more in the entity, and includes with respect to JAC
and his affiliates, each of Red Apple Group, Inc., United Acquisition
Corp., United Refining, Inc., United Refining Company, and United
Refining Energy Corp., their respective subsidiaries and Affiliates. For
purposes hereof, the term “Person” means any natural person,
partnership, domestic or foreign limited partnership, domestic or
foreign limited liability company, trust, estate, association, or
domestic or foreign corporation.
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TEA intends to control as the owner of the debtor in possession to effect
a Chapter 11 reorganization of SGLP with a view to preserving the
current operating business to the extent possible, and halting the current
liguidation of the enterprise. In the event that JAC and his Affiliates
cease to preserve the current operating business and/or otherwise move
to liquidate SGLP, the Kivisto Owners shall the right to purchase, for one
dollar ($1), that number of Units of TEA constituting control of SGLP.

Upon execution of assignments to TEA of the Company equity interests
at least equal to 50.1% of the whole, JAC shall comimence funding TEA
and TEA shall pursue the foregoing purpose with all due haste.

The transactions contemplated by this Term Sheet shall be subject to,
among other things, (i) the parties shall have complied with all applicable
provisions of the Operative Documents, including without limitation
Articles IX, X and Exhibits A of the Second Amended and Restated
Agreement of Limited Partnership of SemGroup, L.P. and the Second
Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of SemGroup G.P., L.L.C.
and all applicable laws, (ii) the parties shall have made all regulatory
filings and obtained all required consents of government agencies,
including but not limited to any required under Hart-Scott-Rodino and
PUHCA, and (iii) immediately after the transactions contemplated
hereby, TEA shall own a majority of the limited partnership interests of

SGLP.

As soon as practicable TEA shall prepare and deliver to the Kivisto
Owners an operating agreement in normal form memorializing the
foregoing structure. The parties agree that no assignment of an interest
in the Company shall occur or otherwise be effective until such time as
the parties have negotiated and executed applicable definitive
agreements incorporating the principles set forth in this Term Sheet,
including without limitation, an operating agreement and formal
assignments, in form and substance satisfactory to each in its sole and
absolute discretion (collectively, the “Definitive Agreements”). The
parties agree that this Term Sheet is intended to be non-binding and is
subject in its entirety to the negotiation of the Definitive Agreements.

This Term Sheet and any Definitive Agreement shall be governed by the
laws of the State of New York.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has executed this Term Sheet the
date first above stated.

Thomas L. Kivisto Trust Tulsa Energy A€quigitions, LLC

Dated June 5, 1996
. L Y 7N\ ! By S &

—_ . Mafthew F. CougAlin, Il
Name: [haios L-— k.uu,qu Executive Vice President

</'
Title: ] v sdser

Current Ownership:
SemGroup, L.P. 16.3186%
SemGroup G.P.,L.L.C. 17.185%

Name: U hovoeses - L. [ivists

Tite: ¥y esided

Current Ownership:
SemGroup, L.P. 3.8462%
SemGroup G.P., L.L.C. 3.9078%
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Assignment of Interest in
SemGroup, L.P. and SemGroup G.P., L.L.C,,
Proxy and Power of Attorney

This Assignment shall be effective at 11:59 PM CST on December 5, 2008.
Unit Holder: Thomas L. Kivisto Trust Dated June 5, 1996

1. ~ ASSIGNMENT. In consideration of the issuance to the (“Assignor”) of Class A Units in
Tulsa Energy Acquisitions, LLC, an Oklahoma limited liability company (“TEA") equal to
1.666621% of the equity interest in TEA, Assignor hereby assigns to TEA all right, title and
interest of Assignor in SemGroup, L.P., an Oklahoma Limited Partnership (“SGLP”), and in
SemGroup G.P., L.L.C., an Oklahoma limited liability company (“SGGP”), the General Partner
of SGLP. All as more particularly described in the Term Sheet of even date herewith among
the undersigned and TEA. SGGP and SGLP are herein collectively called the “Company”.

2. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. Assignor hereby represents and warrants
to TEA that:

(a) The interest in the Company hereby conveyed to TEA is free and clear of and
from any and all liens, claims, options, agreements or other encumbrances, except such
as are contained in the Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited
Partnership of SemGroup, L.P. (the “Partnership Agreement’) and the Second
Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of SemGroup G.P.,, L.L.C. (the
“Operating Agreement”). :

(b)  Assignor has full right and lawful authority to execute, deliver and perform this
Agreement in accordance with its terms,

(c) Assignor will warrant and defend title to the interest in the Company herein
assigned against any person claiming any interest therein or any person asserting any
interest as a partner in SGLP or a member of SGGP.

(d) The interest in the Company herein assigned equals 16.6662%of the entire
equity interest of the Company. If the Ownership Percentage of Assignor is incorrect,
the intention of Assignor is nevertheless to assign all of the right, title and interest of
Assignor in the Company.

(e) The foregoing assignment is subject in all respects to compliance with the
provisions of the Partnership Agreement and the Operating Agreement.

3. PROXY. Assignor hereby appoints each of TEA, and J. Nelson Happy, and either of
them severally, as the proxy of Assignor, each with full power to act without joinder of the
other, with full power of substitution, to act in the name, place and stead of Assignor and to
vote or act on any matter at any time or place where Assignor would have the right to vote or
act as a member of SGGP or as a partner in SGLP. In view of the assignment stated in
Section 1 above this proxy shall be and shall be deemed to be coupled with an interest, and
may not be revoked by Assignor. This Proxy shall expire December 31, 2010.
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4. POWER OF ATTORNEY. Assignor hereby appoints each of TEA, and J. Nelson Happy
("Happy”), and either of them severally, as the agent and attorney-in-fact of Assignor, for the
purpose of appearing at any time or place, and acting in any lawful manner, in the name, place
and stead of Assignor, to assert or protect any rights or privileges belonging to Assignor and
inherent in the ownership interests in SGGP and SGLP referred to in Section 1 above,
including without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the assertion or protection of any such
rights in any court of law, and in the bankruptcy proceedings involving the Company, and for
the further purpose of appointing any Management Committee Designees which Assignor
would have the power to appoint pursuant to Section 5.1 of the Operating Agreement. In
consideration of the assignment made in Section 1 above, such appointment shall be for a
period of one year from the date hereof, and may not be cancelled or rescinded during that

time.

5. ACCEPTANCE. Each of TEA and Happy hereby accepts the foregoing appointment as
proxy and as attorney-in-fact.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Assignor has executed this Assignment, Proxy and Power of
Attorney the date first above stated.

Thomas L. Kivisto Trust Dated June 5, 1996 Tulsa Energy fCqujsitions, LLC
Name: Trsmras Lo EBlvisks By:% /ié//f
Title: ' Trw sbere Mafthew F. Cougfilin, Ili
Current Ownership: Executive Vice President
SemGroup, L.P. 16.3186%

SemGroup G.P.,,LL.C. 17.185%

J. Nelson Happy, Individual
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Parties

Transaction

TEA Structure

Term Sheet
December 7, 2008

Tulsa Energy Acquisitions, LLC (“TEA”)

The undersigned holders (“Ritchie Owners”) of equity interests in
SemGroup, L.P. ("SGLP") and its general partner, SemGroup
G.P,, LL.C. (“SGGP" and collectively with SGLP, the
“Company”).

» Exchange by Ritchie Owners of their entire interests in the

Company for Class A Units of ownership in TEA. The
effectiveness of such exchange shall be subject to any and all
rights, obligations, pre-conditions, and contingencies set forth in
the Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited
Partnership of SemGroup, L.P. and the Second Amended and
Restated Operating Agreement of SemGroup G.P., L.L.C. and
such other agreements to which the interest in the Company
owned by the undersigned is subject (each as amended prior to
the date hereof, collectively, the “Operative Documents”),
including, without limitation, the conditions with respect to
transfers set forth in Articles IX, X and Exhibits A thereto (as the
case may be) and the other terms and conditions of this
Preliminary Term Sheet.  The Ritchie Owners make no
representations or warranties with respect to the admission of
TEA as a “Substitute Member” of SGGP and/or a “Substituted
Limited Partner” of SGLP, it being the sole responsibility of TEA
to comply with any and all conditions required fo achieve that
status, including, without limitation, acquiring the consent of
Carlyle/Riverstone (as such term is defined in the Operative
Documents) and the other Owners.

The ownership of TEA shall be as follows:

Class A Units: 10.0% apportioned pro rata among the
holders of all of the equity interests in the Company (“Owners”),
including Ritchie Owners

Class B Units: 90.0% owned by John A. Catsimatidis
(“JAC") or an “Affiliate” (as hereinafter defined) of JAC.

Any class of Units of TEA (whether A, B or some other
designation) (hereinafter “Units”) shall have the same terms,
rights and privileges except as otherwise set forth herein.

If any Owner declines to participate in the Transaction, the Class
A Units attributable to that Owner will be retained by JAC.

All cash contributions to the capital of TEA shall be borne by

Class B Units. The Class A Units shall have no obligation to

1



contribute cash to the capital of TEA.

« |If additional capital contributions are obtained from any person
other than JAC or an Affiliate of JAC, necessitating the issuance
of additional Class A Units, the percentage dilution shall be
borne pro rata by the holders of Class A and Class B Units.
Such dilution will, in all events however, be subject to the “Anti-
Dilution” provisions contained herein.

« in the event that TEA, JAC or their respective Affiliates acquires
any equity interest of the Company on terms more favorable
than those terms upon which TEA acquires equity interests from
the Ritchie Owners, the Ritchie Owners shall be entitled to those
same terms with respect to its acquired equity interests.

Anti-Dilution: . TEA shall not (a) directly or indirectly through
intermediary subsidiaries owning an interest in the Company (or
any of its subsidiaries), issue additional Units or securities
convertible into or exchangeable for, or options to purchase, Units,
or otherwise issue any securities of any kind (“TEA Securities”) or
(b) cause the Company or any of its subsidiaries to issue additional
membership interests, units, partnership interests, or other
securities convertible into exchangeable for, or options to purchase
any securities of any kind of such issuer (the “SGLP_Securities”,
and collectively with the TEA Securities, the "Securities”} (either of
(a) or (b) an “Issuance”) unless prior to such Issuance, TEA and/or
the Company, as the case may be, notifies each of the Ritchie
Owners in writing of the contemplated Issuance and grants to each
of the Ritchie Owners the right (the “Right”) to subscribe for and
purchase additional Securities, or such other securities as are
issued, at the price per Security paid for such Issuance such that,
after giving effect to the Issuance and exercise of the Right
(including, for purposes of this calculation, the issuance of
Securities upon conversion, exchange or exercise of all securities
so convertible, exchangeable or exercisable issued in the Issuance
pursuant to the Right (regardiess of whether any such conversion
or exchange right is actually exercised)), the Securities owned by
each of the Ritchie Owners (rounded down to the nearest whole
unit of designation) shall represent the same percentage of the
outstanding Securities as was owned by each of the Ritchie
Owners prior to the Issuance and representing an indirect
percentage in the outstanding Securities of the Company (and its
subsidiaries) as of such date; provided, however, in no event may
the indirect percentage of the outstanding SGLP Securities owned
(indirectly) by each of the Ritchie Owners (rounded down to the
nearest whole unit of designation) fall below its Initial Ownership
Percentage (as hereinafter defined) unless neither JAC nor any of
his Affiliates participates in such Issuance. The Right may be
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- exercised by each of the Ritchie Owners at any time by written

notice to TEA or the Company (as the case may be) and received
by TEA or the Company (as the case may be) within thirty (30)
days after receipt of the notice of the exercise of the Right. The
closing of the purchase and sale pursuant to the exercise of the
Right shall occur at least thirty (30) days after TEA or the Company
(as the case may be) receives notice of the exercise of the Right. If
the proposed Issuance is terminated, the obligations to issue
Securities to each of the Ritchie Owners in connection with such
proposed Issuance shall also terminate and, in such event, any
amount paid, by each of the Ritchie Owners in respect thereof shall
be returned to each such Ritchie Owner. For purposes hereof, the
“Initial Ownership Percentage” of any Ritchie Owner shall mean
that percentage equal to ten percent (10%) of the Original
Ownership Percentage set forth below its signature line below and
shall be adjusted to reset to account for Issuances in which neither
JAC nor his Affiliates participate and such Ritchie Owner elects not
to exercise its Right.

» The Manager of TEA shall be appointed by the holder of Class B

Units, and shall initially be Nelson Happy. TEA shall cause AR.
Thane Ritchie (“Ritchie”) to remain a member of the Management
Committee of SGGP (“Manager”), and entitled to all rights and
privileges afforded to a Manager under the Operative Documents
(including without limitation, rights of exculpation and
indemnification). To the extent that the Operative Documents are
amended or otherwise altered in a way effecting or otherwise
reducing the rights of indemnification and exculpation afforded
Ritchie, such amendments or alterations shall be ineffective and
Ritchie shall continue to be indemnified and exculpated by the
Company as if the provisions of the Operative Documents effecting
exculpation and indemnification continued in full force and effect.

In partial consideration for its assignment of interests in the
Company in exchange for Class A Units of TEA, TEA shall allocate
(and/or caused to be allocated) to each Ritchie Owner an amount
of “qualified nonrecourse financing” (as defined in Section 465(b)(6)
of the internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"),
and the Treasury Regulations thereunder) of the Company and its
direct and indirect subsidiaries that is no less than that amount
necessary to be equal to the taxable gain, if any, that would be
realized by each such Ritchie Owner if such Ritchie Owner were to
dispose of its Units in TEA for no consideration other than the
release or deemed release of the liabilities of TEA, the Company
and/or its subsidiaries, as such gain is determined immediately as
of prior to the date hereof and, thereafter from time to time.

For purposes hereof, the term “Affiliate” means any Person that
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directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common
control with, such Person. As used in this definition of "Affiliate,"
the term "control" means either: (i) the possession, directly or
indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the
management and policies of a Person, whether through ownership
of voting securities, by contract or otherwise; or (ii) a direct or
indirect equity interest of ten percent (10%) or more in the entity,
and includes with respect to JAC and his affiliates, each of Red
Apple Group, Inc., United Acquisition Corp., United Refining, Inc.,
United Refining Company, and United Refining Energy Corp., their
respective subsidiaries and Affiliates. For purposes hereof, the
term “Person” means any natural person, partnership, domestic or
foreign limited partnership, domestic or foreign limited liability
company, trust, estate, association, or domestic or foreign .
corporation.

TEA intends to control as the owner of the debtor in possession to
effect a Chapter 11 reorganization of SGLP with a view to preserving
the current operating business to the extent possible, and halting the
current liquidation of the enterprise. In the event that JAC and his
Affiliates cease to preserve the current operating business and/or
otherwise move to liquidate SGLP, the Ritchie Owners shall the right
to purchase, for one dollar ($1), that number of Units of TEA
constituting control of SGLP.

Upon execution of assignments to TEA of the Company equity
interests at least equal to 50.1% of the whole, JAC shall commence
funding TEA and TEA shall pursue the foregoing purpose with alil
due haste.

The transactions contemplated by this Term Sheet shall be subject
to, among other things, (i) the parties shall have complied with all
applicable provisions of the Operative Documents, including
without limitation Articles 1X, X and Exhibits A of the Second
Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of
SemGroup, L.P. and the Second Amended and Restated Operating
Agreement of SemGroup G.P., L.L.C. and all applicable laws, (ii)
the parties shall have made all regulatory filings and obtained all
required consents of government agencies, including but not limited
to any required under Hart-Scott-Rodino and PUHCA, and (iii)
immediately after the transactions contemplated hereby, TEA shall
own a majority of the limited partnership interests of SGLP.

As soon as practicable TEA shall prepare and deliver to the Ritchie
Owners an operating agreement in normal form memorializing the
foregoing structure. The parties agree that no assignment of an
interest in the Company shall occur or otherwise be effective until
such time as the parties have negotiated and executed applicable
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Governing Law

definitive agreements incorporating the principles set forth in this
Term Sheet, including without limitation, an operating agreement
and formal assignments, in form and substance satisfactory to each
in its sole and absolute discretion (collectively, the "Definitive
Agreements”). The parties agree that this Term Sheet is intended
to be non-binding and is subject in its entirety to the negotiation of
the Definitive Agreements.

This Term Sheet and any Definitive Agreement shall be governed
by the laws of the State of New York.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has executed this
Term Sheet the date first above stated.

Ritchie SG Holdings, L.L.C. Tulsa Energy Acqmisitions, LLC
By: Ritchie Capital Management, L.L.C., its "

Managing Member
By: ¢4
W I\E/Catthew F. Coughfin, Iil

By: )

ecutive Vice President
- %,
Name_‘: A.z,m‘\‘(\é‘ Q_\\(“‘\'\\é' )
Title: (¢ \’W&s Fyeoudye (f\'sf‘-“i;mc s

Current Ownership:

SemGroup, L.P. 11.7921%
SemGroup G.P., L.L.C. 22.4955%
Original Ownership Percentage: 12.2471%

SGLP Holding, Ltd.
By: Ritchie Capital Management, L.L.C., its Sub-
Adviser

By: ﬂw

Name; A ¢ Thene Vadehwe

Title: (\‘_\mei Lxecidwe CAYieer
Current Ownership:

SemGroup, L.P. 10.3063%
SemGroup G.P., L.L.C. 0 %

Original Ownership Percentage: 10.3063%

SGLP US Holding, L.L.C.
By: Ritchie SGLP-US Class B Manager, L.L.C.

o DY)

Name: A.R. Thane Ritthie
Title: Director

Current Ownership:
SemGroup, L.P. 3.3666%
SemGroup G.P,, L.L.C.  3.3985%

Original Ownership Percentage: 3.4354%
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[back to Releases]

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

12/15/2008

Catsimatidis Announces Plan to Reorganize SemGroup L.P.,
A Major Petroleum Services Provider

NEW YORK, N.Y. — John A. Catsimatidis, chairman of Red
Apple Group, announced today that he intends to develop
a reorganization plan for SemGroup L.P., a privately held
company in Tulsa, OK, that is a major oil and gas
transportation and storage provider in the Midwest.
SemGroup filed for bankruptcy in July of 2008 and stated
that it planned to liquidate most of its assets.

Mr. Catsimatidis said that he had obtained five of the nine
seats on SemGroup G.P., L.L.C.’s Management Committee,
the equivalent of SemGroup L. P.’s board of directors.

I strongly believe that reorganization will deliver far more
value to SemGroup’s creditors than liquidation,” Mr.
Catsimatidis said. “SemGroup has a tremendous portfolio
of assets that can be revitalized with a renewed
commitment to the company’s core businesses. The
problem with liquidation is there will likely be nothing left
once the assets have been sold - if they can be sold at all
in this environment.”

Mr. Catsimatidis said that he plans to work with creditors
to develop a reorganization plan that enables SemGroup to
repay its debts while preserving a majority of the 2,000
jobs currently at risk. Mr. Catsimatidis said that he plans to
maintain SemGroup L. P.’s headquarters in Tulsa.

“When SemGroup is reorganized, we intend it to become
one of the largest supporters of charity and the arts in
Tulsa,” said Matthew F. Coughlin III, who leads Tulsa-
based International Insurance Brokers Ltd. and who
facilitated the transaction by Mr. Catsimatidis. “I know -
John Catsimatidis has the resources, expertise and
dedication that will be necessary to rescue SemGroup from

http://semreorg.com/view_release.cfm?BodyID=3&page=1 _ 2/10/2009
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the liquidators.” Mr. Coughlin has joined Mr. Catsimatidis
on the Management Committee.

Mr. Catsimatidis successfully reorganized United Refining
Co. of Warren, Pa., in 1987 and returned 100 cents on the
dollar to creditors. In addition to petroleum refining and -
marketing, Red Apple Group, a privately held company,
owns real estate, aviation assets, and Gristedes, the
largest supermarket chain in New York City.

[back to Releases]
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REORGANIZATION UPLATES
FROME KOHN CATSEMATIENS

[back to Releases]

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

12/17/2008

Catsimatidis Working Toward Formulating Reorganization
Plan for SemGroup, L. P., in January, 2009

NEW YORK, N.Y. — John A. Catsimatidis, Chairman of the
Red Apple Group of New York, announced today that he is
planning to meet with the senior management of
SemGroup, L. P., in Tulsa next Monday to begin the
process of formulating a plan of reorganization for the
company.

"I am very pleased with the spirit of cooperation
demonstrated by everyone I have met so far,” Mr.
Catsimatidis said. “"We have been reaching out to obtain
input from SemGroup’s management team and certain of
its creditors.”

“Although I have not yet had any discussions with Bank of
America, in its capacity as Administrative Agent for the
Senior Secured Lenders, it has been stated to me that the
bank will consider with its lender group any proposal that I
make,” Mr. Catsimatidis said.

Mr. Catsimatidis announced on 15 December 2008 that he
had obtained five of the nine seats on SemGroup G. P., L.
L. C.’s Management Committee, the equivalent of
SemGroup L. P.’s board of directors.

Next week in Tulsa, Mr. Catsimatidis will seek the input of
management and the company’s restructuring
professionals as a part of the process of putting together a
reorganization plan on behalf of the company. “Our team
intends to work hard on a proposal to take to SemGroup’s
Management Committee,” Mr. Catsimatidis said. “"We are
working toward creating a consensual plan acceptable to
all parties to the proceeding. We intend to have a
preliminary plan ready for consideration in January, 2009.”

http://semreorg.com/view_release.cfm?BodyID=4&page=1 ‘ 2/10/2009
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SemGroup, L.P., is a privately held midstream service
company providing the energy industry the means to move
products from the wellhead to the wholesale marketplace.
SemGroup provides diversified services for end users and
consumers of crude oil, natural gas, natural gas liquids,
refined products and asphalt. Services include purchasing,
selling, processing, transporting, terminaling and storing of
product. SemGroup serves customers in the United States,
Canada, Mexico, Wales, Switzerland and Vietnam.

SemGroup, L. P., had revenues of over $14 billion in 2007
and employed more than 2,200 persons worldwide.
SemGroup, L. P., entered into Chapter 11 of the U. S.
Bankruptcy Code on 22 July 2008.

[back to Releases]
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From: Matthew F. Coughlin, III [mailto:Matthew.F.Coughlin.III@iibltd.com]
Sent: Friday, December 19, 2008 1:21 PM

To: Majors, Randy

Subject: Private Dinner Invitation

Sensitivity: Confidential

Matthew F. Coughlin, I11
L4 Managing Partner

Randy,

| don't believe we have met. | am one of the new members of SemGroup G.P.'s
Management Committee.

I would be pleased if you would join me Monday evening at 7:30 for a private dinner at
The Summit Club, 30th Floor, Governors Room.

Please do not share this information with anyone as | am only inviting a very select
group and | do not want anyone to be offended.

| would appreciate your reply at your earliest convenience.

Thanks,
Matt

Matthew F. Coughlin, Il
Managing Partner

International Insurance Brokers, Ltd.
600 Mid-Continent Tower

401 South Boston Avenue

Tulsa, OK 74103-4041
918-592-4200

918-477-4102 (D)

918-808-8847 (M)

918-742-2541 (H)
Matthew.F.Coughlin.ll@iibltd.com
www.iibltd.com
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REORGAMIZATION LIPDATES
FROSE FOHN CATSHAATIEES

Hosted by John Catsimatidis, SemGroup L.P., L.L.C.
management committee majority leader, this Web site
seeks to provide transparent communication on the latest
developments in the reorganization of SemGroup. All
information herein is from a public domain and
represents the opinions of Catsimatidis and the majority.

SemGroup, L.P., is a privately held midstream service
company providing the energy industry the means to
move products from the wellhead to the wholesale
marketplace. SemGroup provides diversified services for
end users and consumers of crude oil, natural gas,
natural gas liquids, refined products and asphalt.
Services include purchasing, selling, processing,
transporting, terminaling and storing of product.
SemGroup serves customers in the United States,
Canada, Mexico and Wales.

- 2/10/2009
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REOQRGAMIZATION LIPDATES
FROMA JOHBR CATSIMATIEAR

Questions about the SemGroup reorganization?

Call our hotline at (918) 477-4177 or send me an e-mail
by filling out the form below.

First Name:

Last Name:

E-mail:

Phone Number:

Iam a: [[T]| sSemGroup employee
[J| semGroup creditor
[J} Concerned citizen

[0} Member of the media

Question: i

Mailing Address:
P.O. Box 35487
Tulsa, OK 74153-0487

http://semreorg.com/contact.cfm 2/10/2009



SemGroup

http://semreorg.com/qanda.cfm

Page 1 of 2

REQRGAMIZATION UPDATES
FROsE JOHN CRTSIMATIDIS

The following represent frequently asked questions
regarding the reorganization of SemGroup. To ask John
Catsimatidis additional questions, contact him today.

What is happening now?

SemGroup has been put on the path of liquidation and we
are trying to save it, restructure it, and keep it in one
piece. We are actively working on a reorganization plan,
which we will present to the bank creditors in February.

Could your attempt to restructure SemGroup
discourage other buyers from bidding for SemGroup
assets?

The recent interest in SemGroup only intensifies this
company’s position as a viable entity. I have maintained
since the beginning of my involvement that I would be
open to the receipt of bids for any assets as long as they
were firm, in writing and recommended by the Blackstone
Group.

Why is John Catsimatidis interested in SemGroup?
Upon reviewing SemGroup’s business plan, I believe this
company has the potential to once again be a viable
entity. My priority is to keep SemGroup’s 2,000 jobs right
here in Tulsa, so the management committee majority is
working hard to turn this bankruptcy around from
liqguidation mode to reorganization mode.

Since you are from out of state, how do we know
you aren’t planning to move those 2,000 jobs
somewhere else?

There are no guarantees. But SemGroup is a key
corporate citizen to Tulsa, and I have every intention of
fighting to make sure that doesn’t go away.

How did you find out about SemGroup?
I was introduced to SemGroup through Matthew F.

2/10/2009
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Coughlin III, managing partner for Tulsa-based
International Insurance Brokers and whom I caused to be
appointed as a member of the management committee.
Acutely aware of the impact the bankruptcy filing would
have on the Tulsa community, Coughlin immediately
recognized an opportunity to help by bringing my
resources together with SemGroup.

What are the chances SemGroup can be brought out
of bankruptcy?

I have a great deal of business expertise in this very
situation. A great example of this is United Refining
Company based in Pennsylvania, which I brought out of
bankruptcy in 1986. They have remained stable - and in
their hometown - ever since.

Why buy a company that is in liquidation?

As Tulsa citizens, you not only saw the great things
SemGroup was willing to do for your city, but also what
happened - or did not happen - when this corporate
citizen began to go away. I firmly believe that when
SemGroup is reorganized and the creditors satisfied,
SemGroup will again be able to flourish.

Will it still be called SemGroup?

Until the reorganization is complete, the SemGroup name
will remain intact. What happens after that is yet to be
determined.

What is Chapter 11 Bankruptcy?

Chapter 11 Bankruptcy is a form of corporate financial
reorganization in which a company's business is
reorganized to satisfy the claims of creditors while the
company continues to function. If successful, the business
can continue to generate revenue, protect jobs and pay
off debts.

What caused SemGroup to file for bankruptcy?
SemGroup, which trades, stores and transports oil, gas
and asphalt, declared bankruptcy July 22 after losing at
least $2.4 billion in oil derivatives trading during the run-
up of oil to nearly $150 a barrel in July 2008.

http://semreorg.com/qanda.cfm 2/10/2009
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REORGANIZATICN DPDATES
FROMS JOHM CATSEAXTIDIR

[back to Releases]

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

02/10/2009

Catsimatidis Launches SemGroup Reorganization Web Site,
Hotline

TULSA, OK - John Catsimatidis, chairman of the Red Apple
Group of New York and current management committee
majority leader of SemGroup G.P., L.L.C., announced
today he has launched a Web site and hotline dedicated to
the reorganization of SemGroup, L.P., which is currently in
bankruptcy. SemGroup G.P., L.L.C. is the general partner
of SemGroup, L.P.

The site, located at www.SemReorg.com, was developed
after Catsimatidis visited with employees in Tulsa
regarding his plans to save the bankrupt company.
SemGroup employees and concerned citizens now also
have the option to leave a message at the SemReorg
hotline (918) 477-4177 or mail their questions to P.O. Box
35487, Tulsa, OK 74153.

“*While I was in Tulsa, I received feedback that SemGroup,
L.P.’s employees not only want to communicate their
thoughts about the reorganization process, but also want
to ask questions about what’s going on,” said Catsimatidis.
“The Web site will allow them to do that.”

The Web site includes a section where employees and
members of the community can ask questions, as well as
view past news articles, press releases, frequently asked
questions and biographies on Catsimatidis and his
associates on the management committee.

Since Catsimatidis and his associates were appointed to
the majority of the seats on the SemGroup G.P., L.L.C.,
management committee, Catsimatidis has been actively
working on a reorganization plan to restructure SemGroup,
L.P. and keep it in one piece. The plan is scheduled to be
presented to bank creditors in February.

http://semreorg.com/view_release.cfm?BodyID=7&page=1 2/10/2009
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SemGroup, L.P., is a privately held midstream service
company providing the energy industry the means to move
products from the wellhead to the wholesale marketplace.
SemGroup, L.P. provides diversified services for end users
and consumers of crude oil, natural gas, natural gas
liquids, refined products and asphalt. Services include
purchasing, selling, processing, transporting, terminating
and storing of product, and serves customers in the United
States, Canada, Mexico and Wales.

SemGroup, L. P., had revenues of more than $14 billion in
2007 and employed more than 2,200 people worldwide.
The company filed for protection under Chapter 11 of the
U. S. Bankruptcy Code in July 2008.

For more information, call Nicole Morgan at (918) 599-
0029 or e-mail nicole@rexpr.com, or call Gerald McKelvey
at (212) 843-8013 or e-mail gmckelvey@rubenstein.com.

--end--

[back to Releases]
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WEIL, GOTSHAL & MANGES

MICHAEL A. SASLAW
DIRECT LINE (214) 746-8H7
E-MAIL: michael.sastaw@well.com

Mr. Thomas H. Kennedy
Skadden
Four Times Square

New York, New York 10036

Re:  SemGroup

Dear Tom:

200 CRESCENT COURT
SUITE 300
DALLAS, TEXAS 75201

{214) 746-7700
FAX: (214) 746-7777

January 29, 2009

LLP

AUSTIN
BOSTON
BRUSSELS
BUDAPEST
FRANKFURT
HOUSTON
LONDON
MIAMI
MUNICH
NEW YORK
PARIS
PRAGUE
PROVIDENCE
SHANGHAI
SILICON VALLEY
SINGAPORE
WARSAW
WASHINGTON, D.C.

As counsel to the SemGroup debtors it is our understanding based on statements made
last week in bankruptcy court by your partner, Mark Chehi, that Skadden is representing
John Catsimatidis, individually and as a management committee member, in the
SemGroup chapter 11 cases. We also understand from our initial conversation with you
and your partners that Skadden has been engaged by United Refining Energy Corp.
Based on that understanding, we are reaching out to you to help us understand the
appropriateness and legitimacy of the unsigned copy of a resolution that was emailed to
Terry Ronan by Matt Coughlin this past Monday afternoon.

We have been advised by Riverstone that it has exercised its veto powers with respect to
that resolution and that it is their view that the resolution is not effective. Putting aside
that issue for a moment, even if we assume that the so-called “Catsimatidis Group” of six
members could pass such a resolution, we remain perplexed as to how the Catsimatidis
Group believes that it can be (i) in charge of, and have access to, information regarding
the debtor bankruptcy plan and asset marketing process and (ii) at the same time, be an

active bidder.

This has become a serious problem which, if it continues, will (i) ensure that the
Catsimatidis Group will be unsuccessful in any attempt to participate in any aspect of
SemGroup’s bankruptcy plan and (ii) quite likely subject members of the Catsimatidis
Group to personal liability for the actions they have taken in chilling the bidding process.

As Terry and Lisa Donahue indicated to the management commitee in their letter of
January 15, 2009, there had already been reports of the Catsimadis Group having:

DAI:A54761 1\03\BQJF031.DOC\73451.0005
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» blatantly violated the terms of the Confidentiality Agreement executed by John
Catsimatidis on behalf of United Refining Energy Corp (the “UREC CA”), which
bound, among others, John Catsimatidis;

o directly contacting the potential purchaser of SemMaterials and certain of his
investors, while at the same time expressing a personal interest in the
SemMaterials business;

¢ making numerous statements in the press which have had a chilling effect on the
marketing process for the debtors’ assets;

e contacting representatives of SemGroup Energy Partners, L.P., purportedly in
both the capacity of a bidder and as members of the Management Committee,
after being asked by other members of the Management Committee not to do so;

¢ making premature pronouncements which gave false hopes to company
employees;

o misrepresenting the Management Committee authority of the Catsimatidis Group;
and

e inviting greater scrutiny of the Management Committee and damaging the
relationship of the Management Committee with its stakeholders given the
Catsimatidis Group’s appointment to the Management Committee being
facilitated through Thomas Kivisto.

Since the time of that letter, we would add the creation of semreorg com, a website set up
by the Catsimatidis Group in blatant violation of the UREC CA and in an obvious
attempt to inappropriately hijack the bankruptcy plan process from disinterested
fiduciaries. We also note the continued failure of the Catsimatidis Group to provide the
debtor with its plan.

The Catsimatidis Group should make no mistake about the determination of the
disinterested fiduciaries to carry out their duties to SemGroup’s true stakeholders --
which do not include the Kivisto/Ritchie/Catsimatidis interests. Absent a clear indication
from the Catsimatidis Group that it (i) recognizes that it has no economic interests or
rights in the debtor absent its offering up an acceptable bid for all or part of the debtors’
assets and (ii) agrees to cease its hindrance of a fair process, free of all conflicts, the
disinterested fiduciaries intend to seek assistance from the bankruptcy court in resolving
this matter.

With so much water under the bridge, we are skeptical that you will have success in
convincing your headstrong client to do the right thing, but we are available to discuss
this matter with you.

Sincerely,
Mickak B, Sl
Michael A. Saslaw / e

DALA54761 1V03\BQJF031.DOCYV73451.0005
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cc:  Management Committee
Terrence Ronan
Lisa Donahue
Jan Baker
Mark Chehi
Martin Sosland
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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark one)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2008

] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File No. 001-33868

UNITED REFINING ENERGY CORP.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 42-1732420
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

See Table of Additional Subsidiary Guarantor Registrants

823 Eleventh Ave, New York, New York 10019
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(212) 956-5803

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12 (b) of the Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered

Common Stock, $.0001 par value per share NYSE Alternext US
Common Stock Purchase Warrants NYSE Alternext US
Units consisting of one share of Common Stock and one Common Stock NYSE Alternext US

Purchase Warrant

Securities registered pursnant to Section 12 (g) of the Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.  Yes 1 No
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes 00 No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing
requirements for the past 90 days.  Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§229.405 of this chapter) is not contained herein, and
will not be contained, to the best of the registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part I1I of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting company. See
the definitions of “large accelerated filer”, “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company™ in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (check one):

Large accelerated filer O Accelerated filer O Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting Company O
(Do not check if a smaller
reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).  Yes No O

State the aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates computed by reference to the price at which the
common equity was last sold, or the average bid and asked price of such common equity, as of the last business day of the registrant’s most recently completed
second fiscal quartei. As of February 29, 2008, approximately $410,850,000.

As of December 1, 2008, 56,250,000 shares of the registrant’s Common Stock were outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE: None

Source: United Refining Ener, 10-K, December 01, 2008



Table of Contents

Item 1.

Item 1A.
Item 1B.
Item 2.
Item 3.
Item 4.

Item 5.
Item 6.
Item 7.

Item 7A.
Item 8.
Item 9.
Item 9A.
Item 9B.

Item 10.
Ttem 11.
{tem 12.
Item 13.
Item 14.

Item 15.

UNITED REFINING ENERGY CORP.
ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART

Business

Introduction

Overview and Market Opportunity: Refining/Petrochemical Sector
Management and Board Expertise

Effecting a Business Combination

Competition

Facilities

Employees

Risk Factors

Unresolved Staff Comments

Properties

Legal Proceedings

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

PART 11
Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Selected Financial Data

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Off-Balance Sheet Financing Arrangements

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Controls and Procedures
Other Information

PART 111

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Executive Compensation

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Principal Accounting Fees and Services

PART IV

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
Signatures

65
67
68
69
71

73
75

This Annual Report on Form 10-K (including documents incorporated by reference herein) contains statements with respect to our expectations
or beliefs as to future events. These types of statements are “forward-looking” and subject to uncertainties.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forward-looking statements. All statements other than statements of historical fact are, or may be deemed to be, forward looking
statements. Such forward-looking statements inciude statements regarding, among others, (a) our expectations about possible business combinations, (b) our
growth strategies, (c) our future financing plans, and (d) our anticipated needs for working capital. Forward-looking statements, which involve assumptions and
describe our future plans, strategies, and expectations, are generally identifiable by use of the words “may,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “anticipate,”
“approximate,” “estimate,” “believe,” “intend,” “plan,” “budget,” “could,” “forecast,” “might,” “predict,” “shall” or “project,” or the negative of these words or
other variations on these words or comparable terminology. This information may involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors that may
cause our actual results, performance, or achievements to be materially different from the future results, performance, or achievements expressed or implied by
any forward-looking statements. These statements may be found in this prospectus. Actual events or results may differ materially from those discussed in
forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including, without limitation, the risks outlined under “Risk Factors” and matters described in this
prospectus generally. In light of these risks and uncertainties, the events anticipated in the forward-looking statements may or may not occur.

7

Forward-looking statements are based on our current expectations and assumptions regarding our business, potential target businesses, the economy and
other future conditions. Because forward-looking statements relate to the future, by their nature, they are subject to inherent uncertainties, risks and changes in
circumstances that are difficult to predict. Our actual results may differ materially from those contemplated by the forward-looking statements. We caution you
therefore that you should not rely on any of these forward-looking statements as statements of historical fact or as guarantees or assurances of future
performance. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements include changes in local, regional,
national or global political, economic, business, competitive, market (supply and demand) and regulatory conditions and the following:

. our status as a development stage company;

. our liquidation prior to a business combination;

. the reduction of the proceeds held in the trust account due to third party claims;

. our selection of a prospective target business or asset;

. our issuance of our capital shares or incurrence of debt to complete a business combination;

. delisting of our securities from the NYSE Alternext US or the ability to have our securities listed on the NYSE Alternext US following our initial
business combination, .

. our ability to consummate an attractive business combination due to our limited resources and the significant competition for business combination
opportunities;
. conflicts of interest of our officers and directors;
. potential current or future affiliations of our officers and directors with competing businesses;
. our ability to obtain additional financing if necessary,
. the control by our existing stockholder of a substantial interest in us;
. the adverse effect the outstanding warrants and options may have on the market price of our common shares;
. the existence of registration rights with respect to the securities owned by our existing stockholder;
. the lack of a market for our securities;
. our being deemed an investment company;
3
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. our dependence on our key personnel;

. our dependence on a single company after our business combination;
. business and market outlook;

. our growth as a whole;

. our and our customers’ business strategies;

. environmental, permitting and other regulatory risks;

. foreign currency fluctuations and overall political risk in foreign jurisdictions;
. operating and capital expenditures by us and the energy industry;

. our competitive position;

. outcomes of legal proceedings;

. expected results of operations and/or financial position;

. future effective tax rates; and

. compliance with applicable laws.

These risks and others described under “Risk Factors” are not exhaustive.

Any forward-looking statement made by us in this prospectus speaks only as of the date on which we make it, and is expressly qualified in its entirety by
the foregoing cautionary statements. Factors or events that could cause our actual results to differ may emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for us to
predict all of them. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future developments or

otherwise.

Source: United Refining Ener, 10-K, December 01, 2008
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
Introduction

United Refining Energy Corp. (the “Company”, “we” or *“ys™) is a blank check company formed under the laws of Delaware on June 25, 2007. We were
formed for the purpose of acquiring, merging with, engaging in a capital stock exchange with, purchasing all or substantially all of the assets of, or engaging in
any other similar business combination of an unidentified operating business. We are focused on identifying a prospective target business in the energy industry
throughout the world, with a particular focus on businesses or assets involved in the refining of petroleum and specialized products (such as petrochemicals) and
services to the energy industry but our efforts in identifying a prospective target business will not be limited to the energy industry. Pursuant to our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation, we have until December 11, 2009 to consumimate a business combination or our existence will terminate and we will
dissolve and liquidate the company. If we have entered into a definitive agreement but anticipate that we will not be able to consummate a business combination
by December 11, 2009, we shall seek stockholder approval to extend the period of time to consummate a business combination by an additional six (6) months to
June 11, 2010 for the purpose of consummating such business combination. In order to extend the period of time to June 11, 2010, (i) a majority of our
outstanding shares of common stock and a majority of the shares of common stock voted by the public stockholders must approve an amendment to our amended
and restated certificate of incorporation extending our corporate life to June 11, 2010 and (ii) public stockholders owning no more than one share less than 40.0%
of the shares of common stock sold in our initial public offering may have voted against the proposed amendment and exercised their redemption rights, as
described in the prospectus relating to our initial public offering.

Our efforts are focused on target businesses with one or more of the following characteristics:
. Refining, distribution and marketing companies, including the production of petroleum and other related products.

. As we evaluate initial business combinations, we may consider various factors such as market pricing, quality and the
availability or various grades of crude oil, in addition to considering environmental factors and refinery maintenance. The
combination of the above factors will be enhanced by the ability of the business to efficiently select the most profitable feedstock
and product mix. We do not have a primary geographic focus, and we may seek to acquire refineries or interests in any market in
which we believe we could be competitive. We may also seek to capitalize on the cost advantages of heavy, sour crude oil to

light, sweet crude oil as a raw material to manufacture refined products.

. Energy service companies, including drilling, construction, pipeline, terminal and contracting businesses.

While we are focused on potential acquisition targets in the energy industry, we may also pursue opportunities in other industries involving businesses

outside of management’s expertise. The discussion below relating to the energy industry may be irrelevant if we pursue acquisition opportunities outside of this
industry.

Overview and Market Opportunity: Refining/Petrochemical Sector

Refining is the process of separating hydrocarbons present in crude oil and converting them into marketable finished petroleum products, such as gasoline
and diesel fuel. Crude oil is a raw material that is commonly referred to in terms of “heavy” or “Jjght” and “sweet” or «sour”. The more viscous crude oils are
“heavier” and those with high sulfur content are called “sour” (as opposed to low-sulfur «“sweet” crude). The heavier and/or more sour the crude, the more

difficult and time consuming it is to change into usable refined products. The type of crude oil that is used in the refining process is typically referred to as
feedstock. Refiners generate profits based on the spread between the type of crude they acquire and the products into which it is converted and the
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price at which they can sell the finished product. Typically, the heavier and more sour the crude, the cheaper the feedstock. Refiners that are configured to

convert and desulphurize the heavier feedstocks into refined products can take advantage of the less expensive feedstock, resulting in incremental gross margin
opportunities. This is referred to as a refiner’s complexity. Generally, the higher the complexity and more flexible the feedstock slate, the better positioned the
refinery is to make a profit.

We believe opportunities exist to acquire existing refineries that are in need of refurbishment or upgrades to meet worldwide demand and environmental
regulation. Our sponsor and our directors and officers’ combined extensive experience in operating, upgrading and determining the feedstock of refineries will
enable us to enhance future operating efficiencies of an acquired entity through upgrades, modifications or new feedstock mixes.

We believe that given our management’s prior experience, the energy industry will provide us with the best opportunity to consummate a business
combination. Our management team is experienced in sourcing, structuring, financing and consummating acquisitions, and has extensive contacts and sources
with public and private companies, private equity and venture funds, investment bankers, attorneys and accountants from which to generate substantial

acquisition opportunities.

To date, our efforts have been limited to organizational activities, our initial public offering and the search for a suitable business combination. As of the
date of this filing, we have not entered into any definitive agreement with any target company.

Management and Board Expertise

Our executive officers and directors have extensive experience in the energy industry as managers, principals, advisors or directors of companies operating .
in or providing services to the energy industry. In addition, they collectively comprise a formidable pool of expertise covering the key areas of the energy
industry, with experience in negotiating and structuring transactions in the areas in which we will attempt to compete. They jointly have more than 105 years of
total experience in sourcing, structuring, financing and consummating acquisitions and have contacts and sources with public and private companies, private
equity and venture funds, investment bankers, attorneys and accountants from which to generate substantial acquisition opportunities. We intend to leverage the
industry experience of our executive officers, including their extensive contacts, relationships and access to acquisition opportunities, by focusing our efforts on
identifying a prospective target business or businesses in the energy industry, and the refining sector in particular, and negotiating the terms of such transaction.

. Our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, John A. Catsimatidis, is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Red Apple Group, Inc., a
diversified holding company with interests in the energy industry, supermarkets, airplanes and finance. Mr. Catsimatidis founded Red Apple
Supermarkets, a single neighborhood grocery store in 1968. Through internal growth and a series of acquisitions, Mr. Catsimatidis has grown the
operation, under the brand name “Gristedes,” into Manhattan’s largest supermarket chain. Mr. Catsimatidis is also currently the Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of United Refining Company, 2 wholly-owned subsidiary of our sponsor and an integrated refiner and marketer
of petroleum products in western New York and northwestern Pennsylvania. Mr. Catsimatidis has held these positions for over 20 years, when his
wholly-owned company, United Acquisition Corp., purchased United Refining, Inc., United Refining Company’s parent and our sponsor, while
United Refining Company was in bankruptcy proceedings. Mr. Catsimatidis negotiated a plan of reorganization in bankruptcy proceedings, where
creditors received 100% of their proven claims plus post-petition interest. He also served as President of United Refining Company from February
1986 until September 1996.

. Our President and a director of our company, Myron L. Turfitt, is currently President and Chief Operating Officer of United Refining Company, and
has held these positions since September 1996,
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and has held several executive positions at United Refining Company since 1981. Mr. Turfitt is a CPA with over 30 years of financial and
operations experience in all phases of the petroleum business including exploration and production, refining and retail marketing. His experience
covers both fully-integrated major oil companies and large independents.

+  Our Chief Financial Officer, James E. Murphy, is currently Chief Financial Officer of United Refining Company and has held this position since
1997. He has held other accounting and internal auditing positions with United Refining Company, including Vice President—Finance and Director
of Internal Auditing. Mr. Murphy is a CPA, and prior to joining United Refining Company, had over 15 years experience in accounting and auditing
with banking, public accounting and manufacturing companies. :

«  Our Secretary, John R. Wagner, is currently the Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary to each of United Refining Company, United
Acquisition Corp., and certain of its subsidiaries, and has held these positions since 1997. Prior to joining United Refining Company, Mr. Wagner
served as Counsel to Dollar Bank, F.S.B. from 1988 to 1997.

«  Our director, Theodore P. Nikolis, has been a director since July 2007. He is currently Senior Counsel to The Royal Bank of Scotland (LSE:RBS),
and has held this position since 2005. Approximately 20 years ago, Mr. Nikolis began his involvement in the electric power sector as a project
finance attorney at the firm of Chadbourne & Parke. From January 2000 to October 2005, Mr. Nikolis was a principal of Nikolis & Associates,
LLC, a consulting firm focused on distressed debt providing turnaround strategies, debt restructuring, collateral sales and bankruptcy options for the
maximization of asset and/or collateral value in distressed situations. From January 2003 to October 2005, Mr. Nikolis was also a member of
Odysseus Energy Inc., a private equity group targeting distressed electric generating facilities. From March 1998 to January 2000, Mr. Nikolis
managed the closure of Coutts & Co.’s New York office, the private banking subsidiary of NatWest. Mr. Nikolis previously managed the short term
operation, financial restructuring and ultimate liquidation of over $1 billion of distressed co-generation and independent power production facilities.

- Our director, Michael Bilirakis, has been a director since September 2007. In January 2007, Mr. Bilirakis returned to the practice of law, which he
previously engaged in from 1968 to 1984, and established the Bilirakis Law Group. From January 1983 until his retirement in January 2007,
Mr. Bilirakis served in the U.S. House of Representatives as a representative of the Ninth District of Florida. During his tenure, Mr. Bilirakis served
on the House Energy and Commerce Committee for 22 years. From 1992 to 2006, Mr. Bilirakis served as a member of the North Atlantic Treat
Organization (NATO) Parliamentary Assembly, which brings together members of the U.S. Congress with members of parliaments throughout
NATO to facilitate awareness and understanding of key security issues and to provide transparency of NATO policies.

Subsequent to the consummation of a business combination, we believe that the strengths of our officers and directors, particularly their extensive
operations experience in the energy industry, will be valuable with respect to operating any business we may acquire.

Effecting a Business Combination

General

We were formed for the purpose of acquiring, merging with, engaging in a capital stock exchange with, purchasing all or substantially all of the assets of,
or engaging in any other similar business combination of an unidentified operating business. We are focused on identifying a prospective target business in the
energy industry throughout the world, with a particular focus on businesses or assets involved in the refining of petroleum and specialized products (such as
petrochemicals) and services to the energy industry but our efforts in identifying a prospective target business will not be limited to the energy industry.

Subject to the requirement that our business combination must be with a target business having a fair market value that is at least 80.0% of our net assets
held in the trust account (exclusive of the underwriters’ deferred
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underwriting compensation plus interest thereon, net of taxes payable, held in the trust account) at the time of such acquisition, there are no limitations on the

type of investments we can make or the percentage of our total assets that may be invested in any one investment. Accordingly, other than the requirement that
our business combination must be with a target business having a fair market value that is at least 80.0% of our net assets held in the trust account (exclusive of
the underwriters’ deferred underwriting compensation plus interest thereon, net of taxes payable, held in the trust account) at the time of such acquisition, our
investment policies may be changed from time to time at the discretion of our board of directors, without a vote of our stockholders. Additionally, no limits have
been set on the concentration of investments in any location or product type.

Our business combination may take the form of a joint venture wherein we acquire less than a 100.0% ownership interest in certain properties, assets or
entities. We intend to pursue a transaction in which our stockholders would continue to own a controlling interest of our company. However, we could pursue a
transaction, such as a reverse merger or other similar transaction, in which we issue a substantial number of new shares and, as a result, our stockholders
immediately prior to such transaction could own less than a majority of our outstanding shares subsequent to such transaction. In such case, the remaining
ownership interest may be held by third parties who may or may not have been involved with the properties, assets or entities prior to our acquisition of such
ownership interest. With a joint venture, we will face additional risks, including the additional costs and time required to investigate and otherwise conduct due
diligence on potential joint venture partners and to negotiate joint venture agreements. Moreover, the subsequent management and control of a joint venture will
entail risks associated with multiple owners and decision makers.

We have not entered into any definitive agreement with a target business

We continue to search for a potential candidate for a business combination and we have not entered into any definitive agreements with any target business
for a business combination.

Subject to the limitation that a target business have a fair market value of at least 80.0% of our net assets held in the trust account (exclusive of the
underwriters’ deferred underwriting compensation plus interest thereon, net of taxes payable, held in the trust account) at the time of the acquisition, as described
below in more detail, we will have virtually unrestricted flexibility in identifying and selecting a prospective transaction candidate. Although our management
will endeavor to evaluate the possible merits and risks inherent in a particular target company, we cannot assure you that we will properly ascertain or assess all
significant risk factors. :

Sources of target businesses

Target business candidates have be brought to our attention from various unaffiliated sources, including investment bankers, venture capital funds, private
equity funds, leveraged buyout funds, management buyout funds and other members of the financial community who are aware that we are seeking a business
combination partner via public relations and marketing efforts, direct contact by management or other similar efforts, who may present solicited or unsolicited
proposals. Any finder or broker would only be paid a fee upon the consummation of a business combination. The fee to be paid to such persons would be a
percentage of the fair market value of the transaction with the percentage to be determined in an arm’s length negotiation between the finder or broker and us
based on market conditions at the time we enter into an agreement with such finder or broker. Target businesses also may be brought to our attention by our
officers and directors, through their network of joint venture partners and other industry relationships located in the United States and elsewhere that regularly, in
the course of their daily business activities, see nitmerous varied opportunities. Target businesses may also be brought to our attention by unaffiliated sources
such as brokers or others as a result of being solicited by us through calls or mailings. Unaffiliated sources, such as brokers may also introduce us to target
businesses they think we may be interested in on an unsolicited basis, since many of these sources will have read this prospectus and know what types of
businesses we are targeting. In no event will any of our existing officers,
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directors or stockholders or any entity with which they are affiliated, be paid any finder’s fee, consulting fee or any other form of compensation, including the
jssuance of any securities of the company, prior to, or for any services they render, in order to effectuate the consummation of a business combination.

Selection of a target business and structuring of a business combination

Subject to the requirement that our business combination must be with a target business having a fair market value that is equal to at least 80.0% of our net
assets held in the trust account (exclusive of the underwriters” deferred underwriting compensation plus interest thereon, net of taxes payable, held in the trust
account) at the time of such acquisition, our management has virtually unrestricted flexibility in identifying and selecting prospective target businesses. In
evaluating a prospective target business, our management may consider, among other factors, the following factors likely to affect the performance of the
investment:

. earnings and growth potential;

. experience and skill of management and availability of additional personnel,
. capital requirements;

. competitive position;

. financial condition and results of operation;

. barriers to entry;

. stage of development of the products, processes or services;

. breadth of services offered;

. degree of current or potential market acceptance of the services;
. regulatory environment of the industry; and

. costs associated with effecting the business combination.

These criteria are not intended to be exhaustive. Any evaluation relating to the merits of a particular business combination will be based, to the extent
relevant, on the above factors as well as other considerations deemed relevant by our management in effecting a business combination consistent with our
business objective. In evaluating a prospective target business, we will conduct an extensive due diligence review which will encompass, among other things, a
review of all relevant financial and other information which is made available to us. We also seek to have all owners of any prospective target business execute
agreements with us waiving any right, title, interest or claim of any kind in or to any monies held in the trust account. If any prospective business or owner
refused to execute such agreement, it is unlikely we would continue negotiations with such business or owner.

While we are focused on potential acquisition targets in the energy industry, we may also pursue opportunities in other industries. If an attractive
acquisition opportunity is identified in another industry prior to the time we identify an acquisition opportunity in the energy industry, we may pursue such other
opportunity. There is no time or date certain or monetary milestone associated with when we may begin looking for acquisition opportunities outside of the
energy industry. To the extent we are able to identify multiple acquisition targets and options as to which business or assets to acquire as part of an initial
transaction, we will seek to consummate the acquisition which is most attractive and provides the greatest opportunity for creating stockholder value. The
determination of which entity is the most attractive will be based on our analysis of a variety of factors, including whether such acquisition would be in the best
interests of our securityholders, the purchase price, the terms of the sale, the perceived quality of the assets and the likelihood that the transaction will close. If we
are unable to consummate a business combination within the allotted time periods set forth in
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this prospectus and in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, we will liquidate our trust account and any other assets to our public stockholders.

The time and costs required to select and evaluate a particular target business and to structure and complete the business combination cannot presently be
ascertained with any degree of certainty. Any costs incurred with respect to the identification and evaluation of a prospective target business with which a
business combination is not ultimately completed will result in a loss to us and reduce the amount of capital available to otherwise complete a business
combination. While we may pay fees or compensation to third parties for their efforts in introducing us to a potential target business, in no event, however, will
we pay any of our existing officers, directors or stockholders or any entity with which they are affiliated any finder’s fee or other compensation, including in the
form of the company’s securities, for services rendered to us or in connection with the consummation of the initial business combination.

Fair market value of target business

The initial target business that we acquire must have a fair market value equal to at least 80.0% of our net assets held in the trust account (exclusive of the
underwriters’ deferred underwriting compensation plus interest thereon, net of taxes payable, held in the trust account) at the time of such acquisition, subject to
the redemption rights described below, although we may acquire a target business whose fair market value significantly exceeds 80.0% of our net assets held in
the trust account (exclusive of the underwriters’ deferred underwriting compensation plus interest thereon, net of taxes payable, held in the trust account). To
accomplish this, we may seek to raise additional funds through credit facilities or other secured financings or a private offering of debt or equity securities if such
funds are required to consummate such a business combination. To date, we have not had any preliminary discussions, or made any agreements or arrangements,
with respect to financing arrangements with any third party.

Prior to entering into an agreement for a target business, the fair market value of such target business will be determined by our board of directors based
upon standards generally accepted by the financial community, such as actual and potential sales, earnings and cash flow and book value. If our board is not able
to independently determine that the target business has a sufficient fair market value, we will obtain an opinion from an independent investment banking firm
which is a member of FINRA and is reasonably acceptable to the representative of the underwriters in our initial public offering, stating whether the fair market
value meets the 80.0% of net assets held in the trust account at the time of the acquisition threshold. If such an opinion is obtained, we anticipate distributing
copies, or making a copy of such opinion available, to our stockholders. We will not be required to obtain an opinion from a third party as to the fair market value
if our board of directors independently determines that the target business complies with the 80.0% threshold unless there is a conflict of interest with respect to
the transaction.

To the extent that our business combination consists of the acquisition of assets that do not have historical financial information, and they are refining
assets, we will determine whether such business combination has a fair market value of at least 80.0% of the amount in our trust account based on the value of
the assets, as determined by the advice of our advisors consistent with industry practice. Such valuation will factor in, among other things, the revenue stream
generated from ongoing operations and analysis of recent public transactions providing valuation criteria based on the Nelson Complexity Index and/or valuation
based on dollar value per barrel of crude thruput capacity.

Possible lack of business diversification

Our business combination must be with a target business which satisfies the minimum valuation standard at the time of such acquisition, as discussed
above. Consequently, we expect to have the ability to effect only a single business combination, although this process may entail the simultancous acquisitions of
several businesses. Therefore, at least initially, the prospects for our success may be entirely dependent upon the future :
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performance of a single business operation. Unlike other entities that may have the resources to complete several business combinations of entities or assets
operating in multiple industries or multiple areas of a single industry, it is probable that we will not have the resources to diversify our operations or benefit from
the possible spreading of risks or offsetting of losses. By consummating a business combination with only a single entity or asset, our lack of diversification may:

. subject us to numerous economic, competitive and regulatory developments, any or all of which may have a substantial adverse impact upon the
particular industry in which we may operate subsequent to a business combination; and

. result in our dependency upon the development or market acceptance of a single or limited number of products, processes or services.

In the event we ultimately determine to simultaneously acquire several businesses or assets and such businesses or assets are owned by different sellers, we
will need for each of such sellers to agree that our purchase of its business or assets is contingent on the simultaneous closings of the other acquisitions, which
may make it more difficult for us, and delay our ability, to complete the business combination. With multiple acquisitions, we could also face additional risks,
including additional burdens and costs with respect to possible multiple negotiations and due diligence investigations (if there are multiple sellers) and the
additional risks associated with the subsequent assimilation of the businesses or assets into a single operating business.

Limited ability to evaluate the target business’s management

Although we intend to closely scrutinize the incumbent management of a prospective target business when evaluating the desirability of effecting a
business combination, we cannot assure you that our assessment will prove to be correct. In addition, we cannot assure you that new members that join our
management following a business combination will have the necessary skills, qualifications or abilities to manage a public company. Furthermore, the future role
of our officers and directors, if any, in the target business following a business combination cannot presently be stated with any certainty. While our current
officers and directors may remain associated in senior management or advisory positions with us following a business combination, they may not devote their
full time and efforts to our affairs subsequent to a business combination. Moreover, they would only be able to remain with the company after the consummation
of a business combination if they are able to negotiate employment or consulting agreements in connection with such business combination, which would be
negotiated at the same time as the business combination negotiations are being conducted and which may be a term of the business combination. Such
negotiations would take place simultaneously with the negotiation of the business combination and could provide for such individuals to receive compensation in
the form of cash payments and/or our securities for services they would render to the company after the consummation of the business combination. While the
personal and financial interests of such individuals may influence their motivation in identifying and selecting a target business, the ability of such individuals to
remain with the company after the consummation of a business combination will not be the determining factor in our decision as to whether or not we will
proceed with any potential business combination. Additionally, we cannot assure you that our officers and directors will have significant experience or
knowledge relating to the operations of the particular target business.

Opportunity for stockholder approval of business combination

Prior to the completion of our busiriess combination, we will submit the transaction to our stockholders for approval, even if the nature of the acquisition is
such as would not ordinarily require stockholder approval under applicable state law. In connection with seeking stockholder approval of a business combination,
we will also submit to our stockholders for approval a proposal to amend our amended and restated certificate of incorporation to provide for our corporate life to
continue perpetually following the consummation of such :
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business combination. Any vote to extend the corporate life to continue perpetually following the consummation of a business combination will be taken only if
the business combination is approved. We will only consummate a business combination if stockholders vote both in favor of such business combination and our
amendment to extend our corporate life. Under Delaware law, the approval of the proposal to amend our amended and restated certificate of incorporation to
provide for our perpetual existence in connection with a business combination would require the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares of common stock
outstanding. In connection with seeking stockholder approval of a business combination, we will furnish our stockholders with proxy solicitation materials
prepared in accordance with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which, among other matters, will include a description of the operations of the
target business and, if applicable, historical financial statements of a target business.

In connection with the stockholder vote required to approve any business combination, our existing stockholder has agreed to vote all of its shares of
common stock owned by it prior to our initial public offering in accordance with a majority of the public stockholders who vote at the special or annual meeting
called for the purpose of approving a business combination. Our existing stockholder and our officers and directors have also agreed that if they acquire shares of
common stock in or following completion of our initial public offering, they will vote such acquired shares of common stock in favor of a business combination.
We will proceed with the business combination only if a majority of the shares of common stock voted by the public stockholders are voted in favor of the
business combination and public stockholders owning less than 40.0% of the shares of common stock sold in our initial public offering exercise their redemption
rights on a cumulative basis. Voting against the extended period or the business combination alone will not result in redemption of a stockholder’s shares of
common stock into a pro rata share of the trust account. Such stockholder must have also exercised its redemption rights described below.

Redemption rights

At the time we seek stockholder approval of the extended period or of the initial business combination, we will offer to each public stockholder the right to
have such stockholder’s shares of common stock redeemed for cash if the stockholder votes against the extended period or the business combination and the
amendment to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation is approved and filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware or the business combination is
approved and completed. The actual per-share redemption price will be equal to the amount in the trust account, inclusive of any interest income earned on the
trust account (but net of: (i) taxes payable on the interest income and State of Delaware franchise taxes and (ii) up to $3,700,000 of interest income released to us
to fund our working capital, divided by the number of shares of common stock sold in our initial public offering). Without taking into account interest earned on
the trust account or taxes payable on such interest, the initial per-share redemption price would be approximately $9.97. Because the initial per share redemption
price is $9.97 per share (plus any interest carned on the trust account but net of: (i) taxes payable on the interest income and State of Delaware franchise taxes
and (ii) up to $3,700,000 of interest income released to us to fund our working capital), which may be lower than the market price of the common stock on the
date of the redemption, there may be a disincentive on the part of public stockholders to exercise their redemption rights.

If a business combination is approved, stockholders that vote against the extended period or the business combination and elect to redeem their shares of
common stock for cash will be entitled to receive their pro-rata portion of the $15,750,000 (8.35 per share) of the underwriters’ deferred underwriting
compensation held in the trust account along with any accrued interest thereon, net of taxes payable thercon.

Whether the redemption threshold is exceeded will be determined by adding the percentage of public stockholders that redeem their shares of common
stock in connection with the approval of the extended period to the percentage of public stockholders that redeem their shares of common stock in connection
with a proposed business combination. In the event that 40.0% or more of the public stockholders vote against a proposal to approve the extended period and
exercise their redemption rights, our corporate life will not be extended and our company’s existence will be terminated if we cannot consummate a business
combination within the appropriate time period. If

12

Source: United Refining Ener, 10-K, December 01, 2008



Table of Contents

the extended period is approved and less than 40.0% of our public stockholders vote against the extended period and exercise their redemption rights (or if we
never solicit stockholder approval of an extended period), then we shall proceed with a business combination if, in addition to other necessary approvals, the
number of public stockholders voting against the proposed business combination and exercising their redemption rights does not exceed 40.0% of the number of
shares held by our public stockholders on a cumulative basis with the stockholders who previously exercised their redemption rights in connection with the
proposal to approve the extended period, if applicable.

An eligible stockholder may request redemption at any time after the mailing to our stockholders of the proxy statement prior to the vote taken with respect
to the extended period or a proposed business combination at a meeting held for that purpose, but the request will not be granted unless the stockholder votes
against the extended period or the business combination and the amendment to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation is approved and filed with
the Secretary of State of Delaware or the business combination is approved and completed. Additionally, we may require public stockholders, whether they are a
record holder or hold their shares in “street name,” to either tender their certificates to our transfer agent at any time through the vote on the extended period or
the business combination or to deliver their shares to the transfer agent electronically using Depository Trust Company’s DWAC (Deposit/Withdrawal At
Custodian) System, at the holder’s option. The proxy solicitation materials that we will furnish to stockholders in connection with the vote for the extended
period or any proposed business combination will indicate whether we are requiring stockholders to satisfy such certification and delivery requirements.
Accordingly, a stockholder would have from the time we send out our proxy statement through the vote on the extended period or the business combination to
tender his shares if he wishes to seek to exercise his redemption rights. This time period varies depending on the specific facts of each transaction. However, as
the delivery process can be accomplished by the stockholder, whether or not he is a record holder or his shares are held in “street name,” in a matter of hours by
simply contacting the transfer agent or his broker and requesting delivery of his shares through the DWAC System, we believe this time period is sufficient for an
average investor. However, because we do not have any control over this process, it may take significantly longer than we anticipated. Traditionally, in order to
perfect redemption rights in connection with a blank check company’s business combination, a holder could simply vote against a proposed business
combination and check a box on the proxy card indicating such holder was seeking to redeem. After the business combination was approved, the company would
contact such stockholder to arrange for him to deliver his certificate to verify ownership. As a result, the stockholder then had an “option window” after the
consummation of the business combination during which he could monitor the price of the stock in the market. If the price rose above the redemption price, he
could sell his shares in the open market before actually delivering his shares to the company for cancellation. The requirement for physical or electronic delivery
prior to the meeting ensures that a redeeming holder’s election to redeem is irrevocable once the extended period or the business combination is approved. There
is a nominal cost associated with the above-referenced tendering process and the act of certificating the shares or delivering them through the DWAC system.
The transfer agent will typically charge the tendering broker $35.00 and it would be up to the broker whether or not to pass this cost on to the redeeming holder.
However, this fee would be incurred regardless of whether or not we require holders seeking to exercise redemption rights to tender their shares prior to the
meeting. The need to deliver shares is a requirement of redemption regardless of the timing of when such delivery must be effectuated. However, in the event we
require holders seeking to exercise redemption rights to tender their shares prior to the meeting and the extended period is not approved or the proposed business
combination is not consummated (and therefore we would not be obligated to redeem the tendered shares), this may result in an increased cost to stockholders
when compared to the traditional process if the tendering broker passes the cost on to the redeeming holder.

Any request for redemption, once made, may be withdrawn at any time up to the date of the meeting. Furthermore, if a stockholder delivered his certificate
for redemption and subsequently decided prior to the meeting not to elect redemption, he may simply request that the transfer agent return the certificate
(physically or electronically). It is anticipated that the funds to be distributed to stockholders entitled to redeem their shares who elect redemption will be
distributed promptly after the filing of an amendment to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation with the Secretary of State of Delaware or the
completion of a business combination, as the case may be. Public stockholders who redeem their stock into their share of the trust account still have the right to

exercise any warrants they still hold.
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If, notwithstanding a stockholder’s vote, the extended period is approved or the proposed business combination is consummated, then such stockholder
will be entitled to receive $9.97 per share plus interest earned on the trust account (net of: (i) taxes payable on the interest earned on the trust account and State of
Delaware franchise taxes and (ii) up to $3,700,000 of interest income released to us to fund our working capital) as of date which is two business days prior to the
filing of an amendment to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation with the Secretary of State of Delaware or the proposed consummation of the
business combination. If a stockholder exercises his redemption rights, then he will be exchanging his shares of our common stock for cash and will no longer
own these shares of common stock.

If a vote on our initial business combination is held and the business combination is not approved, we may continue to try to consummate a business
combination with a different target until December 11, 2009 or until June 11, 2010 in the event our stockholders approve the extended period. If the extended
period is not approved or the initial business combination is not approved or completed for any reason, then public stockholders voting against our initial
business combination who exercised their redemption rights would not be entitled to redeem their shares of common stock into a pro rata share of the aggregate
amount then on deposit in the trust account. In such case, if we have required public stockholders to tender their certificates prior to the meeting, we will
promptly return such certificates to the tendering public stockholder. Public stockholders would be entitled to receive their pro rata share of the aggregate amount
on deposit in the trust account only in the event that the extended period they voted against is approved and an amendment to our amended and restated
certificate of incorporation is filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware or the initial business combination they voted against was duly approved and
subsequently completed, or in connection with our liquidation. If a stockholder redeems his shares of common stock, he will still have the right to exercise the
warrants received as part of the units purchased in the offering in accordance with the terms hereof. If the extended period is not approved or the proposed
business combination is not consummated then a stockholder’s shares will not be redeemed for cash, even if such stockholder elected to redeem.

Liquidation if no business combination

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that we will continue in existence only until December 11, 2009. This provision may not be
amended except in connection with a proposal to approve the extended period or the consummation of a business combination. If we have not completed a
business combination by such date, as extended, our corporate existence will cease except for the purposes of winding up our affairs liquidating, pursuant to
Section 278 of the Delaware General Corporation Law. This has the same effect as if our board of directors and stockholders had formally voted to approve our
dissolution pursuant to Section 275 of the Delaware General Corporation Law. Accordingly, limiting our corporate existence to a specified date as permitted by
Section 102(b)(5) of the Delaware General Corporation Law removes the necessity to comply with the formal procedures set forth in Section 275 (which would
have required our board of directors and stockholders to formally vote to approve our dissolution and liquidation and to have filed a certificate of dissolution with
the Delaware Secretary of State). We view this provision terminating our corporate existence on December 11, 2009 or June 11, 2010 in the event the
stockholders approve the extended period as an obligation to our stockholders and our officers and directors have agreed they will not propose, or vote in favor
of, any amendment to these provisions other than in connection with a proposal to approve the extended period or the consummation of a business combination.

A liquidation after our existence terminates by operation of law would occur in the event that a business combination is not consummated by
December 11, 2009 or June 11, 2010 in the event our public stockholders approve the extended period. In the event we liquidate after termination of our
existence, we anticipate notifying the trustee of the trust account to begin liquidating such assets promptly after such date and anticipate it will take no more than
10 business days to effectuate such distribution.

United Refining, Inc., our sponsor, has waived its right to participate in any distribution with respect to shares of common stock owned by it immediately
prior to our initial public offering or upon our dissolution and
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liquidation if we fail to consummate a business combination, including with respect to the common stock underlying all warrants it owns. There will be no
distribution with respect to our warrants which will expire worthless. We expect that all costs associated with the implementation and compietion of our
liquidation will be funded by any remaining net assets outside of the trust account although we cannot assure you that there will be sufficient funds for such
purpose. If such funds are insufficient, our sponsor has agreed to advance us the funds necessary to complete such liquidation (currently anticipated to be no
more than approximately $15,000) in the case of a liquidation after our termination of existence by operation of law on December 11, 2009 or June 11, 2010 in
the event our stockholders approve the extended period and has agreed not to seck repayment for such expenses.

If we were to expend all of the net proceeds of this offering, other than the proceeds deposited in the trust account, and without taking into account interest,
if any, earned on the trust account, the initial per-share liquidation price would be approximately $9.97 (of which approximately $0.35 per share is attributable to
the underwriters’ deferred underwriting compensation), or $0.03 less than the per-unit offering price of $10.00 in our initial public offering. There can be no
assurance that any redeeming stockholder will receive equal to or more than his, her or its full invested amount. The proceeds deposited in the trust account
could, however, become subject to the claims of our creditors which would have higher priority than the claims of our public stockholders. We cannot assure you
that the actual per-share liquidation price will not be less than approximately $9.97, plus interest (net of: (i) taxes payable on the interest income and State of
Delaware franchise taxes and (ii) up to-$3,700,000 of interest income released to us to fund our working capital), due to claims of creditors. Although we will
seek to have all vendors, service providers, prospective target businesses or other entities we engage execute agreements with us waiving any right, title, interest
or claim of any kind in or to any monies held in the trust account for the benefit of our public stockholders, there is no guarantee that they will execute such
agreements or even if they execute such agreements that they would be prevented from bringing claims against the trust account including but not limited to
fraudulent inducement, breach of fiduciary responsibility or other similar claims, as well as claims challenging the enforceability of the waiver, in each case in
order to gain an advantage with a claim against our assets, including the funds held in the trust account. If any third party refused to execute an agreement
waiving such claims to the monies held in the trust account, we will perform an analysis of the alternatives available to us if we chose not to engage such third
party and evaluate if such engagement would be in the best interest of our stockholders if such third party refused to waive such claims. Examples of possible
instances where we may engage a third party that refused to execute a waiver include the engagement of a third party consultant whose particular expertise or
skills are believed by management to be significantly superior to those of other consultants that would agree to execute a waiver or in cases where management is
unable to find a provider of required services willing to provide the waiver. In any event, our management will perform an analysis of the alternatives available to
it and would only enter into an agreement with a third party that did not execute a waiver if management believed that such third party’s engagement would be
significantly more beneficial to us than any alternative. In addition, there is no guarantee that such entities will agree to waive any claims they may have in the
future as a result of, or arising out of, any negotiations, contracts or agreements with us and will not seek recourse against the trust account for any reason.

In order to protect the amounts held in the trust account, our sponsor, United Refining, Inc., has agreed to indemnify us for claims of creditors, vendors,
service providers and target businesses that have not executed a valid and binding waiver of their right to seek payment of amounts due to them out of the trust
account to the extent necessary to maintain $9.97 per share in the trust account. Additionatly, the underwriters of our initial public offering have agreed to forfeit
any rights or claims against the proceeds held in the trust account which includes a portion of their underwriters’ discount. Based on information we have
obtained from our sponsor, we currently believe that our sponsor is of substantial means and capable of funding a shortfall in our trust account, even though we
have not asked it to reserve for such an eventuality. We cannot assure you, however, the sponsor would be able to satisfy those obligations.

In the event that the proceeds in the trust account are reduced and our sponsor asserts that it is unable to satisfy its obligations or that it has no
indemnification obligations related to a particular claim, our independent
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directors will determine whether to take legal action against our sponsor to enforce its indemnification obligations. While we currently expect that our
independent directors would take legal action on our behalf against our sponsor to enforce its indemnification obligations to us, it is possible that our independent
directors in exercising their business judgment may choose not to do so in any particular instance. Accordingly, we cannot assure you that due to claims of
creditors the actual per share liquidation price will not be less than $9.97 per share.

We will seek to reduce the possibility that our sponsor will have to indemnify the trust account due to claims of creditors by endeavoring to have all
vendors, service providers and prospective target businesses as well as other entities execute agreements with us waiving any right, title, interest or claim of any
kind in or to monies held in the trust account. We also will have access to up to $3,850,000 (comprised of $150,000 of offering proceeds held outside of the trust
account and up to $3,700,000 of interest income (net of taxes payable on the interest income and State of Delaware franchise taxes) with which to pay any such
potential claims (including costs and expenses incurred in connection with our liquidation after the termination of our existence by operation of faw on
December 11, 2009 or June 11, 2010 in the event our stockholders approve the extended period, currently estimated at up to $15,000). In the event we obtain a
valid and enforceable waiver of any right, title, interest or claim of any kind in or to any monies held in the trust account for the benefit of our stockholders from
a vendor, service provider, prospective target business or other entity, the indemnification from our sponsor will not be available. In the event that we liquidate
and it is subsequently determined that the reserve for claims and liabilities is insufficient, stockholders who received a return of funds from the liquidation of our
trust account could be liable for claims made by creditors.

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, stockholders may be held liable for claims by third parties against a corporation to the extent of
distributions received by them in a dissolution. If the corporation complies with certain procedures set forth in Section 280 of the Delaware General Corporation
Law intended to ensure that it makes reasonable provision for all claims against it, including a 60-day notice period during which any third-party claims can be
brought against the corporation, a 90-day period during which the corporation may reject any claims brought, and an additional 150-day waiting period before
any liquidating distributions are made to stockholders, any liability of stockholders with respect to a liquidating distribution is limited to the lesser of such
stockholder’s pro rata share of the claim or the amount distributed to the stockholder, and any liability of the stockholder would be barred after the third
anniversary of the dissolution. However, as stated above, if we do not effect a business combination by December 11, 2009 or June 11, 2010 in the event our
stockholders approve the extended period, it is our intention to make liquidating distributions to our stockholders as soon as reasonably possible after such time
period and, therefore, we do not intend to comply with those procedures. As such, our stockholders could potentially be liable for any claims to the extent of
distributions received by them and any liability of our stockholders may extend well beyond the third anniversary of such date. Because we will not be
complying with Section 280, Section 281(b) of the Delaware General Corporation Law requires us to adopt a plan that will provide for our payment, based on
facts known to us at such time, of (i) all existing claims, (ii) all pending claims and (iii) all claims that may be potentially brought against us within the
subsequent 10 years. Accordingly, we would be required to provide for any claims of creditors known to us at that time or those that we believe could be
potentially brought against us within the subsequent 10 years prior to our distributing the funds in the trust account to our public stockholders. We have not
assumed that we will have to provide for payment on any claims that may potentially be brought against us within the subsequent 10 years due to the speculative
nature of such an assumption. However, because we are a blank check company, rather than an operating company, and our operations are limited to searching
for prospective target businesses to acquire, the only likely claims to arise would be from our vendors (such as accountants, lawyers, investment bankers, etc.) or
potential target businesses. As described above, pursuant to the obligation contained in our underwriting agreement, we will seek to have all vendors, service
providers and prospective target businesses execute agreements with us waiving any right, title, interest or claim of any kind in or to any monies held in the trust
account. As a result of this obligation, the claims that could be made against us are significantly limited and the likelihood that any claim that would result in any
liability extending to the trust account is remote.
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If we are forced to file a bankruptcy case or an involuntary bankruptcy case is filed against us which is not dismissed, the proceeds held in the trust account

could be subject to applicable bankruptcy law, and may be included in our bankruptcy estate and subject to the claims of third parties with priority over the
claims of our stockholders. To the extent any bankruptcy claims deplete the trust account, we cannot assure you we will be able to return to our public
stockholders at least $9.97 per share. Additionally, if we are forced to file a bankruptcy case or an involuntary bankruptcy case is filed against us which is not
dismissed, any distributions received by stockholders could be viewed under applicable debtor/creditor and/or bankruptcy laws as either a “preferential transfer”
or a “fraudulent conveyance.” As a result, a bankruptcy court could seek to recover all amounts received by our stockholders. Furthermore, because we intend to
distribute the proceeds held in the trust account to our public stockholders promptly after the termination of our corporate existence, this may be viewed or
interpreted as giving preference to our public stockholders over any potential creditors with respect to access to or distributions from our assets. Furthermore, our
board may be viewed as having breached its fiduciary duty to our creditors and/or may have acted in bad faith, and thereby exposing itself and our company to
claims of punitive damages, by paying public stockholders from the trust account prior to addressing the claims of creditors. We cannot assure you that claims
will not be brought against us for these reasons.

Our public stockholders will be entitled to receive funds from the trust account only in the event of our liquidation or if they seek to redeem their
respective shares of common stock into cash upon the approval of the extended period or a business combination which the stockholder voted against and which
is filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware or which is completed by us. In no other circumstances will a stockholder have any right or interest of any kind to
or in the trust account. Voting against the extended period or the business combination alone will not result in redemption of a stockholder’s shares of common
stock into a pro rata share of the trust account. Such stockholder must have also exercised its redemption rights described above.

Competition

We have encountered intense competition from other entities having a business objective similar to ours, including other blank check companies and other
entities, domestic and international, competing for the type of businesses that we may intend to acquire. Many of these individuals and entities are well
established and have extensive experience in identifying and effecting, directly or indirectly, acquisitions of companies operating in or providing services to the
energy industry. Many of these competitors possess greater technical, human and other resources, or more local industry knowledge, than we do and our financial
resources will be relatively limited when contrasted with those of many of these competitors. Our ability to compete with respect to large acquisitions is limited
by our available financial resources, giving a competitive advantage to other acquirers with greater resources.

Our competitors may adopt transaction structures similar to ours, which would decrease our competitive advantage in offering flexible transaction terms.
In addition, the number of entities and the amount of funds competing for suitable investment properties, assets and entities may increase, resulting in increased
demand and increased prices paid for such investments. If we pay higher prices for a target business, our profitability may decrease and we may experience a
lower return on our investments. Increased competition may also preclude us from acquiring those properties, assets and entities that would generate the most

attractive returns to us.

Further, the following may not be viewed favorably by certain target businesses:

. our obligation to seek stockholder approval of a business combination or obtain the necessary financial information to be included in the proxy
statement to be sent to stockholders in connection with such business combination may delay or prevent the completion of a transaction;

. our obligation to redeem into cash shares of common stock held by our public stockholders in certain instances may reduce the resources available
to us for a business combination;

. the requirement to acquire assets or an operating business that has a fair market value equal to at least 80.0% of our net assets held in the trust
account (exclusive of the underwriters’ deferred underwriting
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compensation plus interest thereon, net of taxes payable, held in the trust account) at the time of the acquisition could require us to acquire several
assets or closely related operating businesses at the same time, all of which sales would be contingent on the closings of the other sales, which could
make it more difficult to consummate the business combination; and

. our outstanding warrants and the potential future dilution they represent, may not be viewed favorably by certain target businesses.

If we succeed in effecting a business combination, there will be, in all likelihood, intense competition from competitors of the target business. We cannot assure
you that, subsequent to a business combination, we will have the resources or ability to compete effectively.

Facilities
We maintain our principal executive offices at 823 Eleventh Avenue, New York, New York 10019. We consider our current office space, combined with
the other office space otherwise available to our executive officers, adequate for our current operations.

Employees

We have four executive officers: John A. Catsimatidis, Myron L. Turfitt, James E. Murphy and John R. Wagner. None of our officers, on all of whom we
will be dependant upon prior to effecting a business combination, have entered into employment agreements with us and none are obligated to devote any
specific number of hours to our matters and intend to devote only as much time as they deem necessary to our affairs. The amount of time they devote in any
time period will vary based on whether we are in the process of (i) seeking a potential target business, or (ii) performing due diligence on one or more target
businesses or (iii) completing the business combination for a selected target business. Our officers may spend more time than others, or no time at all, on the
various phases of the acquisition process depending on their competing time requirements apart from our business and their particular areas of expertise. We do
not intend to have any full time employees prior to the consummation of a business combination.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

Investing in our securities involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the following risk factors and all other information contained in
this prospectus before making a decision to invest in our units. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones facing us. Additional risks and
uncertainties that we are unaware of, or that we currently deem immaterial, also may become important factors that affect us. If any of the following risks occur,
our business, financial conditions or results of operating may be materially and adversely affected. In that event, the trading price of our securities could decline,
and you could lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Related to Our Current Business

We are a development stage company with no operating history and, accordingly, you will not have any basis on which to evaluate our ability to
achieve our business objective.

We are a development stage company with no operating results to date. Since we do not have any operations or an operating history, you have no basis
upon which to evaluate our ability to achieve our business objective, which is to acquire one or more operating businesses or assets with a particular focus on
businesses or assets involved in the refining of petroleum products, but will not be limited to pursuing acquisition opportunities only within that industry. We
have no plans, arrangements or understandings with any prospective target business with respect to a business combination. We will not generate any revenues or
income until, at the earliest, after the
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consummation of a business combination. We cannot assure you as to when or if a business combination will occur. We have no present revenue and will not

generate any revenues until, at the earliest, after the completion of a business combination. If we expend all of the proceeds from our initial public offering not
held in trust and interest income earned of up to $3.7 million (net of income taxes on such interest and State of Delaware franchise taxes) on the balance of the
trust account that may be released to us to fund our working capital requirements in seeking an initial business combination, but fail to complete such a
combination, we will never generate any operating revenues.

‘We may not be able to consummate a business combination within the required timeframe, in which case, we will be forced to liquidate.

Pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, we will continue in existence only until December 11, 2009 or, in the event our
stockholders approve the extended period, then only until June 11, 2010. If we fail to consummate a business combination within the required time frame, our
corporate existence will, in accordance with our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, cease except for the purposes of winding up our affairs and
liquidating. We may not be able to find a suitable target business within the required time frame. In addition, our negotiating position and our ability to conduct
adequate due diligence on any potential target may be reduced as we approach the deadline for the consummation of a business combination. We view these
provisions as obligations to our stockholders and our officers and directors have agreed they will not propose, or vote in favor of, any amendment to this
provision other than in connection with the proposal to approve the extended period or in connection with a business combination. In addition, we will not
support, directly or indirectly, or in any way endorse or recommend, that stockholders approve an amendment or modification to such provision if it does not
appear we will be able to consummate a business combination within the foregoing time periods. United Refining Inc., our sponsor, has waived its rights to
participate in any liquidation distribution with respect to the shares of common stock owned by it prior to our initial public offering, including the shares of
common stock underlying the warrants it owns. There will be no distribution from the trust account with respect to our warrants which will expire worthless. We
will pay the costs of liquidation, which we currently estimate to be up to $15,000, from our remaining assets outside of the trust account. In addition, our sponsor
has agreed to indemnify us for all claims of creditors to the extent that we fail to obtain valid and enforceable waivers from vendors, service providers,
prospective target business or other entities in order to protect the amounts held in trust.

Unlike other blank check companies, we are permitted, pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, to seek to extend the
date before which we must complete an initial business combination to 30 months. As a result, your funds may be held in the trust account for up to
thirty months.

Unlike other blank check companies, if we have entered into a definitive agreement but anticipate that we will not be able to consummate a business
combination by December 11,2009, we shall seek to extend the date before which we must complete our business combination, to avoid being required to
liquidate, to June 11, 2010 by calling a special meeting of our stockholders for the purpose of soliciting their approval for such extension. 1f the proposal for the
extension to June 11, 2010 is approved by our stockholders, we will have an additional 6 months within which to complete our initial business combination. As a
result we may be able to hold your funds in the trust account for up to 30 months from the date our initial public offering was consummated and thus delay the
receipt by you of your funds from the trust account on redemption in connection with a proposed business combination or liquidation.

You will not have any rights or interest in funds from the trust account, except under certain limited circumstances.

Our public stockholders will be entitled to receive funds from the trust account only in the event of our liquidation or if they seek to redeem their
respective shares of common stock into cash upon the approval of the extended period the stockholder voted against and the filing of an amendment to our

amended and restated
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certificate of incorporation with the Secretary of State of Delaware or upon a business combination which the stockholder voted against and which is completed

by us. In no other circumstances will a stockholder have any right or interest of any kind in the trust account.

If we are forced to liquidate before the completion of a business combination and distribute the trust account, our public stockholders may
receive significantly less than $9.97 per share.

Our placing of funds in the trust account may not protect those funds from third party claims against us. Although we seek to have all vendors, target
businesses, prospective target businesses or other entities we engage execute agreements with us waiving any right, title, interest or claim of any kind in or to any
monies held in the trust account for the benefit of our public stockholders, there is no guarantee that they will execute such agreements, or even if they execute
such agreements that they would be prevented from bringing claims against the trust account including, but not limited to, fraudulent inducement, breach of
fiduciary responsibility or other similar claims, as well as claims challenging the enforceability of the waiver, in each case in order to gain advantage with a claim
against our assets, including the funds held in the trust account. If any third party refused to execute an agresment waiving such claims to the monies held in the
trust account, we will perform an analysis of the alternatives available to us if we chose not to engage such third party and evaluate if such engagement would be
in the best interest of our stockholders if such third party refused to waive such claims. In addition, there is no guarantee that such entities will agree to waive any
claims they may have in the future as a result of, or arising out of, any negotiations, contracts or agreements with us and not seek recourse against the trust
account for any reason. Accordingly, the proceeds held in the trust account could be subject to claims that could take priority over the claims of our public
stockholders and the per-share liquidation price could be less than the $9.97 per share held in the trust account, plus interest (net of any taxes due on such interest
and franchise taxes payable to the State of Delaware, which taxes shall be paid from the trust account, and any other amounts released to us described elsewhere
in this prospectus), due to claims of such creditors. United Refining, Inc., our sponsor, has agreed to indemnify and hold us harmless against liabilities, claims,
damages and expenses to which we may become subject as a result of any claim by any target business, prospective target business, vendor or other entity owed
money by us for services rendered or products sold to us to the extent necessary to ensure that such claims do not reduce the amount in the trust account. We
cannot assure you that our sponsor will be able to satisfy those obligations. The indemnification provisions are set forth in the insider letter executed by our
sponsor in connection with our initial public offering.

Additionally, if we are forced to file a bankruptcy case or an involuntary bankruptcy case is filed against us which is not dismissed, the funds held in our
trust account will be subject to applicable bankruptcy law, and may be included in our bankruptcy estate and subject to the claims of third parties with priority
over the claims of our stockholders. To the extent any bankruptcy claims deplete the trust account we cannot assure you we will be able to return to our public
stockholders the liquidation amounts due them.

Our independent directors may decide not to enforce the indemnification obligations of United Refining, Inc., our sponsor, resulting in a
reduction in the amount of funds in the trust account available for distribution to our public stockholders upon liquidation.

United Refining, Inc., our sponsor, has agreed to indemnify and hold us harmless against liabilities, claims, damages and expenses to which we may
become subject as a result of any claim by any target business, prospective target business, vendor or other entity owed money by us for services rendered or
products sold to us to the extent necessary to ensure that such claims do not reduce the amount in the trust account. In the event that the proceeds in the trust
account are reduced and our sponsor asserts that it is unable to satisfy its obligations or that it has no indemnification obligations related to a particular claim, our
independent directors would determine whether we would take legal action against our sponsor to enforce its indemnification obligations. While we currently
expect that our independent directors would take action on our behalf against our sponsor to enforce its indemnification obligations, it is possible that our
independent directors in exercising their business judgment may choose not to do so in a particular instance. If our independent directors choose not to enforce
the indemnification obligations of our sponsor, the amount of funds in the trust account available for distribution to our public stockholders may be reduced and
the per share liquidation distribution could be less that the initial $9.97 per share.
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If we are forced to liquidate before a business combination, our warrants will expire worthless.

If we are unable to complete a business combination and are forced to liquidate the trust account, there will be no distribution with respect to our
outstanding warrants and, accordingly, the warrants will expire worthless.

If we are unable to consummate a business combination, our public stockholders will be forced to wait the full 24 months or, if a public
stockholder approves the extended period, then the full 30 months, before receiving liquidation distributions.

We have 24 months from the date of the prospectus relating to our initial public offering or, in the event our stockholders approve the extended period, we
have 30 months from such date in which to complete a business combination. We have no obligation to return funds to investors prior to such date unless we
consummate a business combination prior thereto and only then in cases where investors have sought redemption of their shares. Only after the expiration of this
full time period will public stockholders be entitled to liquidation distributions if we are unable to complete a business combination. Accordingly, investors’
funds may be unavailable to them until such date.

‘We may choose to redeem our outstanding warrants at a time that is disadvantageous to our warrant holders.

Subject to there being a current prospectus under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, with respect to the common stock issuable upon exercise of the
warrants, we may redeem the warrants issued as a part of our units sold in our initial public offering at any time after the warrants become exercisable in whole
and not in part, at a price of $.01 per warrant, upon a minimum of 30 days prior written notice of redemption, if and only if, the last sales price of our common
stock equals or exceeds $14.25 per share for any 20 trading days within a 30 trading day period ending three business days before we send the notice of
redemption. In addition, we may not redeem the warrants unless the warrants comprising the units sold in our initial public offering and the shares of common
stock underlying those warrants are covered by an effective registration statement from the beginning of the measurement period through the date fixed for the
redemption.

Redemption of the warrants could force the warrant holders (i) to exercise the warrants and pay the exercise price at a time when it may be
disadvantageous for the holders to do so, (ii) to sell the warrants at the then current market price when they might otherwise wish to hold the warrants, or (iii) to
accept the nominal redemption price which, at the time the warrants are called for redemption, is likely to be substantially less than the market value of the
warrants. We expect most purchasers of our warrants will hold their securities through one or more intermediaries and consequently you are unlikely to receive
notice directly from us that the warrants are being redeemed. If you fail to receive notice of redemption from a third party and your warrants are redeemed for
nominal value, you will not have recourse to us.

Although we are required to use our best efforts to have an effective registration statement covering the issuance of the shares of common stock
underlying the warrants at the time that our warrant helders exercise their warrants, we cannot guarantee that a registration statement will be
effective, in which ease our warrant holders may not be able to exercise our warrants and therefore the warrants could expire worthless.

Holders of our warrants will be able to exercise the warrants only if (i) a current registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933 relating to the
shares of our common stock underlying the warrants is then effective and (ii) such shares of common stock are qualified for sale or exempt from qualification
under the applicable securities laws of the states in which the various holders of warrants reside. Although we have undertaken in the Warrant Agreement, and
therefore have a contractual obligation, to use our best efforts to maintain a current registration statement covering the shares of common stock underlying our
public warrants to the extent required by federal securities laws, and we intend to comply with our undertaking, we cannot assure that we will be able to do so. If
we are not able to do so, holders will be unable to exercise their warrants and we will not be required
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to net-cash settle any such warrant exercise and therefore the warrants could expire worthless. The value of the warrants may be greatly reduced if a registration

statement covering the shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of the warrants is not kept current or if the securities are not qualified, or exempt from
qualification, in the states in which the holders of warrants reside. Holders of warrants who reside in jurisdictions in which the shares of common stock
underlying the warrants are not qualified and in which there is no exemption will be unable to exercise their warrants and would either have to sell their warrants
in the open market or allow them to expire unexercised. If and when the warrants become redeemable by us, we may exercise our redemption right even if we are
unable to qualify the underlying securities for sale under all applicable state securities laws.

Unlike other blank check companies, we allow our public stockholders holding up to one share less than 40.0% of the shares sold in our initial
public offering on a cumulative basis to exercise their redemption rights if they vote against a proposed business combination presented to stockholders
for their approval. This higher threshold will make it easier for us to consummate a business combination with which you may not agree.

When we seek stockholder approval of the extended period or a business combination, we will offer each public stockholder (but not our sponsor with
respect to any shares it owned prior to the consummation of our initial public offering) the right to have his, her or its shares of common stock redeemed for cash
if the stockholder votes against the business combination (on a cumulative basis with the stockholders who previously exercised their redemption rights in
connection with the stockholder vote required to approve the extended period, if any) and the business combination is approved and consummated. We will
consummate the initial business combination only if the following two conditions are met: (i) a majority of the shares of common stock voted by the public
stockholders are voted in favor of the business combination and (ii) public stockholders owning 40.0% or more of the shares sold in our initial public offering do
not vote against the business combination and exercise their redemption rights on a cumulative basis with the stockholders who previously exercised their
redemption rights in connection with the stockholder vote required to approve the extended period. Most other blank check companies have a redemption
threshold of 20.0%, which makes it more difficult for such companies to consummate their initial business combination. Thus, because we permit a larger
number of stockholders to exercise their redemption rights, it will be easier for us to consurnmate an initial business combination with a target business which
you may believe is not suitable for us.

Unlike other blank check companies, we allow our public stockholders holding up to one share less than 40.0% of shares of common stock sold in
our initial public offering on a cumulative basis to exercise their redemption rights if they vote against a proposed business combination presented to
stockholders for their approval. The ability of a larger number of our stockholders to exercise their redemption rights may not allow us to consummate
the most desirable business combination or optimize our capital structure.

Unlike other blank check offerings which have a 20.0% threshold, we allow our public stockholders holding up to one share less than 40.0% of the shares
sold in our initial public offering to exercise their redemption rights (on a cumulative basis with the stockholders who previously exercised their redemption
rights in connection with the stockholder vote required to approve the extended period, if any). However, we still must acquire a business or assets with a fair
market value equal to at least 80.0% of our net assets held in the trust account (exclusive of the underwriters’ deferred underwriting compensation plus interest
accrued thereon held, net of taxes payable, in the trust account). Accordingly, if our business combination requires us to use substantially all of our cash to pay
the purchase price, because we will not know how many stockholders may exercise such redemption rights, we may either need to reserve part of the trust
account for possible payment upon such redemption, or we may need to arrange third party financing to help fund our business combination in case a larger
percentage of stockholders exercise their redemption rights than we expect. In the event that the acquisition involves the issuance of our stock as consideration,
we may be required to issue a higher percentage of our stock to make up for a shortfall in funds. Raising additional funds to cover any shortfall may involve
dilutive equity financing or incurring indebtedness at higher than desirable levels. This may limit our ability to effectuate the most attractive business
combination available to us.
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Exercise of redemption rights must be effected pursuant to a specific process which may take time to complete and may result in the expenditure

of funds by stockholders seeking redemption.

A stockholder requesting redemption of his, her or its shares of common stock for cash may do so at any time after the mailing to our stockholders of the
proxy statement and prior to the vote taken with respect to a proposal to approve the extended period or a proposed business combination. A stockholder would
have from the time we send out our proxy statement through the vote on a proposal to approve the extended period or the business combination to tender (either
electronically or through the delivery of physical stock certificates) his shares of common stock if he, she or it wishes to seek to exercise his, her or its
redemption rights, a period which is expected to be not less than 10 days nor more than 60 days. There is a nominal cost associated with the above-referenced
tendering process and the act of certificating the shares or delivering them through the DWAC system. The transfer agent will typically charge the tendering
broker $35.00 and it would be up to the broker whether or not to pass this cost on to the redeeming holder. There may be additional mailing and other nominal
charges depending on the particular process used to tender common stock. Although we believe the time period, costs and other potential burdens associated with
the tendering process are not onerous for an average investor, this process may result in additional burdens for stockholders, including mis-delivery or any other
defect in the tendering process.

Additionally, if a vote on our initial business combination is held and the business combination is not approved, we may continue to try to consummate a
business combination with a different target until twenty four months from the date of the prospectus relating to our initial public offering or until thirty months
from such date in the event our stockholders approve the extended period. If the extended period or the initial business combination is not approved or completed
for any reason, public stockholders voting against such extended period or our initial business combination, as the case may be, who exercised their redemption
rights would not be entitled to redeem their shares of common stock into a pro rata share of the aggregate amount then on deposit in the trust account. In such
case, if we have required public stockholders to tender their certificates prior to the meeting, we will promptly return such certificates to the tendering public
stockholder. In such case, they would then have to comply with the tendering process again for any vote against a subsequent business combination.

Our stockholders may be held liable for claims by third parties against us to the extent of distributions received by them.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that we will continue in existence only until 24 months from the date of the prospectus
relating to our initial public offering (or by 30 months from such date in the event our stockholders approve the extended period). If we have not completed a
business combination by such date and amended this provision in connection therewith, pursuant to the Delaware General Corporation Law, our corporate
existence will cease except for the purposes of winding up our affairs and liquidating. Under Sections 280 through 282 of the Delaware General Corporation
Law, stockholders may be held liable for claims by third parties against a corporation to the extent of distributions received by them in a dissolution. If the
corporation complies with certain procedures set forth in Section 280 of the Delaware General Corporation Law intended to ensure that it makes reasonable
provision for all claims against it, including a 60-day notice period during which any third-party claims can be brought against the corporation, a 90-day period
during which the corporation may reject any claims brought, and an additional 150-day waiting period before any liquidating distributions are made to
stockholders, any liability of stockholders with respect to a liquidating distribution is limited to the lesser of such stockholder’s pro rata share of the claim or the
amount distributed to the stockholder, and any liability of the stockholder would be barred after the third anniversary of the dissolution. However, it is our
intention to make liquidating distributions to our stockholders as soon as reasonably possible after dissolution and, therefore, we do not intend to comply with
those procedures. Because we will not be complying with those procedures, we are required, pursuant to Section 281 of the Delaware General Corporation Law,
to adopt a plan that will provide for our payment, based on facts known to us at such time, of (i) all existing claims, (ii) all pending claims and (iii) all claims that
may be potentially brought against us within the subsequent 10 years. Accordingly, we would be required to provide for any creditors known to us at that time or
those that we believe could be potentially brought against us within the subsequent 10 years prior to distributing the funds held in the trust account to
stockholders. We cannot assure you that we will properly assess all claims that may be potentially brought against us. As such, our stockholders could potentially
be liable for any claims to the extent of
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distributions received by them and any liability of our stockholders may extend well beyond the third anniversary of such date. Accordingly, we cannot assure
you that third parties will not seek to recover from our stockholders amounts owed to them by us. In the event of our liquidation, we may have to adopt a plan to
provide for the payment of claims that may potentially be brought against us, which could result in the per-share liquidation amount to our stockholders being

significantly less than $9.97.

In certain circumstances, our board of directors may be viewed as having breached their fiduciary duties to our creditors, thereby exposing itself
and our company to claims of punitive damages.

If we are forced to file a bankruptcy case or an involuntary bankruptcy case is filed against us which is not dismissed, any distributions received by
stockholders could be viewed under applicable debtor/creditor and/or bankruptcy laws as either a “preferential transfer” or a “fraudulent conveyance.” As a
result, a bankruptcy court could seek to recover all amounts received by our stockholders. Furthermore, because we intend to distribute the proceeds held in the
trust account to our public stockholders promptly after the termination of our existence by operation of law, this may be viewed or interpreted as giving
preference to our public stockholders over any potential creditors with respect to access to or distributions from our assets. Furthermore, our board of directors
may be viewed as having breached its fiduciary duty to our creditors and/or may have acted in bad faith, thereby exposing itself and our company to claims of
punitive damages, by paying public stockholders from the trust account prior to addressing the claims of creditors. We cannot assure you that claims will not be
brought against us for these reasons.

If the net proceeds of our initial public offering not being placed in the trust account together with interest earned on the trust account available
to us are insufficient to allow us to operate for at least until December 11, 2009 (or June 11, 2010 in the event our stockholders approve the extended
period), we may not be able to complete a business combination.

We currently believe that the funds available to us outside of the trust account, together with up to $3,700,000 of interest earned on the trust account that
may be released to us will be sufficient to allow us to operate for at least until December 11, 2009 (or June 11, 2010 in the event our stockholders approve the
extended period), assuming that a business combination is not consummated during that time. Based upon the experience of the members of our board and
consultation with them regarding a reasonable budget for consummating a transaction of this kind and nature, and a review of budgets publicly disclosed by
blank-check companies, we determined that this was an appropriate approximation of the expenses. If costs are higher than expected we might not have sufficient
funds to continue searching for, or conduct due diligence with respect to, any potential target businesses. In such event, we would need to obtain additional funds
from our initial stockholder or another source to continue operating. We could use a portion of these funds to pay due diligence costs in connection with a
potential business combination or to pay fees to consultants to assist us with our search for a target business. We could also use a portion of these funds as a
down payment, “reverse break-up fee” (a provision in a merger agreement designed to compensate the target for any breach by the buyer which results in a
failure to close the transaction), or to fund a “no-shop” provision (a provision in letters of intent designed to keep target businesses from “shopping” around for
transactions with others on terms more favorable to such target businesses) with respect to a particular proposed business combination. If we entered into such a
letter of intent where we paid for the right to receive exclusivity from a target business and were subsequently required to forfeit such funds (whether as a result
of our breach or otherwise) or if we agree to a reverse break-up fee and subsequently were required to pay such fee as a result of our breach of the merger
agreement, we might not have sufficient funds to continue searching for, or conduct due diligence with respect to any other potential target businesses. In such
event, we would need to obtain additional funds from our initial stockholders or another source to continue operations.

Our current officers and directors may resign upon consummation of a business combination.

Upon consummation of a business combination, the role of our existing officers and directors in the target business cannot presently be fully ascertained.
While it is possible that one or more of our existing officers and
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directors will remain in senior management or as directors following a business combination, we may employ other personnel following the business
combination. If we acquire a target business in an all cash transaction, it would be more likely that our existing officers and our directors would remain with us if
they chose to do so. If a business combination were structured as a merger whereby the stockholders of the target company were to control the combined
company, following a business combination, it may be less likely that our existing officers or directors would remain with the combined company unless it was
negotiated as part of the transaction via the acquisition agreement, an employment agreement or other arrangement.

Negotiated retention of officers and directors after a business combination may create a conflict of interest.

If, as a condition to a potential business combination, our existing officers negotiate to be retained after the consummation of the business combination,
such negotiations may result in a conflict of interest. The ability of such individuals to remain with us after the consummation of a business combination will not
be the determining factor in our decision as to whether or not we will proceed with any potential business combination. In making the determination as to
whether current management should remain with us following the business combination, we will analyze the experience and skill set of the target business’
management and negotiate as part of the business combination that our existing officers and directors remain if it is believed that it is in the best interests of the
combined company after the consummation of the business combination. Although we intend to closely scrutinize any additional individuals we engage after a
business combination, we cannot assure you that our assessment of these individuals will prove to be correct.

There may be tax consequences associated with our acquisition, holding and disposition of target companies and assets.

We may incur significant taxes in connection with effecting acquisitions; holding, receiving payments from, and operating target companies and assets;
and disposing of target companies and assets.

Because any target business with which we attempt to complete a business combination will be required to provide our stockholders with
financial statements prepared in accordance with and reconciled to United States generally accepted accounting principles, the pool of prospective
target businesses may be limited.

In accordance with the requirements of United States federal securities laws, in order to seek stockholder approval of a business combination, a proposed
target business will be required to have certain financial statements which are prepared in accordance with, or which can be reconciled to U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles and audited in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. To the extent that a proposed target business does not have
financial statements which have been prepared with, or which can be reconciled to, U.S. GAAP, and audited in accordance with the Standards of the PCAOB, a
likely possibility if we consider a business combination with a proposed target business operating in the international energy industry, we will not be able to
acquire that proposed target business. These financial statement requirements may limit the pool of potential target businesses.

We may consummate a business combination with a company in the energy industry, with a particular focus on businesses or assets involved in
the refining of petroleum products, but will not be limited to pursuing acquisition opportunities only within that industry. As we have not currently
selected any target business with which to complete a business combination, our stockholders are unable to currently ascertain the merits or risks of the
industry to target business’ operations.

‘We may consummate a business combination with a company in the energy industry, with a particular focus on businesses or assets involved in the
refining of petroleum products, but will not be limited to pursing acquisition opportunities only within that industry. We may also pursue opportunities in other
industries involving businesses outside of management’s expertise. Accordingly, there is no current basis for you to evaluate the possible merits or

25

Source: United Refining Ener, 10-K, December 01, 2008



Table of Contents

risks of the particular industry in which we may ultimately consummate a business combination. As we have not yet identified a prospective target business, our
stockholders have no current basis to evaluate the possible merits or risks of the target business’ operations until we provide proxy materials to our stockholders
in connection with a proposed business combination. To the extent we complete a business combination with a financially unstable company or an entity in its
development stage, we may be affected by numerous risks inherent in the business operations of those entities. Although our management will endeavor to
evaluate the risks inherent in a particular target business, we cannot assure you that we will properly ascertain or assess all of the significant risk factors. We also
cannot assure you that an investment in our securities will not ultimately prove to be less favorable to our stockholders than a direct investment, if an opportunity
were available, in a target business.

Because of our limited resources and the significant competition for business combination opportunities, including numerous companies with a
business plan similar to ours, it may be more difficult for us to complete a business combination.

We have and we expect to continue to encounter intense competition from other entities having a business objective similar to ours, including private
investors (which may be individuals or investment partnerships), other blank check companies, and other entities, domestic and international, competing for the
type of businesses that we may intend to acquire. Many of these individuals and entities are well established and have extensive experience in identifying and
effecting, directly or indirectly, acquisitions of companies operating in or providing services to the energy industry. Many of these competitors possess greater
technical, human and other resources, or more local industry knowledge, than we do and our financial resources are relatively limited when contrasted with those
of many of these competitors. While we believe that there are nutnerous target businesses that we could potentially acquire, our ability to compete with respect to
the acquisition of certain target businesses that are sizable is limited by our available financial resources. This inherent competitive limitation gives others an
advantage in pursuing the acquisition of certain target businesses. Furthermore, the obligation we have to seek stockholder approval of a business combination
may delay the consummation of a transaction. Additionally, our outstanding warrants and the future dilution they potentially represent may not be viewed
favorably by certain target businesses. Also, our obligation to redeem for cash the shares of common stock in certain instances may reduce the resources
available for a business combination. Any of these obligations may place us at a competitive disadvantage in successfully negotiating a business combination.

We cannot assure you we will be able to successfully compete for an attractive business combination. Additionally, because of this competition, we cannot
assure you we will be able to effectuate a business combination within the prescribed time period. If we are unable to consummate a business combination within
the prescribed time period, we will be forced to liquidate.

You will not be entitled to protections normally afforded to investors of blank check companies.

‘We may be deemed to be a “blank check” company under the United States securities laws. However, since we have net tangible assets in excess of
$5,000,000 and we filed a Current Report on Form 8-K with the SEC upon consummation of our initial public offering including an audited balance sheet
demonstrating this fact, we are exempt from rules promulgated by the SEC to protect investors of blank check companies such as Rule 419. Accordingly,
investors will not be afforded the benefits or protections of those rules, such as entitlement to all the interest earned on the funds deposited in the trust account.
Because we are not subject to these rules, including Rule 419, our units were immediately tradable and we have a longer period of time to complete a business
combination in certain circumstances than we would if we were subject to such rule.

Since we have not yet selected any target business with which to complete a business combination, we are unable to currently ascertain the merits
or risks of the business’ operations and investors will be relying on management’s ability to source business transactions.

Because we have not yet identified a prospective target business, our stockholders currently have no basis to evaluate the possible merits or risks of the
target business. Although our management will evaluate the risks
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inherent in a particular target business, we cannot assure you that they will properly ascertain or assess all of the significant risk factors. We also cannot assure
you that an investment in our securities will ultimately prove to be more favorable to investors than a direct investment, if such opportunity were available, in a
target business. Except for the limitation that a target business have a fair market value of at least 80.0% of our net assets held in the trust account (exclusive of
the underwriters’ deferred underwriting compensation plus interest thereon, net of taxes payable, held in the trust account) at the time of the acquisition, we will
have virtually unrestricted flexibility in identifying and selecting a prospective acquisition candidate. Our stockholders are relying on management’s ability to
source business transactions, evaluate their merits, conduct or monitor diligence and conduct negotiations.

‘We may issue shares of our capital stock to complete a business combination, which would reduce the equity interest of our stockholders and
likely cause a change in control of our ownership.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation authorizes the issuance of up to 150,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.0001 per share,
and 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per share. There are 30,650,000 authorized but unissued shares of our common stock available for
issuance and-all of the 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock available for issuance. Although we have no current commitment, we are likely to issue a substantial
number of additional shares of our common or preferred stock, or a combination of common and preferred stock, to complete a business combination. The
issuance of additional shares of our common stock or any number of shares of our preferred stock:

. may significantly reduce the equity interest of our stockholders;

. may subordinate the rights of holders of common stock if preferred stock is issued with rights senior to those afforded to the holders of our common
stock;

. will likely cause a change in control if a substantial number of our shares of common stock are issued, which may affect, among other things, our

ability to use our net operating loss carry forwards, if any, and most likely will also result in the resignation or removal of our present officers and
directors; and

. may adversely affect prevailing market prices for our common stock.

We may issue notes or other debt securities, or otherwise incur substantial debt, to complete a business combination, which may adversely affect
our leverage and financial condition.

Although we have no current commitments to issue any notes or other debt securities, or to otherwise incur outstanding debt, we may choose to incur
substantial debt to complete a business combination. The incurrence of debt could result in:

. default and foreclosure on our assets if our operating cash flow after a business combination were insufficient to pay our debt obligations;

. acceleration of our obligations to repay the indebtedness even if we have made all principal and interest payments when due, if the debt security
contained covenants that required the maintenance of certain financial ratios or reserves and any such covenant were breached without a waiver or
renegotiation of that covenant;

. our immediate payment of all principal and accrued interest, if any, if the debt security was payable on demand;
. covenants that limit our ability to pay dividends on our common stock, to acquire capital assets or make additional acquisitions; and
. our inability to obtain additional financing, if necessary, if the debt security contained covenants restricting our ability to obtain additional financing

while such security was outstanding.
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We may enter into joint venture arrangements, which are risky since our joint venture investments could be adversely affected by our lack of sole

decision-making authority, our reliance on a co-venturers’ financial condition and disputes between us and our co-venturer’s.

We may co-invest with third parties through partnerships, joint ventures or other entities, acquiring non-controlling interests in or sharing responsibility for
managing the affairs of a target business, partnership, joint venture or other entity. In such circumstances, we may not be in a position to exercise sole
decision-making authority regarding a target business, partnership, joint venture or other entity. Investments in partnerships, joint ventures or other entities may,
under certain circumstances, involve risks not present were a third party not involved, including the possibility that partners or co-venturers might become
insolvent or fail to fund their share of required capital contributions. In addition, we would face additional risks, including the additional costs and time required
to investigate and otherwise conduct due diligence on potential joint venture partners and to negotiate joint venture agreements. Moreover, the subsequent
management and control of a joint venture would entail risks associated with multiple owners and decisions makers. Partners or co-venturers may have economic
or other business interests or goals which are inconsistent with our business interests or goals, and may be in a position to take actions contrary to our policies or
objectives. Such investments may also have the potential risk of impasses on decisions, such as a sale, because neither we nor the partner or co-venturer would
have full control over the partnership or joint venture. Disputes between us and partners or co-venturers may result in litigation or arbitration that would increase
our expenses and distract our officers and/or directors from focusing their time and effort on our business. Consequently, actions by, or disputes with, partners or
co-venturers might result in subjecting assets owned by the partnership or joint venture to additional risk. We may also, in certain circumstances, be liable for the
actions of our third-party partners or co-venturers. For example, in the future we may agree to guarantee indebtedness incurred by a partnership, joint venture or
other entity. Such a guarantee may be on a joint and several basis with our partner or co-venturer in which case we may be liable in the event such party defaults

on its guaranty obligation.

Our officers and directors allocate their time to other businesses and ventures, thereby causing conflicts of interest in their determination as to
how much time to devote to our affairs, These conflicts could impair our ability to consummate a business combination.

Our officers and directors are not required to commit their full time to our affairs, which may result in a conflict of interest in allocating their time between
our operations and other businesses and ventures. We do not intend to have any full time employees prior to the consummation of a business combination. All of
our executive officers are engaged in several other business endeavors, including acting as executive officers of our corporate shareholder, and are not obligated
to contribute any specific number of hours per week to our affairs. In addition to his business activities, Mr. Catsimatidis is also involved, and may increase his
involvement, in various charitable, civic and political activities, including his considering whether to become a possible candidate for the mayor of New York
City in November 2009. If our executive officers’ other business affairs require them to devote more substantial amounts of time to such affairs and ventures, it
could limit their ability to devote time to our affairs and ventures and could impair our ability to consummate a business combination. We cannot assure you that

these conflicts will be resolved in our favor.

Qur officers, directors and their affiliates currently are, and may in the future become affiliated with, entities engaged in business activities that
are similar to those intended to be conducted by us and, accordingly, may have conflicts of interest in determining to which entity a particular business

opportunity should be presented. :

None of our officers, directors or their affiliates has been or currently is a principal of, or affiliated or associated with, a blank check company. However,
all of our officers and directors currently are, and may in the future become affiliated with, additional entities, including other refining entities, that are engaged
in business activities similar to those intended to be conducted by us. In particular, John A. Catsimatidis, Myron Turfitt, James E. Murphy and John Wagner are
the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President, Chief Financial Officer and General Counsel and Secretary, respectively, of our sponsor, United Refining,

Inc. Due to these
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existing affiliations, they and our other directors may have fiduciary obligations to present potential business opportunities to those entities prior to presenting
them to us, which could cause additional conflicts of interest. Accordingly, they may have conflicts of interest in determining to which entity a particular

business opportunity should be presented.

Our ability to successfully effect a business combination and to be successful thereafter is totally dependent upon the efforts of our key personnel,
including our officers, directors and others who may not continue with us following a business combination.

Our ability to successfully effect a business combination is dependent upon the efforts of our key personnel. Our key personnel are also officers, directors,
and/or members of other entities, to whom we have access on an as needed basis, although there are no assurances that any such personnel will be able to devote
either sufficient time, effort or attention to us when we need it. None of our key personnel, including our executive officers have entered into employment or
consultant agreements with us. Further, although we presently anticipate that our officers will remain associated in senior management, advisory or other
positions with us following a business combination, some or all of the management associated with a target business may also remain in place. As such, our key
personnel may not continue to provide services to us after the consummation of a business combination if we are unable to negotiate employment or consulting
agreements with them in connection with or subsequent to the business combination, the terms of which would be determined at such time between the respective
parties. Such negotiations would take place simultaneously with the negotiation of the business combination and could provide for such individuals to receive
compensation in the form of cash payments and/or our securities for services they would render to us after the consummation of the business combination. While
the personal and financial interests of such individuals may influence their motivation in identifying and selecting a target business, the ability of such individuals
to remain with us after the consummation of a business combination will not be the determining factor in our decision as to whether or not we will proceed with
any potential business combination.

‘We may engage in a business combination with one or more target businesses that have relationships or are affiliated with our existing
stockholder, directors or officers, which may raise potential conflicts.

‘We may engage in a business combination with one or more target businesses that have relationships or are affiliated (as defined in Rule 405 of the
Securities Act) with United Refining, Inc., our sponsor, directors or officers, which may raise potential conflicts. Also, the completion of a business combination
between us and an entity owned by a business in which one of our directors or officers may have an interest could enhance their prospects for future business
from such client. To minimize potential conflicts of interest, we have agreed not to consummate a business combination with an entity that is affiliated with our
sponsor unless we obtain an opinion from an independent investrent banking firm that is a member of the FINRA and is reasonably acceptable to the
representative of the underwriters of our initial public offering that the business combination is fair to our stockholders from a financial point of view.

Our sponsor currently owns shares of our common stock and warrants, which will not participate in the liquidation of the trust account and a
conflict of interest may arise in determining whether a particular target business is appropriate for a business combination.

United Refining, Inc., our sponsor, has waived its right to receive distributions with respect to those shares of common stock upon the liquidation of the
trust account if we are unable to consummate a business combination. Additionally, our sponsor purchased 15,600,000 warrants directly from us in a private
placement transaction prior to the consummation of our initial public offering at a purchase price of $1.00 per warrant for a total purchase price of $15,600,000.
Finally, our sponsor was granted 2,500,000 warrants to purchase our common stock at $12.50 per share. The shares of common stock acquired prior to our initial
public offering and any warrants owned by our sponsor will be worthless if we do not consummate a business combination. The personal and financial interests
of our officers and our directors, who control and own our sponsor, may influence
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their motivation in timely identifying and selecting a target business and completing a business combination. Consequently, our officers’ discretion, and the
discretion of our directors, in identifying and selecting a suitable target business may result in a conflict of interest when determining whether the terms,
conditions and timing of a particular business combination are appropriate and in our stockholders’ best interest and as a result of such conflicts management
may choose a target business that is not in the best interests of our stockholders.

Since our sponsor will lose its entire investment in us if a business combination is not consummated and may be required to pay costs associated
with our liquidation, it may purchase shares of our common stock from stockholders who weould otherwise choose to vote against the extended period or
a proposed business combination and exercise their redemption rights in connection with such proposal to approve the extended period or proposed
business combination.

United Refining, Inc., our sponsor owns shares of our common stock (which were purchased for an aggregate of $25,000) that will be worthless if we do
not consummate a business combination. In addition, our sponsor purchased warrants exercisable for our common stock (for an aggregate of $15,600,000) and
was granted 2,500,000 warrants to purchase our common stock at $12.50 per share, which will also be worthless if we do not consummate a business
combination. Given the interest that our sponsor has in a business combination being consummated, it is possible that our sponsor will acquire securities from
public stockholders (in the open market and/or in privately negotiated transactions) who have elected to redeem their shares of our common stock in order to
change their vote and insure that the extended period and/or the business combination will be approved (which could result in the extended period or a business
combination being approved even if, after the announcement of the proposal to approve the extended period or the business combination, 40.0% or more of our
public stockholders would have elected to exercise their redemption rights on a cumulative basis, or more than 50.0% of our public stockholders would have
voted against the proposal to approve the extended period or the business combination, but for the purchases made by our existing stockholder). Any privately
negotiated transaction with a stockholder would include a contractual acknowledgement that such stockholder, although still the record holder of our common
stock, is no longer the beneficial owner thereof and therefore agrees to vote such shares of common stock as directed by our sponsor. In the event our sponsor
purchases shares in privately negotiated transactions from public stockholders who have already cast votes against a proposal to approve the extended period or a
proposed business acquisition and requested redemption of their shares, such selling stockholders would be required to revoke their prior votes against the
proposal to approve the extended period or the proposed acquisition and to revoke their prior elections to redeem their shares and to cast new votes in favor of the
proposal to approve the extended period or the proposed acquisition. The revocation of prior negative votes and substitution therefor of votes in favor of the
proposal to approve the extended period or the proposed acquisition would have the effect of reducing redemptions and increasing votes in favor of the extended
period or proposed acquisition, as the case may be, thereby making it more likely that the extended period and/or a proposed business combination would be

approved.

The requirement that we complete a business combination by December 11, 2009 or June 11, 2010 in the event our stockholders approve the
extended period may give potential target businesses leverage over us in negotiating a business combination.

‘We will liquidate and promptly distribute only to our public stockholders the amount in our trust account (subject to our obligations under Delaware law
for claims of creditors) plus any remaining net assets if we do not effect a business combination by December 11, 2009 or June 11, 2010 in the event our
stockholders approve the extended period. Any potential target business with which we enter into negotiations concerning a business combination will be aware
of this requirement. Consequently, such target businesses may obtain leverage over us in negotiating a business combination, knowing that if we do not complete
a business combination with that particular target business, we may be unable to complete a business combination with any target business. This risk will
increase as we get closer to the time limits referenced above.
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The requirement that we complete 2 business combination by December 11, 2009 or June 11, 2010 in the event our stockholders approve the

extended period may motivate our officers and directors to approve a business combination during that time period so that they may get their -
out-of-pocket expenses reimbursed.

Each of our officers and directors may receive reimbursement for out-of-pocket expenses incurred by him in connection with activities on our behalf such
as identifying potential target businesses and performing due diligence on suitable business combinations. The funds for such reimbursement are provided from
the money not held in trust. In the event that we do not effect a business combination by December 11, 2009 or June 11, 2010 in the event our stockholders
approve the extended period, then any expenses incurred by such individuals in excess of the money held outside of the trust account will not be repaid as we will
liquidate at such time. On the other hand, if we complete a business combination within such time period, those expenses will be repaid by the target business.
Consequently, our officers, who are also our directors, may have an incentive to complete a business combination other than just what is in the best interest of

our stockholders.

None of our officers or directors, or any of their affiliates, has ever been associated with a blank check company and such lack of experience could
adversely affect our ability to consummate a business combination.

None of our officers or directors, or any of their affiliates, has ever been associated with a blank check company. Accordingly, you may not have sufficient
information with which to evaluate the ability of our management team to identify and complete a business combination. Our management’s lack of experience
in operating a blank check company could adversely affect our ability to consummate a business combination and could result in our having to liquidate our trust
account. If we liquidate, our public stockholders could receive less than the amount they paid for our securities, causing them to incur significant financial losses.

Other than with respect to the business combination, our officers, directors, securityholders and their respective affiliates may have a pecuniary
interest in certain transactions in which we are involved, and may also compete with us.

Other than with respect to the business combination, we have not adopted a policy that expressly prohibits our directors, officers, securityholders or
affiliates from having a direct or indirect pecuniary interest in any investment to be acquired or disposed of by us or in any transaction to which we are a party or
have an interest. Nor do we have a policy that expressly prohibits any such persons from engaging for their own account in business activities of the types
conducted by us.

Initially, we may only be able to complete one business combination, which will cause us to be solely dependent on a single asset or property.

We currently have no restrictions on our ability to seck additional funds through the sale of securities or through loans. As a consequence, we could seek to
acquire a target business that has a fair market value significantly in excess of 80.0% of our net assets held in the trust account (exclusive of the underwriters’
deferred underwriting compensation plus interest thereon, net of taxes payable, held in the trust account) at the time of the acquisition. Although we have not
entered into any agreements with any third party regarding any such potential financing transactions, we could seek to fund such a business combination by
raising additionai funds through the sale of our securities or through loan arrangements. However, if we were to seek such additional funds, any such
arrangement would only be consummated simultaneously with our consummation of a business combination. Consequently, it is probable that we will have the
ability to complete only a single business combination, although this may entail the simultaneous acquisitions of several assets or closely related operating
businesses at the same time. However, should our management elect to pursue more than one acquisition of target businesses simultaneously, our management
could encounter difficulties in consummating all or a portion of such acquisitions due to a lack of adequate resources, including the inability of management to
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devote sufficient time to the due diligence, negotiation and documentation of each acquisition. Furthermore, even if we complete the acquisition of more than one
target business at substantially the same time, there can be no assurance that we will be able to integrate the operations of such target businesses. Accordingly,

the prospects for our ability to effect our business strategy may be:

. solely dependent upon the performance of a single business; or

. dependent upon the development or market acceptance of a single or limited number of products, processes or services.

In this case, we will not be able to diversify our operations or benefit from the possible spreading of risks or offsetting of losses, unlike other entities which may
have the resources to complete several business combinations in different industries or different areas of a single industry. Furthermore, since our business
combination may entail the simultaneous acquisitions of several assets or operating businesses at the same time and may be with different sellers, we will need to
convince such sellers to agree that the purchase of their assets or businesses is contingent upon the simultaneous closings of the other acquisitions.

We may be unable to obtain additional financing, if required, to complete a business combination or to fund the operations and growth of the
target business, which could compel us to restructure the transaction or abandon a particular business combination.

Although we believe that the amount held in our trust account will be sufficient to allow us to consummate a business combination, because we have not
yet identified a prospective target business, we cannot ascertain the capital requirements for any particular transaction. If the funds held in our trust account prove
to be insufficient, either because of the size of the business combination, the depletion of the available net proceeds in the course of searching for a suitable target
business that we can afford to acquire, or the obligation to redeem for cash a significant number of shares of common stock from dissenting stockholders, we will
be required to seek additional financing. We cannot assure you that any additional financing will be available to us on acceptable terms, if at all. To the extent
that additional financing proves to be unavailable when needed to consummate a particular business combination, we would be compelled to either restructure
the transaction or abandon that particular business combination and seek an alternative target business candidate. In addition, it is possible that we could use a
portion of the funds not in the trust account to make a deposit, down payment or fund a “no-shop” provision with respect to a proposed business combination,
although we do not have any current intention to do so. In the event that we were ultimately required to forfeit such funds (whether as a result of our breach of
the agreement relating to such payment or otherwise), we may not have a sufficient amount of working capital available outside of the trust account to conduct
due diligence and pay other expenses related to finding a suitable business combination without securing additional financing. If we are unable to secure
additional financing, we would most likely fail to consummate a business combination in the allotted time and would liquidate the trust account. In addition, if
we consummate a business combination, we may require additional financing to fund continuing operations and/or growth. The failure to secure additional
financing if required could have a material adverse effect on our ability to continue to develop and grow, even if we consummate a business combination. Neither
our sponsor nor any of our officers, directors or stockholders is required to provide any financing to us in connection with or after a business combination.

Our sponsor controls a substantial interest in us and thus may influence certain actions requiring a stockholder vote.

Our sponsor owns 20.0% of our issued and outstanding common stock. This ownership interest, together with any other acquisitions of our shares of
common stock (or warrants which are subsequently exercised), could atlow our sponsor to influence the outcome of matters requiring stockholder approval,
including the election of directors and approval of significant corporate transactions after completion of our initial business combination. The interests of our
sponsor and your interests may not always align and taking actions which require approval of a majority of our stockholders, such as selling the company, may
be more difficult to accomplish.
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We could be liable for up to the amount of the purchase price of the insider warrants plus interest to our sponsor who purchased the insider
warrants in a private placement conducted coneurrently with our initial public offering.

We sold in a private placement occurring immediately prior to the consummation of our initial public offering 15,600,000 insider warrants to our sponsor.
This private placement is being made in reliance on an exemption from registration under the Securities Act. This exemption requires that there be no general
solicitation of investors with respect to the sales of the insider warrants. If our initial public offering were deemed to be a general solicitation with respect to the
insider warrants, the offer and sale of such securities would not be exempt from registration and the purchaser of those securities could have a right to rescind its
purchases. A rescinding purchaser could seek to recover the purchase price paid, with interest, or if it no longer owns the securities, to receive damages. The
insider warrants purchase agreement contains provisions under which the purchaser waives any and all rights to assert present or future claims, including the
right of rescission, against us with respect to its purchase of the insider warrants and agrees to indemnify and hold us and the underwriters harmless from all
losses, damages or expenses that relate to claims or proceedings brought against us or the underwriters by the purchaser of the insider warrants, although it is
unclear whether these waivers and indemnifications would be enforceable.

If we redeem our public warrants, the insider warrants, which are non redeemable, could provide our sponsor with the ability to realize a larger
gain than the public warrant holders.

The warrants held by our public warrant holders may be called for redemption at any time after the warrants become exercisable:

. in whole and not in part,

. at a price of $0.01 per warrant at any time after the warrants become exercisable,

. upon not less than 30 days’ prior written notice of redemption, and

. if, and only if, the last sales price of our common stock equals or exceeds $14.25 per share for any 20 trading days within a 30 trading day period

ending three business days before we send the notice of redemption.

In addition, we may not redeem the warrants (including those warrants to be sold to our sponsor in a private placement prior to our initial public offering if such
warrants are held by our sponsor or it’s designees) unless the warrants comprising the units sold in our initial public offering and the shares of common stock
underlying those warrants are covered by an effective registration statement from the beginning of the measurement period through the date fixed for the
redemption.

As a result of the insider warrants not being subject to the redemption features that our publicly-held warrants are subject to, holders of the insider
warrants, or their permitted transferees, could realize a larger gain than our public warrant holders in the event we redeem our public warrants.

Our outstanding warrants may have an adverse effect on the market price of common stock and make it more difficult to effect a business
combination.

‘We issued warrants to purchase up to 45,000,000 shares of common stock as part of our initial public offering. In addition, we (a) sold to the sponsor
warrants to purchase up to 15,600,000 shares of common stock immediately prior to the consummation of our initial public offering and (b) granted to our
sponsor warrants to purchase up to 2,500,000 shares of common stock. To the extent we issue shares of common stock to effect a business combination, the
potential for the issuance of a substantial number of additional shares of common stock upon exercise of these warrants could make us a less attractive
acquisition vehicle in the eyes of a target business. Such securities, when exercised, will increase the number of issued and outstanding shares of our common
stock and reduce the value of the shares of common stock issued to complete the business combination. Therefore, our warrants may make it more difficult to
effectuate a business combination or increase the cost of acquiring the
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target business. Additionally, the sale, or even the possibility of sale, of the shares of common stock underlying the warrants could have an adverse effect on the
market price for our securities or on our ability to obtain future financing. If and to the extent these warrants are exercised, you may experience dilution to your

holdings.

The NYSE Alternext US may delist our securities, which could limit investors’ ability to transact in our securities and subject us to additional
trading restrictions.

Our units, common stock and warrants are listed on the NYSE Alternext US. We cannot assure you that our securities will continue to be listed on the
NYSE Alternext US. Additionally, it is likely that the NYSE Alternext US would require us to file a new initial listing application and meet its initial listing
requirements, as opposed to its more lenient continued listing requirements, at the time of our initial business combination. We cannot assure you that we will be
able to meet those initial listing requirements at that time.

If the NYSE Alternext US delists our securities from trading, we could face significant consequences, including:

. a limited availability for market quotations for our securities;
. reduced liquidity with respect to our securities;
. a determination that our common stock is a “penny stock,” which will require brokers trading in our common stock to adhere to more stringent rules

and possibly result in a reduced level of trading activity in the secondary trading market for our common stock;
. limited amount of news and analyst coverage for our company; and

. a decreased ability to issue additional securities or obtain additional financing in the future.

In addition, we would no longer be subject to NYSE Alternext US rules, including rules requiring us to have a certain number of independent directors and to
meet other corporate governance standards.

If our common stock becomes subject to the SEC’s penny stock rules, broker-dealers may experience difficulty in completing customer
transactions and trading activity in our securities may be adversely affected.

If our common stock becomes subject to the “penny stock” rules promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, broker-dealers may find it
difficult to effectuate customer transactions and trading activity in our securities may be adversely affected. As a result, the market price of our securities may be
depressed, and you may find it more difficult to sell our securities.

If at any time our securities are no longer listed on a national securities exchange, including the NYSE Alternext US, or the Nasdaq Stock Market or we
have net tangible assets of $5,000,000 or less and our common stock has a market price per share of less than $5.00, transactions in our common stock will be
subject to these “penny stock™ rules. Under these rules, broker-dealers who recommend such securities to persons other than institutional accredited investors
must:

. make a special written suitability determination for the purchaser;
. receive the purchaser’s written agreement to the transaction prior to sale;
. provide the purchaser with risk disclosure documents which identify certain risks associated with investing in “penny stocks” and which describe the

market for these “penny stocks™ as well as a purchaser’s legal remedies; and
. obtain a signed and dated acknowledgment from the purchaser demonstrating that the purchaser has actually received the required risk disclosure

document before a transaction in a “penny stock” can be completed.
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If our sponsor exercises its registration rights, it may have an adverse effect on the market price of our common stock and the existence of the
registration rights and the purchase option may make it more difficult to effect a business combination.

Our sponsor is entitled to require us to register the resale of its shares of common stock at any time after the date on which its shares of common stock are
released from escrow, which, except in limited circumstances, will not be before the earlier of one year from the consummation of a business combination or
three years from the date of the prospectus relating to our initial public offering. If our existing stockholder exercises its registration rights with respect to all of
its shares of common stock beneficially owned by it, then there will be an additional 11,250,000 shares of common stock eligible for trading in the public market.
Further, the sponsor purchased in a private placement 15,600,000 insider warrants that are identical to the warrants sold in our initial public offering, except that
(i) the insider warrants have no claim to the funds held in the trust account, (ii) the insider warrants are being purchased pursuant to an exemption from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act and will become freely tradable only after they are registered pursuant to a registration rights agreement, (iii) the
insider warrants are nonredeemable so long as they are held by our sponsor o its permitted assigns and (iv) the insider warrants are exercisable (a) ona
“cashless™ basis at any time after they become exercisable, if held by our sponsor or its permitted assigns and (b) in the absence of an effective registration
statement covering the shares of common stock underlying the warrants. If all of the insider warrants are exercised, there will be an additional 15,600,000 shares
of our common stock eligible for trading in the public market.

In addition, we have granted to our sponsor 2,500,000 warrants to purchase up to a total of 2,500,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of
$12.50 per share. The warrants grant holders demand and “piggyback™ registration rights for periods of five and seven years, respectively, from the date of the
prospectus relating to our initial public offering. If all of the warrants are exercised, there will be an additional 2,500,000 shares of our common stock eligible for
trading in the public market. The presence of these additional numbers of securities eligible for trading in the public market may have an adverse effect on the
market price of our common stock. In addition, the existence of these rights may make it more difficult to effectuate a business combination or increase the cost
of the target business, as the stockholders of the target business may be discouraged from entering into a business combination with us or will request a higher
price for their securities as a result of these registration rights and the potential future effect their exercise may have on the trading market for our common stock.

If we are deemed to be an investment company, we may be required to institute burdensome compliance requirements and our activities may be
restricted, which may make it difficult for us to complete a business combination, or we may be required to incur additional expenses if we are unable
to liquidate after the expiration of the allotted time periods.

If we are deemed to be an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, we may be subject to certain restrictions that may make it
more difficult for us to complete a business combination, including:

. restrictions on the nature of our investments; and

. restrictions on the issuance of securities.

In addition, we may have imposed upon us certain burdensome requirements, including:

. registration as an investment company;
. adoption of a specific form of corporate structure; and
. reporting, record keeping, voting, proxy, compliance policies and procedures and disclosure requirements and other rules and regulations.

We do not believe that our principal activities subject us to the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. To this end, the proceeds held in the trust
account are invested by the trust account agent only in United States “government securities” within the meaning of Section 2(a)(16) of the Investment Company
Act of
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1940 with a maturity of 180 days or less, or in money market funds meeting certain conditions under Rule 2a-7 promulgated under the Investment Company Act

of 1940. By restricting the investment of the proceeds to these instruments, we avoid being deemed an investment company within the meaning of the Investment
Company Act of 1940. If we are deemed to be an investment company at any time, we will be required to comply with additional regulatory requirements under
the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, which would require additional expenses for which we have not budgeted.

Uncertainties in management’s assessment of a target business could cause us not to realize the benefits anticipated to result from an acquisition.

It is possible that, following our initial acquisition, uncertainties in assessing the value, strengths and potential profitability of, and identifying the extent of
all weaknesses, risks, contingent and other liabilities (including environmental liabilities) of, acquisition or other transaction candidates could cause us not to
realize the benefits anticipated to result from an acquisition.

The potential loss of key customers, management and employees of a target business could cause us not to realize the benefits anticipated to result
from an acquisition.

It is possible that, following our initial acquisition, the potential loss of key customers, management and employees of an acquired business could cause us
not to realize the benefits anticipated to result from an acquisition.

The lack of synergy from an acquisition could cause us not to realize the benefits anticipated to result from an acquisition.

It is possible that, following our initial acquisition, the inability to achieve identified operating and financial synergies anticipated to result from an
acquisition or other transaction could cause us not to realize the benefits anticipated to result from an acquisition.

We may not obtain an opinion from an unaffiliated, independent investment banking firm as to the fair market value of the target business or
that the price we are paying for the business is fair to our stockholders.

We are not required to obtain an opinion from an unaffiliated, independent investment banking firm that either the target business we select has a fair
market value in excess of 80.0% of our net assets held in the trust account (exclusive of the underwriters” deferred underwriting compensation plus interest
thereon, net of taxes payable, held in the trust account) at the time of the acquisition or that the price we are paying is fair to stockholders unless (i) our board is
not able to independently determine that a target business has a sufficient market value or (ii) there is a conflict of interest with respect to the transaction. The fair
market value of such business will be determined by our board of directors based upon standards generally accepted by the financial community, such as actual
and potential sales, earnings and cash flow and book value, and the price for which comparable businesses have recently been sold. If our board is not able to
independently determine whether the target business has a sufficient fair market value, we will obtain an opinion from an unaffiliated, independent investment
banking firm which is a member of FINRA with respect to the satisfaction of such criteria. If no opinion is obtained, our stockholders will be relying on the

judgment or our board of directors. Even if such opinion is obtained, stockholders may not be permitted to rely on such opinion.

Provisions in onr charter documents and Delaware law may inhibit a takeover of us, which could limit the price investors might be willing to pay
in the future for our common stock and could entrench management.

Our charter and bylaws contain provisions that may discourage unsolicited takeover proposals that stockholders may consider to be in their best interests.
Our board of directors is divided into two classes, each of which will generally serve for a term of two years with only one class of directors being elected in each
year. As a result, at a given annual meeting only a minority of the board of directors may be considered for election. Since
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our “staggered board” may prevent our stockholders from replacing a majority of our board of directors at any given annual meeting, it may entrench
management and discourage unsolicited stockholder proposals that may be in the best interests of stockholders. Moreover, our board of directors has the ability to

designate the terms of and issue new series of preferred stock.

We are also subject to anti-takeover provisions under Delaware law, which could delay or prevent a change of control. Together these provisions may
make more difficult the removal of management and may discourage transactions that otherwise could involve payment of a premium over prevailing market
prices for our securities.

Uninsured claims and litigation could adversely impact our operating results.

After a business combination, we expect to have insurance coverage against operating hazards, including product liability claims and personal injury
claims related to our products, to the extent deemed prudent by our management and to the extent insurance is available, but no assurance can be given that the
nature and amount of that insurance will be sufficient to fully indemnify us against liabilities arising out of pending and future claims and litigation. This
insurance has deductibles or self-insured retentions and contains certain coverage exclusions. The insurance does not cover damages from breach of contract by
us or based on alleged fraud or deceptive trade practices. Insurance and customer agreements do not provide complete protection against losses and risks, and our
results of operations could be adversely affected by unexpected claims not covered by insurance.

‘We may re-incorporate in another jurisdiction in connection with a business combination, and the laws of such jurisdiction will likely govern all
of our material agreements and we may not be able to enforce our legal rights. .

In connection with a business combination, we may relocate the home jurisdiction of our business from Delaware to another jurisdiction. If we determine
to do this, the laws of such jurisdiction would likely govern all of our material agreements. We cannot assure you that the system of laws and the enforcement of
existing laws in such jurisdiction would be as certain in implementation and interpretation as in the United States. The inability to enforce or obtain a remedy
under any of our future agreements could result in a significant loss of business, business opportunities or capital. Any such reincorporation and the international
nature of the energy industry will likely subject us to foreign regulation.

Risks Related to Our Target Businesses
The energy industry is highly competitive.

There is intense competition in the energy industry, including in the petroleum refining, distribution, marketing and related industries. Fully integrated
companies engaged on a national and international basis compete in many segments of the energy industry, on scales that may be much larger than ours. Large
oil companies, because of the diversity and integration of their operations, larger capitalization and greater resources, may be better able to withstand volatile
market conditions, compete on the basis of price, and more readily obtain crude oil and feedstocks in times of shortage and to bear the economic risks inherent in

all phases of the energy industry.

The price volatility of crude oil, other feedstocks and refined products depends upon many factors that are beyond our control and could
adversely affect our profitability.

If we consummate a business combination with a target company in the business of refining crude oil, we anticipate that our earnings, profitability and
cash flows will depend on the margin above fixed and variable expenses (including the cost of refinery feedstocks, such as crude oil) at which we are able to sell
refined products. Refining margins historically have been volatile, and are likely to continue to be volatile, as a result of a variety of factors, including
fluctuations in the prices of crude oil. Prices of crude oil, other feedstocks and refined products depend on numerous factors beyond our control, including:

. changes in global and local economic conditions;
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. demand for fuel products, especially in the United States, China and India;

. U.S. government regulations;

. worldwide political conditions, particularly in significant oil-producing regions such as the Middle East, West Africa and Venezuela;

. terrorist attacks;

. utilization rates of U.S. refineries;

. the level of foreign and domestic production of crude oil and refined products;

. development and marketing of alternative and competing fuels; and

. local factors, including market conditions, weather conditions and the level of operations of other refineries and pipelines in our markets.

A large, rapid increase in crude oil prices could adversely affect our operating margins if the increased cost of raw materials could not be passed to our
customers on a timely basis, and would adversely affect our sales volumes if consumption of refined products, particularly transportation fuels, were to decline as
a result of such price increases. The prices which we may obtain for refined products are also affected by regional factors, such as local market conditions and the
operations of competing refiners of petroleum products, as well as seasonal factors influencing demand for such products.

If our expectations about trends in the prices of crude ol relative to refined products are inaccurate, our ability to implement our business plan
profitably could be negatively affected.

If we consummate a business combination with a target company in the business of refining crude oil, we may be adversely affected by the price
differential between crude oil and refined products, which is referred to as the crack spread. The crack spread has been widening above historical levels since
2000, partly due to relatively high demand for refined products and limited refining capacity. We will evaluate opportunities in the energy industry, and in
particular in the refining sector, based in part on our expectations regarding trends in the price of crude oil relative to the price of refined products. Should our
expectations about these trends be inaccurate, our ability to implement our business plan could be negatively affected.

If the price differential between heavy, sour crude oil and light, sweet crude oil returns to historical levels, our ability to implement our business
plan could be negatively affected.

If we consummate a business combination with a target company in the business of refining crude oil, our business may be adversely affected by
differences between heavy, sour crude oils and light, sweet crude oils. Heavy, sour crude oils generally provide more profitable refining margins than light, sweet
crude oils. Since 2000, the price differential between light, sweet crude oil and heavy, sour crude oil has been widening from historical levels due to the relatively
high demand for light crude oil and an increased supply of heavy crude oil. We believe that this widening is part of a fundamental shift in both the light/heavy
and sweet/sour differentials, and that these differentials are likely to remain above levels seen prior to 2000 because of increased global production of heavier,
higher-sulfur crude oil combined with the fact that the industry does not have adequate refining capacity capable of processing these heavier, higher-sulfur crude
oils. However, should actual price trends differ and light/heavy and sweet/sour differentials revert to levels observed prior to 2000, our ability to take advantage
of this trend could be negatively affected.

Significant declines in the price of crude oil may disrupt the supply of heavy, sour crude oil and cause a narrowing of the price differentials
between heavy, sour crude oil and light, sweet crude oil.

If we consummate a business combination with a target company in the business of refining crude oil, our business may be adversely affected by the
increased costs of extracting heavy, sour crude oil and a disruption of
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this supply. Heavy, sour crude oil is generally costlier to extract and process than light, sweet crude oil. Significant declines in the overall price of crude oil could

disrupt the supply of certain heavy, sour crude oils should the price declines be large enough that continuing to produce those heavy, sour crude oils becomes
unprofitable. In addition, any resulting scarcity of supply of certain types of heavy, sour crudes could cause light/heavy and sweet/sour differentials to narrow. If
we effect a business combination with a target whose operations are dependent on access to heavy, sour crudes, such a disruption could negatively affect our

business.

If adequate infrastructure does not exist or is not built to provide us access to heavy, sour crude oil, our ability to effect a business combination in
the energy industry conld be negatively affected.

If we consummate a business combination with a target company in the oil refining or a related industry, the profitability of any business we acquire may
be dependent upon the availability of existing or future infrastructure providing uninterrupted access to supplies of heavy, sour crude oil. This could include, but
is not limited to, existing and proposed pipelines for the conveyance of heavy crude oils between producing areas globally. Furthermore, if infrastructure were
proposed that would provide our facilities with access to heavy, sour crude oil, we might choose to upgrade or expand our facilities in order to process or
otherwise use this heavy crude oil. If a subsequent delay or a failure to build the proposed infrastructure then prevented us from obtaining adequate supplies of
heavy crude oil, our ability to implement our business plan could be negatively affected.

We may be subject to interruptions of supply as a result of relying on pipelines for transportation of crude oil and refined products.

If we consummate our initial business combination with a target business in the energy industry, our business may rely heavily on pipelines to receive and
transport crude oil and refined products. We could experience an interruption of supply or delivery, or an increased cost of receiving and transporting crude oil
and refined products if operation of these pipelines is disrupted because of accidents, natural disasters, governmental regulation, terrorism, other third-party
action or other events beyond our control. Qur prolonged inability to use any of the pipelines that transport crude oil or refined products could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Furthermore, the nature of our business or our business plan may require that we
upgrade or supplement inbound pipelines, which could require us to make substantial additional capital expenditures.

If we were to acquire refining assets or a company with agreements to purchase refining assets, it is highly unlikely that the proxy materials
provided to our stockholders would include historical financial statements and, accordingly, investors will not have historical financial statements on
which te rely in making their decision whether to vote for the acquisition.

If we were to acquire refining assets or a company with agreements to purchase refining assets, it is highly unlikely that the proxy statement we would
send to stockholders would, unless otherwise required by applicable law or regulations, contain historical financial statements with respect to the operation of the
assets. Although we would provide such historical financial statements if required by applicable law or regulations, such historical financial statements are not
often required. Instead, the proxy statement we would send to our stockholders would contain the same information that would typically be provided in the
prospectus for an initial public offering of a start-up energy company, such as: (i) historical and prevailing market rates for refining assets on the basis of type,
age and proposed employment; (ii) our expectations of future market trends and proposed strategy for employment of the refining assets; (iii) our anticipated
operational (overhead) expenses; and (iv) the valuation of the refining assets generally (i.c., whether they are new buildings and the type of refining asset), all of
which, in turn, depend on the sector of the energy industry in which we consummate a business combination. Thus, you would not necessary be able to rely on
historical financial statements when deciding whether to approve a business combination involving the acquisition of refining assets or a company with
agreements to purchase refining assets.
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To the extent our business combination consists of the acquisition of assets that do not have historical financial information, we will determine whether

such business combination has a fair market value of at least 80.0% of our net assets held in the trust account (exclusive of the underwriters’ deferred
underwriting compensation plus interest thereon, net of taxes payable, held in the trust account) at the time of such acquisition based on the value of the assets, as
determined by the advice of our advisors consistent with industry practice. Such valuation will factor in, among other things, the revenue stream generated from
ongoing operations and analysis of recent public transactions providing valuation criteria based on the Nelson Complexity Index and/or valuation based on dollar
value per barrel of crude thruput capacity.

Our profitability may be limited if we cannot obtain necessary permits and authorizations to modify our purchased assets.

If we consummate our initial business combination with a target company in the business of refining crude oil, our profitability may be linked to our
ability to upgrade the refinery to process a heavier, higher-sulfur content crude oil or to yield lighter, higher-margin products. Our profitability also may be
dependent on our ability to expand the capacity of the refinery. If we are unable to obtain the necessary permits and authorizations to effect an upgrade or
expansion, or if the costs of making changes to or obtaining these permits or authorizations exceed our estimates, our profitability could be negatively affected.

The profitability of the target business we acquire may be limited if we cannot secure an engineering, procurement and construction (“EPC”)
centractor to perform upgrades or expansions.

The profitability of the target business we acquire may be linked to our ability to upgrade and expand its business. In order to implement an upgrade or
expansion, we expect to hire an EPC contractor. Due to a recent surge in construction projects across the energy industry, we may experience difficulties in
securing an EPC contractor in a timely fashion to execute our proposed projects. If we are unable to contract an EPC contractor to effect an upgrade or expansion
in a timely fashion, our profitability could be negatively affected.

If we consummate our initial business combination with a target business in the refining industry, we may experience difficulties in marketing
some of our products.

Our ability to market the products of a target business we acquire may depend on:

. obtaining the financing necessary to develop our feedstock, such as crude oil, to the point where production is suitable for sale;
. the proximity, capacity and cost of pipelin'es and other facilities for the transportation of crude oil and refined products;

. the quantity and quality of the refined products produced; and

. the availability of viable purchasers willing to buy our refined products.

If we experienced a catastrophic loss and our insurance was not adequate to cover such loss, it could have 2 material adverse affect on our
operations.

If we consummate our initial business combination and acquire ownership and operation of refineries or related storage and other facilities, our business
could be affected by a number of risks, including mechanical failure, personal injury, loss or damage, business interruption due to political conditions in foreign
countries, hostilities, labor strikes, adverse weather conditions and catastrophic disasters, including environmental accidents. All of these risks could result in
liability, loss of revenues, increased costs and loss of reputation. We intend to maintain insurance, consistent with industry standards, against these risks on
business assets we may acquire upon completion of our initial business combination. However, we cannot assure you that we will be able to adequately insure
against all risks, that any particular claim will be paid out of our insurance, or that we will be able to procure adequate insurance coverage at commercially
reasonable rates in the future. Our insurers will
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also require us to pay certain deductible amounts, before they will pay claims, and insurance policies will contain limitations and exclusions, which, although we
believe will be standard for the refining industry, may nevertheless increase our costs and lower our profitability.

Additionally, any changes to environmental and other regulations or changes in the insurance market may also result in increased costs for, or decreased
availability of, insurance we would currently anticipate purchasing against the risks of environmental damage, pollution and other claims for damages that may
be asserted against us.

Our inability to obtain insurance sufficient to cover potential claims or the failure of insurers to pay any significant claims, could have a material adverse
effect on our profitability and operations.

The dangers inherent in the refining and marketing of petroleum products could cause disruptions and could expose us to potentially significant
losses, costs or liabilities.

Businesses involved in the refining, distribution and marketing of petroleum products and related activities are subject to significant hazards and risks
inherent in refining operations and in transporting and storing crude oil, intermediate products and refined products. These hazards and risks include, but are not
limited to, the following:

. natural disasters, fires, or explosions;

. spills and pipeline ruptures;

. third-party interference;

. disruptions of electricity deliveries; and

. mechanical failure of equipment at our refinery or third-party facilities.

Any of the foregoing could result in production and distribution difficulties and disruptions, environmental pollution, personal injury or wrongful death claims
and other damage to our property and the property of others. There is also risk of mechanical failure and equipment shutdowns both in the ordinary course of
operations and following unforeseen events.

We may have environmental liabilities as a result of our ownership or operation of contaminated properties or relating to exposure to hazardous
or toxic materials.

We could be subject to claims and may incur costs arising out of human exposure to hazardous or toxic substances relating to our operations, our
properties, our buildings or to the sale, distribution or disposal of any products containing any hazardous or toxic substances and produced in connection with our
business.

Properties or facilities owned, leased or operated in conjunction with the energy industry may be contaminated due to energy or other historical industrial
uses at or near the property. Regulators may impose clean-up obligations if contamination is identified on a property, and third parties or regulators may make
claims against owners or operators of properties for personal injuries, property damage or natural resource damage associated with releases of hazardous or toxic
substances. Even if the business we purchase did not cause the contamination or release, certain environmental laws hold current and previous owners or
operators of real property liable for the costs of cleaning up contamination regardless of whether they knew of or were responsible for the contamination. These
environmental laws also may impose liability on any person who arranges for the disposal or treatment of hazardous substances, regardless of whether the
affected site is or was ever owned or operated by such person.

Finally, it is possible that a target business we purchase may have historical liabilities relating to previous operations or the previous ownership of real
property or facilities. While we may be able to structure a transaction to leave those types of liabilities with the seller, it may not be possible to do so as a legal or
practical matter. As a result, we may ultimately have liability for environmental matters that do not relate to businesses we operate.
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‘We will be subject to significant environmental, safety and other governmental regulations and may incur significant costs to comply with these

regulations.

The oil refining, distribution and marketing industry and related activities are subject to extensive and increasingly stringent environmental protection,
safety and other related foreign, federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations and treatics. We cannot assure you that we will be able to comply with all laws,
rules, regulations and treaties following a business combination. If we are unable to adhere to these requirements, or if we are unable to obtain or maintain
compliance with our environmental permits we could be subject to civil or criminal penalties and fines and to material restrictions on our business and
operations. The costs of complying with these requirements and any adverse operational impact of compliance could have a material adverse effect on our
profitability and operations. Certain segments of the energy industry are also subject to the payment of royalties, and the level of taxation of the energy industry
tends to be high compared with that of other commercial activities.

Hazards inherent in refining operations will require continual oversight and control.

If we consummate our initial business combination, we may be engaged in transporting and refining potentially toxic materials in the course of our
business. There is a risk of leaks or spillages of crude oil, petroleum products and other potentially hazardous materials at operating sites and during
transportation. If operational risks materialized, it could result in loss of life, damage to the environment or loss of production. We will attempt to conduct our
activities in such a manner that there is no or minimal damage to the environment. However, these risks will require continual oversight and control.

Conservation measures and technological advances conld reduce demand for crude oil and refined products.

Fuel conservation measures, alternative fuel requirements, increasing consumer demand for alternatives to oil and gas, technological advances in fuel
economy and energy generation devices could reduce demand for crude oil and refined petroleum products. We cannot predict when or whether there will be any
change in demand for these products, and any major changes may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows. In addition, we may be adversely affected to the extent we are unable to address any perceived trade-off between the increasing demand for global
access to energy and the protection or improvement of the natural environment.

If the increasing demand for alternative fuels lowers the demand for transportation fuels, our profitability could be negatively affected.

Rising crude oil and refined products prices are increasing the economic feasibility and demand for alternative fuels like ethanol and bio-diesel. New
technologies are being developed to further increase the feasibility and enhance the performance of these fuels. Additionally, energy security concerns,
agricultural interests, environmental activists, and others are increasing the visibility of alternative fuels as a substitute for transportation fuels. Should these
trends continue and the demand for alternative fuels continue to rise, consequently lowering the demand for petroleum-based transportation fuels, our
profitability could be negatively affected.

Foreign currency fluctuations could adversely affect our business and financial results.

Crude oil prices are generally set in U.S. dollars while sales of refined products may be in a variety of currencies. If we consummate a business
combination with a target business with operations outside of the United States, our business will be subject to risks of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates. In certain markets, we may also experience difficulty in converting local currencies to U.S. dollars, or the market for redemption of local currency into
other currencies may deteriorate or cease to exist.

In addition, a target business with which we combine may do business and generate sales within other countries. Foreign currency fluctuations may affect
the costs that we incur in such international operations. It is
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also possible that some or all of our operating expenses may be incurred in non-U.S. dollar currencies. The appreciation of non-U.S. dollar currencies in those
countries where we have operations against the U.S. dollar would increase our costs and could harm our results of operations and financial condition.

Following our initial business combination, we may engage in hedging transactions in an attempt to mitigate exposure to price fluctuations in oil
and other petroleum products; these attempts may not be successful.

Following our initial business combination, we may engage in short sales and utilize derivative instruments such as options, futures, forward contracts,
interest rate swaps, caps and floors, to hedge against exposure to fluctuations in the price of crude oil, refined petroleum products and other energy portfolio
positions, as well as foreign currency exchange and interest rates. Hedging transactions may not be as effective as we intend in reducing our exposure to these
fluctuations and any resulting volatility in our cash flows, and if we incorrectly assess market trends and risks, may result in a poorer overall performance than if
we had not engaged in any such hedging transactions.

Compliance with governmental regulations and changes in laws and regulations and risks from investigations and legal proceedings could be
costly and could adversely affect operating results.

The oil industry is subject to regulation and intervention by governments throughout the world in such matters as exploration and production interests,
environmental protection controls, controls over the development and decommissioning of a field (including restrictions on production) and, possibly,
nationalization, expropriation, cancellation or non-renewal of contract rights. The oil and gas industry is also subject to the payment of royalties and taxation,
which tend to be high compared with those payable in respect of other commercial activities and operates in certain tax jurisdictions which have a degree of
uncertainty relating to the interpretation of, and changes to, tax law. As a result of new laws and regulations or other factors, we could be required to curtail or
cease certain operations.

A target business’ operations in the U.S. and internationally can be impacted by expected and unexpected changes in the legal and business environments
in which we could operate, as well as the outcome of ongoing government and internal investigations and legal proceedings.

Changes that could impact the legal environment include new legislation, new regulation, new policies, investigations and legal proceedings and new
interpretations of the existing legal rules and regulations. In particular, changes in export control laws or exchange control laws, additional restrictions on doing
business in countries subject to sanctions, and changes in laws in countries identified by management for immediate focus. Changes that impact the business
environment include changes in accounting standards, changes in environmental laws, changes in tax laws or tax rates, the resolution of audits by various tax
authorities, and the ability to fully utilize our tax loss carryforwards and tax credits. Compliance related issues could limit our ability to do business in certain
countries.

These changes could have a significant financial impact on our future operations and the way we conduct, or if we conduct, business in the affected

countries.

Demand for refining services is expected to be substantially dependent on the level of expenditures by the oil industry. A substantial or an
extended decline in oil prices could result in lower expenditures by the oil industry and reduce our revenue.

Demand for refining services is expected to be substantially dependent on the level of expenditures by the oil and gas industry for the exploration,
development and production of crude oil reserves, which are sensitive to oil prices and generally dependent on the industry’s view of future oil prices. Oil prices
have historically been volatile and are affected by numerous factors, including:

. demand for energy, which is affected by worldwide population growth and generai economic and business conditions;
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. the ability of the Organization of Petroleumn Exporting Countries, or OPEC, to set and maintain production levels for oil;

. oil and gas production by non-OPEC countries;

. political and economic uncertainty and socio-political unrest;
. the level of worldwide oil exploration and production activity;
. the cost of exploring for, producing and delivering oil and gas;
. technological advances affecting energy consumption; and

. weather conditions.

Fluctuations in oil prices could adversely affect refining activity and our revenues, cash flows and profitability.

Upon consummation of a business combination, it is likely that our operations will be materially dependent upon the level of activity in oil production.
Both short-term and long-term trends in oil prices affect the level of such activity. Oil prices and, therefore, the level of refining activity can be volatile.
Worldwide military, political and economic events, including initiatives by the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries, may affect both the demand for,
. and the supply of, oil. Weather conditions, governmental regulation (both in the United States and elsewhere), levels of consumer demand, the availability of
pipeline capacity and other factors beyond our control may also affect the supply of and demand for refined petroleum products. Fluctuations during the last few
years in the demand and supply of oil have contributed to, and are likely to continue to contribute to, price volatility. This would likely result in a corresponding
decline in the demand for refining services and could have a material adverse effect on our revenues, cash flows and profitability if we consummate a business
combination in that sector. Lower oil prices could also cause our potential customers to seek to terminate, renegotiate or fail to honor our contracts; affect the fair
market value of any refining assets we may acquire which in turn could trigger a writedown for accounting purposes; affect our ability to retain skilled personnel
which may be employees of any acquisition candidate; and affect our ability to obtain access to capital to finance and grow our businesses. There can be no
assurances as to the future level of demand for our services or future conditions in the oil and refinery services industries.

Excess production capacity and lower future demand could adversely impact a target business’ results of operations.

We believe oil storage inventory levels are an indicator of the relative balance between supply and demand. High or increasing storage or inventories
generally indicate that supply is exceeding demand and that energy prices are likely to soften. Low or decreasing storage or inventories are an indicator that
demand is growing faster than supply and that energy prices are likely to rise. Measures of maximum production capacity compared to demand (excess
production capacity) are also an important factor influencing energy prices and spending by oil and natural gas exploration companies. When excess production
capacity is low compared to demand, energy prices tend to be higher and more volatile reflecting the increased vulnerability of the entire system to disruption.
This could adversely affect a target business’ results of operations. :

Seasonal and adverse weather conditions, conservational measures and technical advances adversely affect demand for our services and
operations after a business combination.

Weather can also have a significant impact on demand as consumption of energy is seasonal and any variation from normal weather patterns, cooler or
warmer summers and winters, can have a significant impact on demand. After a business combination, adverse weather conditions, such as hurricanes in the Gulf
of Mexico, may cause supply disruptions and result in a loss of revenue and damage to our equipment and facilities, which may or may not be insured.
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Fuel conservation measures, alternative fuel requirements, increasing consumer demand for alternatives to oil, technological advances in fuel economy and
energy generation devices could reduce demand for oil and gas. We cannot predict the impact of the changing demand for oil and gas services and products, and
any major changes may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Changes in economic conditions may adversely affect our operating results.

After a business combination, our ability to forecast the size of and changes in the worldwide oil industry, and our ability to forecast our customers’
activity levels and demand for our products and services, may impact management of any service and distribution activities we then own, staffing levels and cash
and financing requirements. Unanticipated changes in our customers’ requirements could impact costs, creating temporary shortages or surpluses of equipment
and people and demands for cash or financing.

International and political events could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

A significant portion of our post business combination revenue may be derived from non-United States operations, which exposes us to risks inherent in
doing business in each of the countries in which we transact business. The occurrence of any of the risks described below could have a material adverse effect on
our results of operations and financial condition. Operations in countries other than the United States are subject to various risks peculiar to each country. With
respect to any particular country, these risks may include:

. expropriation and nationalization of our assets in that country;

. political and economic instability; civil unrest, acts of terrorism, force of nature, war, or other armed conflict;

. natural disasters, including those related to earthquakes and flooding;

. inflation; currency fluctuations, devaluations, and conversion restrictions;

. confiscatory taxation or other adverse tax policies;

. governmental activities that limit or disﬁxpt markets, restrict payments, or limit the movement of funds; governmental activities that may result in

the deprivation of contract rights; and

. governmental activities that may result in the inability to obtain or retain licenses required for operation.

Due to the unsettled political conditions in many oil-producing countries and countries in which we may operate, our revenue and profits are subject to the
adverse consequences of war, the effects of terrorism, civil unrest, strikes, currency controls, and governmental actions. Countries where we may operate that
have significant amounts of political risk include: Afghanistan, Algeria, Indonesia, Iran, Iraq, Nigeria, Russia, and Venezuela. In addition, military action or
continued unrest in the Middle East could impact the supply and pricing for oil and gas, disrupt our operations in the region and elsewhere, and increase our costs
for security worldwide.

Qur facilities and our employees could come under threat of attack in some countries where we may operate, including Iraq and Saudi Arabia. In addition,
we may become subject to the risk related to loss of life of our personnel and our subcontractors in these areas. We are also subject to the risks that our
employees, joint venture partners, and agents outside of the United States may fail to comply with applicable laws.

Military action, other armed conflicts, or terrorist attacks could limit or disrupt markets and our operations.

Military action in Iraq and Afghanistan, military tension involving North Korea and Iran, as well as the terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001 and
subsequent terrorist attacks, threats of attacks, and unrest, have

45

Source: United Refining Ener, 10-K, December 01, 2008



Table of Contents
caused instability or uncertainty in the world’s financial and commercial markets and have significantly increased political and economic instability in some of

the geographic areas in which we may operate a target business. Acts of terrorism and threats of armed conflicts in or around various areas in which we may
operate, such as the Middle East and Indonesia, could limit or disrupt markets and our operations, including disruptions resulting from the evacuation of
personnel, cancellation of contracts, or the loss of personnel or assets.

Such events may cause further disruption to financial and commercial markets and may generate greater political and economic instability in some of the
geographic areas in which we may operate. In addition, any possible reprisals as a consequence of the war and ongoing military action in Iraq, such as acts of
terrorism in the United States or elsewhere, could materially and adversely affect us in ways we cannot predict at this time.

Income taxes could adversely affect a target business’ operations.

A target business may have operations in countries other than the United States. Consequently, we could be subject to the jurisdiction of a significant
number of taxing authorities. The income earned in these various jurisdictions is taxed on differing bases, including net income actually earned, net income
deemed earned, and revenue-based tax withholding. The final determination of our tax liabilities involves the interpretation of local tax laws, tax treaties, and
related authorities in each jurisdiction, as well as the significant use of estimates and assumptions regarding the scope of future operations and results achieved
and the timing and nature of income earned and expenditures incurred. Changes in the operating environment, including changes in tax law and
currency/repatriation controls, could impact the determination of our tax liabilities for a tax year.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.
Not applicable.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.
‘We currently maintain our executive offices at 823 Eleventh Avenue, New York, New York. We consider our current office space adequate for our current
operations.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

There is no material litigation currently pending against us.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.
Not applicable.
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PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES.
Our equity securities trade on the NYSE Alternext US. Each of our units consists of one share of common stock and one warrant to purchase one share of
common stock and trades on the NYSE Alternext US under the symbol “URX.U.” On January 29, 2008, the common stock and warrants included in our units
began to trade separately on the NYSE Alternext US under the symbols “URX” and “URX.W,” respectively.

The following table sets forth the high and low sales information for our units for the period from December 12, 2007 through August 31, 2008 and our
common stock and warrants for the period from January 29, 2008 through August 31, 2008.

Units Common Stock Warrants
Period Ended High Low High Low High Low
February 29, 2008 9.93 9.71 9.18 9.02 .80 .67
May 31, 2008 9.99 9.50 9.19 9.03 .68 45
August 31, 2008 10.10 9.70 9.47 9.14 .84 35

Holders of Record

As of November 24, 2008, there were approximately one holder of record of our units, approximately two holders of record of our common stock and
approximately two holders of record of our warrants. Such numbers do not include beneficial owners holding shares, warrants or units through nominee names.

Use of Proceeds from our Initial Public Offering

On December 17, 2007, we consummated our initial public offering of 45,000,000 units. The securities sold in the our initial public offering were
registered under the Securities Act on a registration statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-144704). The SEC declared the registration statement
effective on December 11, 2007. All of the units registered were sold at an offering price of $10.00 per unit and generated gross proceeds of $450,000,000. Each
unit consists of one share of common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, and one warrant. Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase from us one share of
common stock at an exercise price of $7.00 per share. Each warrant will become exercisable on the later of our completion of a business combination or
December 11, 2008 and will expire on December 11, 2011, or earlier upon redemption.

In connection with our offering, we incurred a total of $15,750,000 in underwriting discounts and $1,150,000 for costs and expenses related to the offering.
The underwriters have agreed to defer an additional $15,750,000 of the underwriting discount (equal to 3.5% of the gross proceeds of the offering). These
proceeds are held in the trust account and will not be released until the earlier to occur of the completion of our initial business combination or our liquidation. In
addition, the trust account holds the proceeds from the sale of the warrants on a private placement basis. In total, we deposited $448,700,000 in the trust account
and $150,000 was held outside of the trust. The remaining proceeds and up to $3,700,000 of interest income generated on the trust account are available to be
used by us to provide for business, legal and accounting due diligence on prospective acquisitions and continuing general and administrative expenses. Excluding_
$15,750,000 million of the deferred underwriter’s fee held in trust and payable upon the consummation of a business combination, we intend to use substantially
all of the remaining net proceeds of the initial public offering to acquire a target business, including identifying and evaluating prospective acquisition
candidates, selecting the target business, and structuring, negotiating and consummating the business combination. To the extent that our capital stock is used in
whole or in part as consideration to effect a business combination, the proceeds held in the trust fund as well as any other net proceeds not expended will be used
to finance the operations of the target business.
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No expenses of the initial public offering were paid to any of our officers and directors or any of their respective affiliates. We did, however, repay certain
of our officers and directors for loans they made to us prior to the consummation of the initial public offering. The aggregate amount of principal on such loans
that we repaid was $300,000. These loans were non-interest bearing. All the funds held in the trust account have been invested in either Treasury Bills or Money
Market Accounts.

Dividends

‘We have not paid any dividends on our common stock to date and do not intend to pay cash dividends prior to the completion of an initial business
combination. The payment of dividends in the future will depend on our revenues and earnings, if any, capital requirements and general financial condition after
an initial business combination is completed. The payment of any dividends subsequent to an initial business combination will be within the discretion of our
then-board of directors. It is the present intention of our board of directors to retain any earnings for use in our business operations and, accordingly, we do not
anticipate the board declaring any dividends in the foreseeable future.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

None.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

The following table summarizes the relevant financial data for our business and should be read in conjunction with our financial statements and the notes
and schedules thereto, which are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Period from

inception
(June 25, 2007)
to August 31, 2008

tatement of Operations Data:

T
$ 8,164,755

Interest Income

- Compensation expense to sponsor ..~ .. = . - T [ 1 3980 000[ |

Formation and operatmg costs _ 806,926

“Net income L : E e RE R
Accrenon of Trust Account rclatmg to common stock subject to p0551ble conversnon 1,943,157
DNet income attributable to commmon stockholders. | e e ] Ao 1 h0,067,328)
Earnings per share data:

Jeighted average number of shares outstanding, basic and diluted A el | 130,356,558 |
Net loss per share, basic and diluted $ )
Iiitiber of shares outstanding subject to possible conversion, basic and diluted. .. o i L 117,999,999 ]
Net income per share subject to possible conversion, basic and diluted $ 11
Statement of Cash Flows Data: T T T ] B
Net cash used in operating activities $ (3,614,414)
Cash contributed to Trust Account e i (456,852.004))
Net proceeds from public offering allocable to stockholders eqmty 237,698,082
Portion on niet proceeds from public offering allocable to common stock subjestto possible conversion. = |- Sl 179,459,990
Proceeds from issuance of insider warrants 15,600,000
Net proceeds of units through public offering deferred as underwriters. fees: oo T e T 15.950,0000

August 31,
2008
Selected Balance Sheet Data: : R : L = T i
Cash and cash eqmvalents $ 68,659
Investments held in Trust Account including accried interest SR : e ] : [ 1453.014.755]]
Total assets 453,420,902
Common stock subject to possible conversion : o L : ] N [ 181,403,148
Total stockholders’ equity 256,235,754
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

Overview

The Company was formed on June 25, 2007, for the purpose of acquiring, merging with, engaging in a capital stock exchange with, purchasing all or
substantially all of the assets of or engaging in any other similar business combination of an unidentified operating business (“Business Combination™). The
Company intends to focus on identifying a prospective target business in the energy industry throughout the world, with a particular focus on businesses or assets
involved in the refining of petroleum and specialized products (such as petrochemicals) and services to the energy industry, but our efforts will not be limited to
the energy industry.

For the twelve months ended August 31, 2008, the Company had net income of $877,894, attributable to compensation, formation and operating costs
expenses offset by interest income from trust account investments. For the period ended August 31, 2008, interest income was $8,164,755.

On December 17, 2007, we consummated our initial public offering (the “Offering™) of 45,000,000 units (the “Units™) at a price of $10.00 per unit. Net
proceeds from our initial public offering totaled approximately $448,700,000, which includes $15,600,000 from the sale of the warrants to United Refining, Inc.,
our sponsor (the “Sponsor™), in a private placement completed immediately prior to the initial public offering and was net of $16,900,000 in underwriting fees
and other expenses paid at closing. Each unit consists of one share of the Company’s common stock and one warrant to purchase one share of common stock. On
December 10, 2007, the Company sold to the Sponsor, 15,600,000 warrants, which we refer to as insider warrants, for an aggregate purchase of $15,600,000.
The sale of the insider warrants to the Sponsor did not result in the recognition of any stock-based compensation expense because they were sold at or above fair
market value.

Each Unit consists of one share of the Company’s common stock, $0.0001 par value per share (the “Common Stock™), and one Callable Common Stock
Purchase Warrant (“Warrant™). Each Warrant will entitle the holder to purchase from the Company one share of Common Stock at an exercise price of $7.00
commencing the later of the consummation of a Business Combination or one year from the effective date of the registration statement related to the Offering and
expiring on the fourth anniversary thereof. The Warrants will be callable at a price of $.01 per Warrant upon 30 days’ notice after the Warrants become
exercisable, only in the event that the last sale price of the common stock is at least $14.25 per share for any 20 trading days within a 30 trading day period
ending on the third day prior to the date on which notice of the call is given. The Company may not call the Warrants unless the Warrants and the shares of
common stock underlying the Warrants are covered by an effective registration statement from the beginning of the measurement period through the date fixed
for the call.

The Company sold the Units issued in the Offering to the underwriters of the initial public offering (the “Underwriters™) at a price per unit equal to $9.30
(discount and compensation of $0.70 per share), resulting in an aggregate underwriting fee to the Underwriters of $31,500,000.

There are 30,650,000 authorized but unissued shares of our Common Stock available for issuance (after appropriate reservation for the issuance of shares
upon full exercise of the outstanding Warrants) and all of the 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock available for issuance. On January 15, 2008, the Underwriters
informed the Company that they will exercise no part of the over-allotment option (the “Over-allotment Option™) granted to the Underwriters of the Offering.
The Sponsor has forfeited 1,687,500 shares as the Over-allotment Option was not exercised in order for the Sponsor to maintain ownership of 20.0% of the
Company’s outstanding common stock.

The Company utilizes certain administrative, technology and secretarial services, as well as certain limited office space provided by the Sponsor. The
Sponsor has agreed that, until the acquisition of a target business by the Company, it will make such services available to the Company, as may be required by
the Company from time to time. The Company has agreed to pay United Refining, Inc. $7,500 per month for such services commencing on the effective date of

the Offering.
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In connection with the Offering, the Company entered into an underwriting agreement (the “Underwriting Agreement”) with Deutsche Bank Securities

Inc. and Maxim Group LLC, as joint representatives of the underwriters in the Offering.

Pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, the Company is obligated to the Underwriters for certain fees and expenses related to the Offering, including
underwriting discounts and commission of $31,500,000, of which $15,750,000 was paid at the closing and $15,750,000 has been deferred upon the
consummation of a business combination. The deferred discount can be reduced up to $6,299,999 if up to one share less than 40% of the aggregate number of
shares of Common Stock Public Stockholders (defined below) seek redemption.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

On December 11, 2007, we completed our public purchase offering of 45,000,000 Units. Each Unit consists of one share of Common Stock, par value
$0.001 per share, and one Warrant. As of August 31, 2008, we had cash of $68,659. Until the consummation of the Offering, the only source of liquidity was
$300,000 of loans made to us by the Sponsor. This loan was repaid on December 17, 2007 from the proceeds of the Offering.

The registration statement for the Company’s Offering was declared effective on December 11, 2007. The Company consummated the Offering on
December 17, 2007 and received net proceeds of $448,700,000, which includes $15,600,000 from the Warrants sold in a private placement to the Sponsor (the
“Insider Warrants™) and includes $15,750,000 of Underwriters deferred discount. The Company’s management intends to apply substantially all of the net
proceeds of the Offering toward consummating a Business Combination. The initial target business must have a fair market value equal to at least 80% of the
Company’s net assets held in the trust account at the time of such acquisition. However, there is no assurance that the Company will be able to successfully affect
a Business Combination.

The Company’s amended and restated certificate of corporation provides that the Company’s corporate existence will cease in the event it does not
consummate a Business Combination by December 11, 2009 or June 11, 2010 in the event the holders of the common stock sold as part of the Units in the
Offering (“Public Stockholders™) approve a proposal to extend the period of time to consummate a Business Combination by an additional six (6) months (the
“Extended Period™). If the Company does not effect a Business Combination by December 11, 2009 or June 11, 2010, as the case may be, the Company will
promptly distribute the amount held in trust, which is substantially all of the proceeds from the Offering, including any accrued interest, to its Public
Stockholders.

Off-Balance Sheet Financing Arrangements

We have no obligations, assets or liabilities which would be considered off-balance sheet arrangements. We do not participate in iransactions that create
relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, often referred to as variable interest entities, which would have been established for the
purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet financing.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Market risk is the sensitivity of income to changes in interest rates, foreign exchanges, commodity prices, equity prices, and other market-driven rates or
prices. We are not presently engaged in and, if a suitable business target is not identified by us prior to the prescribed liquidation date of the trust fund, we may
not engage in, any substantive commercial business. Accordingly, we are not and, until such time as we consummate a business combination, we will not be,
exposed to risks associated with foreign exchange rates, commodity prices, equity prices or other market-driven rates or prices. The net proceeds of our initial
public offering held in the trust fund have been invested only in money market funds meeting certain conditions under Rule 2a-7 promulgated under the
Investment Company Act of 1940. Given our limited risk in our exposure to money market funds, we do not view the interest rate risk to be significant.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

The financial staterments of the company and the report thereon of BDO Seidman LLP, dated November 14, 2008 for the fiscal years ended August 31,
2008 and 2007 are included hérein:

. Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
. Balance Sheets at August 31, 2008 and 2007.
. Statements of Income, Cash Flows and Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007.

. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors
United Refining Energy Corporation
New York, New York

‘We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of United Refining Energy Corporation (a corporation in the development stage) as of August 31, 2008
and August 31, 2007 and the related statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the year ended August 31, 2008, periods from June 25,
2007 (inception) to August 31, 2008 and June 25, 2007 (inception) to August 31, 2007. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express and opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

‘We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not
required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation provides that the Company’s corporate existence will cease
in the event it does not consuminate a Business Combination by December 11, 2009 or June 11, 2010 in the event the holders of the common stock sold as part of
the Units in the Offering (“Public Stockholders™) approve a proposal to extend the period of time to consummate a Business Combination by an additional six
(6) months (the “Extended Period”). If the Company does not effect a Business Combination by December 11, 2009 or June 11, 2010, as the case may be, the
Company will promptly distribute the amount held in trust (the “Trust Account™), which is substantially all of the proceeds from the Offering, including any
accrued interest, to its Public Stockholders.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of United Refining Energy
Corporation as of August 31, 2008 and August 31, 2007, and the related statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the year ended
August 31, 2008, periods from June 25, 2007 (inception) to August 31, 2008, and June 25, 2007 (inception) to August 31, 2007 in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States.
/s/ BDO Seidman, LLP

New York, New York
November 14, 2008
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UNITED REFINING ENERGY CORP.
(A Development Stage Company)

BALANCE SHEETS
August 31,
2008 2007

ASSETS : i : i : . : : ] e
Current Assets:
[:7 " Cash and cash equivalents = il : : BBl 68659  §]:22:702]

Cash and cash equivalents held in trust 453,014,755 —
|~ Prepaid expenses . ’ ’ o T 60488 T ol

Deferred offering costs — 259,971
[ "Deferred taxasset - T o T i e Loa b Zegood 1 =

Total Assets $ 453.420, 902 $ 282,673

ILTABILITIES AND:STOCKHOLDERS  EQUITY e e : JE Bl
Current Liabilities:
|- Accrued offering costs: - - BT =T B59.73Y

Note payable—stockholder — 200,000
|- Income taxes payable . - e F : i Sl 32000 E

Deferred underwriters’ fees 15.750.000 —
o - TotakCurrent Liabilities - 0 ) : : G T EI5780000 ] 259,738
Common stock, subject to possnble redemptlon (17 999,999 shares at redemptlon value) 181.403.148 —
'COMMITMENTS (Note 3) : R Ty s P
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

~Preferred Stock:$.0001 par value 1,000.000 shares authorized, none issued or outstanding. o5 :
Common Stock, $.0001 par value, 150,000,000 shares authorized; 38,250,001 and 12,937,500 1ssued and outstandmg,

respectlvglL(pxcludlng 17 999 999 shares subject to redemption at August 31, 2008) 3,825 1,294

[io: Additional paid incapital | = =y 33.708
Retained earnings (deficit) accumu]ated durmg the development stage __ 875829 (2,065
"7 Total Stockholders’ Equity T B . - lm_. 22935}

Total Liabilities and Steckholders’ Equity $ 453,420,902 $ 282,673

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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UNITED REFINING ENERGY CORP.
(A Development Stage Company)

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the period from

For the period from

June 25, 2007 June 25, 2007
Year Ended (inception) to (inception) to
i August 31,2608 ) Auoust3l 2007 August31 2008
Revemue = e TRt s T i S )
Operating expenses:
| 2. Compensation expense to sponser. & S [3980000F T 10— I [3,980.000}
Formation and operating costs 804.861 2.065 806,926
[Loss for the period before interest and incomie taxes ol aTsage T E T (2069 | (4.786.926)|
Interest income 8,164,755 — 8.164.755
lIncome (Ioss) before provision for income taxes | I 1 3,379.89 T 065 I [3.377.829]
Provision for income taxes 2,502,000 — 2,502,000

et income (loss) for the peried

L : 877894 . o S (2,065

Accretion of trust account relating to common stock subject to

possible redemption

1,943,157

Net loss attributable to common shareholders

] B [(1.065263) 1 (2.089)]

Number of shares outstandmg subject to possible

17,999,999 , —

redemptmn———ba ic and dlluted

'ble redempnon—~bas1c and

Welghted average number of shares outstandmg—basm and
diluted

30,356,558

et loss per share —basic and diluted”

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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UNITED REFINING ENERGY CORP.

(A Development Stage Company)

STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the period from June 25, 2607 (Inception) to August 31, 2008

Retained
Earnings (Deficit)
Accumulated
Common Additional Paid During the
Shares Stock in Capital Development Stage Total

Balance at June 25, 2007 (Inception) T s P s =158 L] 5] il
Issuance of common stock to initial stockholder at $0 001

per share 12 937 500 1,294 23,706 — 25,000
Netloss for the period v ' i sl el e S ] Loes - L1 (2.065)
Balance at August 31, 2007 12 937,500 (2,065) 22,935
Tssuance of Sponsor Warrants to purchase 2,500,000 T ' 1 [ ST ; | l { (ﬂ

shares of common stock 1 ] 3,980,00
Proceeds from the sale of 15,600,000 warrants to our

sponsor 15,600,000 — 15,600,000
Sale 0f 45,000,000 units through public offering, net of T :

underwriters discount a 1d_( ffering expenses and

excluding $179,459,990 of proceeds allocable to--

117,999,999, sharcs of common stock subject to p0551ble R

redemption i Sl 37,698,082 |
Forfeiture of 1 687 500 shares of common stock by

sponsor due to non-exercise of over-allotment option

by underwriters 169 — —
rAccretlon of trust account relating to common stock o 7” : 1: ‘ o o

subject to:possible redemption e e L O3S = - (1.943,157);
Net income for the period — — — 877,894 877.894

8 Ds5535600 8 1875829 § 0562357754

Balance at August 31,2008 ©

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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UNITED REFINING ENERGY CORP.
(A Development Stage Company)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

For the Period For the Period
from June 25, 2007 from June 25, 2007
Year Ended (inception) to (inception) to
August 31, 2008 August 31, 2007 August 31, 2008
[Cash flows from operating activities: it : I | [ i bl
Net income (loss) $ 877,894 $ __ (2,065 $ 875,829
Adjustments to. reconcnle 'ne_o'nj;‘e 10 net ashv,gsed in operati ‘ ' s ’ - H
activities:: - i L o S = =
Compensatlon exgense to sgonsor 3,980,000 — 3,980,000
[ ~ Interestincome v -] [ b (8,164,755 | [ =H [T (8164759
Change in operating a nd liabilitie:
Prepaid expenses. ... . =l o (69,488 f B
Income taxes payable 32,000 —
[ . Deferred tax asset .. o L2 (268.000) I T
Net cash used in operatmg actwmes (3. 612,349) $ (2,065)

Purchase of investments hel

Wrthdrawal from tru;

] I
(456 852,004

“capital requirem ' = 13 837 25 0
Interest earned on cash and cash equxvalents held n trust _ 8164755 —
[i - 207 Netcash usedin e a2 5444; 49.999) - [ []
Cash flows from financing activ
. Proceeds from issuance of oc e b T [ 25,000 [ ] 25000
Deferred offering costs 200, 233 (200,233) —
[ Proceeds from issuance of insider Warrants. = ] s T 15,600 OO(X I I el [T 15600000
Net proceeds of units through public offermg deferred as
underwriters’ fees 15 750,000 — 15 750 000
Net proceeds from salec blic offerm allocable to } o Z! I . [ ’ (i i .
.. stockholders equity. » v 237 698,08 : — By
Portion of net proceeds from sale of units through pubhc offermo
allocated to shares of common stock subject to possible
redemption 179,459,990 — 179,459,990
[~ Proceeds from notes payable | . [ o 100000 | [200.000 ] T 300000
Payments of notes payable (300.000) — {300.,000)
{ Net cash provided by financing activities: - i [ 1448508305 | L 24767 | [ 7448533077
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 45,957 22,702 68,659
[Cash and cash equivalents; beginning of period ] [ 22,702 | L ! T
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 68,659 $ 22,702 $ 682659
{Cash paid during the period for: | | T I | | 1 1 B 1
Income taxes $ 2,738,000 — 5 217381000
Supplémental disclosure of non-cash activities: . .. I foofde s [ [ e I L
Accrued offering costs — $ 59,738 —
|~ Compensation expense 10, sponsor. : L E $ [ "3.980.000] | e B I 3.980.000.
Accretion of trust account relating to common stock subJect to
possible redemption $ 1,943,157 $ — $ 1,943,157

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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UNITED REFINING ENERGY CORP.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1—ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

United Refining Energy Corp. (the “Company™) was incorporated in Delaware on June 25, 2007 for the purpose of acquiring, through a merger, capital
stock exchange, asset acquisition or any other similar business combination, an unidentified operating business or assets. The Company intends to focus on
identifying a prospective target business in the energy industry, with a particular focus on businesses or assets involved in the refining of petroleum products
(“Business Combination™), but will not be limited to pursuing acquisition opportunities only within that industry.

At August 31, 2008, the Company is currently evaluating acquisition candidates. All activity through August 31, 2008 relates to the Company’s formation,
the initial public offering, (the “Offering™) described below and its search for a Business Combination. The Company has selected August 31 as its fiscal year
end.

The Company is considered to be a development stage company and as such the financial statements presented herein are presented in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 7.

The registration statement for the Offering was declared effective on December 11, 2007. The Company consummated the Offering on December 17, 2007
and received net proceeds of $448,700,000, which includes $15,600,000 from the Insider Warrants sold in a private placement (described in Note 4) and
$15,750,000 of the underwriters’ deferred discount (See Note 3). The net proceeds from the Offering were placed in a trust account (“Trust Account™)
established for the benefit of the holders of the Common Stock sold as part of the Units in the Offering (the “Public Stockholders™) of the Company. The
Company’s management intends to apply substantially all of the net proceeds of the Offering toward consummating a Business Combination. The initial target
business must have a fair market value equal to at least 80% of the Company’s net assets held in the trust account at the time of such acquisition.

The Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation provides that the Company’s corporate existence will cease in the event it does not
consummate a Business Combination by December 11, 2009 or June 11, 2010 in the event the Public Stockholders approve a proposal to extend the period of
time to consummate a Business Combination by an additional six (6) months (the “Extended Period™). If the Company does not effect a Business Combination
by December 11, 2009 or June 11, 2010, as the case may be, the Company will promptly distribute the amount held in the Trust Account, which is substantially
all of the proceeds from the Offering, including any accrued interest, to its Public Stockholders.

On September 6, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a .625-for-one reverse stock split. All share and per share data in these financial
statements have been adjusted to give effect to the reverse split.

On November 30, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a 2.3-for-one stock dividend. All share and per share data in these financial
statements have been adjusted to give effect to the stock dividend. )

On November 30, 2007, the Company granted to the Sponsor 2,500,000 warrants to purchase up to 2,500,000 shares of Common Stock (the “Sponsor
Warrants™). The Sponsor Warrants are identical to the warrants sold in the Offering, except that: (i) the Sponsor Warrants are exercisable at $12.50 per share,
(ii) the Sponsor Warrants will be non-redeemable so long as they are held by the Sponsor or its permitted assigns and (iii) the Sponsor Warrants expire on
December 11, 2012. The Company performed a Black-Scholes calculation to determine the value of the warrants, using an expected life of 5 years, volatility of
26.67% and a risk free interest rate of 3.38%. The grant of the Sponsor Warrants is recorded as compensation expense in accordance with Financial Accounting
Board Opinion No. 123(R) (Statement 123) and is included in the amount of $3,980,000 in the Company’s Statements of Operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

On December 11, 2007, the Sponsor forfeited 1,437,500 shares of common stock. All shares and per share data in these financial statements have been
adjusted to give effect to the forfeiture.

On January 15, 2008, the Underwriters informed the Company that they would exercise no part of the Over-allotment Option. As a result, the Sponsor
forfeited 1,687,500 shares of Common Stock to maintain ownership of 20.0% of the Company’s outstanding shares of Common Stock.

NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

Thc financial statements include the accounts of the Company. The Company is currently evaluating acquisition candidates. All activity through
August 31, 2008 is related to the Company’s formation, the Offering and its search for a Business Combination. The Company has selected August 31 as its

fiscal year end.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingencies at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting period. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Cash and Cash Equivalents Held in Trust

The Company’s restrictive investment held in the Trust Account at August 31, 2008 is invested in U.S. Government Institutional money market securities.
The Company recognized interest income of $8,164,755 on investments held in trust for the year ended August 31, 2008 and for the period from inception (June,
25,2007) to August 31, 2008, which is included in the accompanying Statements of Operations.

Deferred Offering Costs

Deferred Offering costs as of August 31, 2007 consisted principally of legal, accounting and underwriting fees that are related to the Offering and were
charged to capital upon completion of the Offering.

Deferred Underwriters Fees

Pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, the Company is obligated to the Underwriters for up to $15,750,000 of deferred fees and expenses related to the
Offering, which is payable to the Underwriters upon the consummation of a Business Combination.

Notes Payable

The Company’s sponsor United Refining, Inc. provided two no-interest loans to the Company in the aggregate amount of $300,000 which was repaid at
the consummation of the Offering from the proceeds of the offering. The proceeds of this loan were used to cover pre-offering expenses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Common Stock Subject to Possible Conversion

With respect to the Extended Period (the proposal for which is approved by the Public Stockholders) or the Business Combination which is approved and
consummated, any Public Stockholder who voted against the Extended Period or the Business Combination, as the case may be, may demand that the Company
redeem his or her shares. The initial per share redemption price will equal $9.97 per share (plus a portion of the interest eamed on the Trust Account) but net of:
(1) taxes payable on interest earned on the Trust Account and State of Delaware franchise taxes and (ii) up to $3,700,000 of interest income released to the
Company to fund working capital. Accordingly, Public Stockholders holding up to one share less than 40.0% of the aggregate number of shares owned by all
Public Stockholders may seek redemption of their shares of Common Stock in the event of a Business Combination. Such Public Stockholders are entitled to
receive their per share interest in the Trust Account computed without regard to the shares held by the Initial Stockholder. As a result of this redemption right,
$179,459,990 plus accretion of $1,943,157 has been classified as Common Stock, Subject to Possible Redemption on the accompanying balance sheet as of
August 31, 2008.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to credit risk consist of cash and cash equivalents and the cash and cash equivalents held in
trust. The Company’s policy is to limit the amount of credit exposure to any one financial institution and place investments with financial institutions evaluated
as being creditworthy, or in short-term money market funds which are exposed to minimal interest rate and credit risk.

Income Taxes

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in the Company’s
financial statements or tax returns. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial statement
carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect in the years in which the differences are expected to reverse.

Income/Loss Per Common Share

Basic income/loss per share excludes dilution and is computed by dividing the income/loss available to common stockholders by the weighted average
common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue
common stock were exercised or redeemed for common stock or resuited in the issuance of common stock that then shared in the eamnings of the entity. At
August 31, 2008, there were no such potentially dilutive securities. Therefore, basic and diluted income/loss per share were the same for the year ended
August 31, 2008 for the shares subject to conversion.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair values of the Company’s assets and liabilities that qualify as financial instruments under SFAS No. 107 “Disclosures about Fair Value of
Financial Instruments,” approximate their carrying amounts presented in the balance sheet at August 31, 2008 and August 31, 2007.

The Company accounts for derivative instruments, if any, in accordance with SFAS No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities.” as amended, (“SFAS 133”) which establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“Statement 157”). Statement 157 provides guidance for using fair
value to measure assets and liabilities. This statement clarifies the principle that fair value should be based on the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability. Statement 157 establishes a fair value hierarchy, giving the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets and the lowest
priority to unobservable data. Statement 157 applies whenever other standards require assets or liabilities to be measured at fair value. This statement is effective
in fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. In February 2008, the FASB provided a one year deferral for the implementation of Statement 157 for
non-financial assets and liabilities recognized or disclosed at fair value on a non-recurring basis. The Company believes that the adoption of Statement 157 will
not have a significant effect on the Company’s financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (“Statement 159).
Statement 159 provides a “Fair Value Option” under which a company may irrevocably elect fair value as the initial and subsequent measurement attribute for
certain financial assets and liabilities. Statement 159 will be available on contract-by-contract basis with changes in fair values recognized in earnings as those
changes occur. Statement 159 is effective for fiscal years after November 15, 2007. Statement 159 also allows early adoption provided the entity also adopts the
requirements of Statement 157. The Company does not believe the adoption of Statement 159 will have a material impact, if any, on its financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141 (revised 2007), Business Combinations, (“SFAS 141(R)”). Statement 141(R) retains the fundamental
requirements of the original pronouncement requiring that the purchase method be used for all business combinations, but also provides revised guidance for
recognizing and measuring identifiable assets and goodwill acquired and liabilities assumed arising from contingencies, the capitalization of in-process research
and development at fair value, and the expensing of acquisition-related costs as incurred. Statement 141(R) is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2008. In the event that the Company completes acquisitions subsequent to its adoption of Statement 141 (R), the application of its provisions will
likely have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations, although the Company is not currently able to estimate that impact.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51
(“Statement 160”). Statement 160 requires that ownership interests in subsidiaries held by parties other than the parent, and the amount of consolidated net
income, be clearly identified, labeled and presented in the consolidated financial statements. It also requires once a subsidiary is deconsolidated, any retained
noncontrolling equity investment in the former subsidiary be initially measured at fair value. Sufficient disclosures are required to clearly identify and distinguish
between the interests of the parent and the interests of the noncontrolling owners. It is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and requires
retroactive adoption of the presentation and disclosure requirements for existing minority interests. All other requirements are applied prospectively. The
Company does not expect the adoption of Statement 160 to have a material impact on its financial condition or results of operations.

The Company does not believe that any other recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting standards if currently adopted would have a material effect
on the accompanying financial statements.

NOTE 3—COMMITMENTS
Administrative Services Agreement

The Company utilizes certain administrative, technological and secretarial services, as well as certain limited office space provided by United Refining,
Inc., its Sponsor. The Sponsor has agreed that, until the
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acquisition of a target business by the Company, it will make such services available to the Company, as may be required by the Company from time to time. The
Company has agreed to pay United Refining, Inc. $7,500 per month for such services commencing December 11, 2007 and terminating upon the earlier of the
date the Company consummates a Business Combination or dissolves and liquidates in accordance with its amended and restated certificate of incorporation. The
Company has paid the Sponsor $65,178 through August 31, 2008 for these costs.

Underwriting Agreement

In connection with the Offering, the Company entered into an underwriting agreement (the “Underwriting Agreement”) with Deutsche Bank Securities
Inc. and Maxim Group LLC, the representatives of the underwriters in the Offering (the “Underwriters™).

Pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, the Company is obligated to the Underwriters for certain fees and expenses related to the Offering, including
underwriting discounts and commissions of $31,500,000, of which $15,750,000 has been paid at the closing of the Offering and $15,750,000 has been deferred
upon the consummation of a Business Combination. The deferred discount can be reduced up to $6,299,999 if up to one share less then 40% of the aggregate
number of shares owned by all Public Stockholders seek redemption.

NOTE 4-—COMMON AND PREFERRED STOCK, SPONSOR WARRANTS AND INSIDER WARRANTS

On December 17, 2007, the Company consummated the offering of 45,000,000 units (“Units™) of its securities, each Unit consisting of one share of
common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, and one warrant (“Warrant™) to purchase one share of Common Stock, pursuant to the registration statement on
Form S-1, as amended. The Units were sold at a public offering price of $10.00 per Unit, generating gross proceeds of $450,000,000.

a)  Common and Preferred Stock

The Company was incorporated in Delaware on June 25, 2007 and has the authority to issue 150,000,000 shares of common stock having a par value of
$.0001 per share and 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock having a par value of $.0001 per share. Concurrent with its incorporation, the Company entered into a
securities subscription agreement with its Sponsor, whereby the Sponsor purchased 12,937,500 shares of common stock of the Company for $25,000 in cash.

As of August 31, 2008, there are 30,650,000 authorized but unissued shares of our common stock available for issuance (after appropriate reservation for
the issuance of shares upon full exercise of our outstanding warrants) and all of the 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock available for issuance.

b)  Sponsor Warrants

On November 30, 2007, the Company issued 2,500,000 Sponsor Warrants to its Sponsor, exercisable at an initial purchase price of $12.50 per share
effective on December 11, 2007 and expiring on December 11, 2012. These warrants and the shares purchasable hereunder constitute “restricted securities”
under federal securities laws and applicable regulations and may not be resold or transferred without registration under the Securities Act of 1933. The grant of
the warrants to our Sponsor is recorded as compensation expense in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 123(R) and was valued
using the Black-Scholes model, Accordingly, $3,980,000 is recorded as compensation expense in the Company’s Statements of Operations.
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UNITED REFINING ENERGY CORP.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

¢)  Insider Warrants

On December 10, 2007, our Sponsor purchased 15,600,000 common stock warrants (“Insider Warrants™) from the Company at a price of $1.00 per warrant
in a private placement pursuant to Regulation D of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Proceeds from the sale of the Insider Warrants of $15,600,000 were
placed in the Trust Account. The Insider Warrants are identical to those sold in the Offering except that none of the Insider Warrants are transferable or salable
until after the Company completes a Business Combination, are not subject to redemption if held by our Sponsor or its permitted assigns and may be exercised on
a “cashless” basis at any time after they become excrcisable if held by our Sponsor or its permitted assigns. The holder of Insider Warrants does not have any
right to any liquidation distributions with respect to the shares underlying such Insider Warrants in the event we fail to consummate a Business Combination, in
which event the Insider Warrants will expire worthless.

As of August 31, 2008, there are 63,100,000 warrants outstanding. Each warrant, excluding the Sponsor Warrants, will be exercisable for one share of
common stock at an exercise price of $7.00 per share, while the Sponsor Warrants will be exercisable for one share of common stock at the price of $12.50 per
share. None of the warrants may be exercised until after consummation of our Business Combination and the funding in the trust account disbursed. The warrant
exercise price will be paid directly to the Company and not placed in the trust account.

NOTE 5—INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes for the year ended August 31, 2008, as well as for the period June 25, 2007 (inception) through August 31, 2008, consists
of current federal tax of $2,770,000, and a deferred tax benefit of $268,000. There is no provision for income taxes required for the period June 25, 2007
(inception) through August 31, 2007.

The Company’s effective tax rate does not approximate the federal statutory rate due to compensation which is not deductible for tax purposes. No
provision for state and local income taxes has been made since the Company was formed as a vehicle to affect a Business Combination and, as a result, does not
conduct operations and is not engaged in a trade or business in any state. The Company is incorporated in Delaware and authorized to do business in New York
and accordingly is subject to franchise taxes. Delaware and New York franchise tax expense of $16,661 (816,511 Delaware and $150 New York) for the year
ended August 31, 2008 as well as the period June 25, 2007 (inception) through August 31, 2008 are included as part of formation and operating costs in the
accompanying statement of operation.
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UNITED REFINING ENERGY CORP.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
NOTE 6—SUMMARIZED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2008

For the

Ist Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
Period From
June 25, 2007
(Inception) to
August 31, 2007
Interestincome 2 : ; ] — [ 7 3319845 | 2576260 | 22685650 | =]
Compensation expense to sponsor 3,980,000 — — —
[Formation'and operating costs ' e TE T =R 130038 [ 530,080 134,842 | 2,065, ]
Provision for income taxes — 1,128,800 647,367 725,833 —
Net income (loss) for the period ~ E ST T (3980000)] [ 20500100 | 1398809 [ 1407975 | (2,065)]
Accretion of Trust Account relating to common stock subject to possible
conversion — 820,444 559,524 563,189 —
Net income (foss) attributable to common shareholders: 1 1 (39800000 I 12306660 [ 839285 [ .844786 | (2.065)
Weighted number of shares outstanding, basic and dl]uted 12,937,500 33 502, 748 38,250,001 38,250,001 12,937,500
Net.income per share, basicand diluted = Sl 03 o .0.0.54:f Ee 00 T2l ] -0.001]
Number of shares outstanding subject to possnble conversion — 17 999 999 17,999,999 17,999,999 —
INet income per share subject fo possible conversion, basic and dilited |~ = — 1 & 008l 003 [ 003 ] ==l
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None.

ITEM 9A(T). CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of August 31, 2008. The term “disclosure controls and procedures,” as defined in Rules 13a~15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act, means
controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or
submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure
controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the
reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the company’s management, including its principal executive and
principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no
matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment in
evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Based on the evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of August 31,
2008, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that, as of such date, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the
reasonable assurance level.

No change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) occurred during the year
ended August 31, 2008 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

This annual report does not include a report of management’s assessment regarding internal control over financial reporting or an attestation report of the
company’s registered public accounting firm due to a transition period established by rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission for newly public

companies.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION.
None.
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ITEM 10.  DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

Our current directors and executive officers are as follows:

Name Age Pasition

John A. Catsimatidis 60  Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer
Myron L. Turfitt 56 President and Director

James E. Murphy 63  Chief Financial Officer

John R. Wagner . 49  Secretary

Theodore P. Nikolis 54  Director

Michael Bilirakis : 78  Director

John A. Catsimatidis has been our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since inception. Mr. Catsimatidis is the Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer of Red Apple Group, Inc., a diversified holding company with interests in the energy industry, supermarkets, airplanes and finance.
Mr. Catsimatidis founded Red Apple Supermarkets, a single neighborhood grocery store in 1968. Through internal growth and a series of acquisitions,
Mr. Catsimatidis has grown the operation, under the brand name “Gristedes,” into Manhattan’s largest supermarket chain. He is currently the Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of United Refining Company, an integrated refiner and marketer of petroleum products in western New York and
northwestern Pennsylvania, and has held those positions since February 1986, when his wholly-owned company, United Acquisition Corp., purchased United
Refining, Inc., United Refining Company’s parent and our sponsor, while United Refining Company was in bankruptcy proceedings. Thereafter,
Mr. Catsimatidis negotiated a plan of reorganization, paying creditors 100% of proven claims plus post-petition interest, and enabling United Refining Company
to emerge from bankruptcy. For the fiscal year ended August 31, 2008, United Refining Company generated net sales in excess of $3.208 billion. United
Refining Company, which celebrated its 100th anniversary in 2002, also operates approximately 371 gas stations and convenience stores. While at United
Refining Company, Mr. Catsimatidis has also overseen its acquisition of Country Fair, which has 73 retail locations and the increase of the refinery’s output from
65,000 barrels per day, or bpd, to 70,000 bpd. Mr. Catsimatidis has also acquired a large portfolio of commercial real estate and via R.A. Real Estate, Inc., a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Catsimatidis, is currently engaged in a $500 million commercial and residential development project in Brooklyn, New York.
Mr. Catsimatidis has also been involved in the airlingl industry since the early 1970s. His holdings in aviation have included owning commercial aircraft and, at
one time, he controlled Capitol Airlines, then the 11 largest commercial airline in the United States.

Myron L. Turfitt has been our President and Director since inception. He is currently President and Chief Operating Officer of United Refining
Company, and has held these positions since September 1996. Mr. Turfitt began his career at United Refining Company in July 1981 as Vice
President—Accounting and Administration, a position he held until August 1983. Beginning in August 1983, Mr. Turfitt became Senior Vice President-Finance
of United Refining Company until June 1987, when he was made Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President. He held those positions until September
1996, when he took over his current position of President and Chief Operating Officer of United Refining Company. Mr. Turfitt is a CPA with over 30 years of
financial and operations experience in all phases of the petroleum business including exploration and production, refining and retail marketing. His experience
covers both fully-integrated major oil companies and large independents.

James E. Murphy has been Chief Financial Officer since July 2007. Since January 1997, Mr. Murphy has served as Chief Financial Officer of United
Refining Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of our sponsor, United Refining, Inc. He previously held the position of Vice President-Finance from April 1995
to December 1996 and Director of Internal Auditing from May 1982 to April 1986. Additionally, Mr. Murphy has held other accounting and internal auditing
positions during his career with United Refining Company. Mr. Murphy is a CPA and prior to joining us he had over 15 years experience in accounting and
auditing with banking, public accounting and manufacturing companies.
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John R. Wagner has been our Secretary since July 2007. Since August 1997, Mr. Wagner has served as Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary to

each of United Acquisition Corp., parent of our sponsor, United Refining, Inc. and to its subsidiary United Refining Company. Prior to joining the United
Refining family of companies, Mr. Wagner served as Counsel to Dollar Bank, F.S.B. from 1988 to August 1997.

Theodore P. Nikolis has been a director of our company since July 2007. Since October 2005, Mr. Nikolis has served as Senior Counsel to The Royal
Bank of Scotland (L.SE: RBS). As Senior Counsel, Mr. Nikolis oversees and manages the legal aspects of the Bank’s New York lending transactions, including
with respect to regulatory and compliance matters. In addition, Mr. Nikolis manages the legacy real estate properties of National Westminster Bank plc, a United
Kingdom based bank which had approximately £9.8 billion of revenue in fiscal 2006. Approximately 20 years ago, Mr. Nikolis began his involvement in the
electric power sector as a project finance attorney at the firm of Chadbourne & Parke. From January 2000 to October 2005, Mr. Nikolis was a principal of
Nikolis & Associates, LL.C, a consulting firm focused on distressed debt providing turnaround strategies, debt restructuring, collateral sales and bankruptcy
options for the maximization of asset and/or collateral value in distressed situations. From January 2003 to October 2005, Mr. Nikolis was also a member of
Odysseus Energy Inc., a private equity group targeting distressed electric generating facilities. From March 1998 to January 2000, Mr. Nikolis managed the
closure of Coutts & Co.’s New York office, the private banking subsidiary of NatWest. Between 1993 and 1998 he was Senior Vice President and Counsel for
NatWest Markets, the former investment banking division of NatWest Plc., where he created and managed the unit responsible for managing corporate and
project finance restructuring, problem loans, and all bankruptcy proceedings. From 1991 to 1993, Mr. Nikolis held a similar position with NatWest, USA where,
inter alia, he managed the short term operation, financial restructuring and ultimate liquidation of over $1 billion of distressed co-generation and independent
power production facilities.

Michael Bilirakis has been a director of our company since September 2007. In January 2007, Mr. Bilirakis returned to the practice of law, which he
previously engaged in from 1968 to 1984, and established the Bilirakis Law Group. From January 1983 until his retirement in January 2007, Mr. Bilirakis served
in the U.S. House of Representatives as a representative of the Ninth District of Florida. During his tenure, Mr. Bilirakis served on the House Energy and
Commerce Committee for 22 years. From 1992 to 2006, Mr. Bilirakis served as a member of the North Atlantic Treaty Organization (NATO) Parliamentary
Assembly, which brings together members of the U.S. Congress with members of parliaments thronghout NATO to facilitate awareness and understanding of
key security issues and to provide transparency of NATO policies.

Our board of directors is divided into two classes with only one class of directors being elected in each year and each class serving a two-year term. Our
Bylaws provide that the number of directors constituting our board of directors shall not be less than one or more than nine. As of August 31, 2008 we had four
directors. The term of office of the first class of directors, consisting of Messrs. Nikolis and Bilirakis will expire at our first annual meeting of stockholders
following the completion of the Company’s initial public offering. The term of office of the second class of directors, consisting of Messrs. Catsimatidis and
Turfitt, will expire at the second annual meeting following the completion of the Company’s initial public offering.

'

Director Independence

Our board of directors has determined that Theodore P. Nikolis and Michael Bilirakis are “independent directors” as such term is defined in the rules of the
NYSE Alternext US and Rule 10A-3 of the Exchange Act. We intend to locate and appoint at least one additional independent director to serve on the board of
directors and one additional independent director to serve on each of our audit committee and nominating committee within one year of the completion of our
initial public offering.

Audit Committee

Our audit committee consists of Theodore P. Nikolis and Michael Bilirakis. As required by the rules of the NYSE Alternext US, each of the members of
our audit committee is financially literate. We are currently
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conducting a search for an additional member for our board of directors. We will identify the director we consider to qualify as an “audit committee financial
expert” and “financially sophisticated” as defined under SEC and NYSE Alternext US rules, respectively, within one year of the completion of our initial public

offering.

Code of Ethics

We adopted a code of ethics that applies to our officers, directors and employees. We have filed copies of our code of ethics as an exhibit to the
registration statement in connection with our initial public offering. You will be able to review these documents by accessing our public filings at the SEC’s Web
site at www.sec.gov.

Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act

Section 16(a) (“Section 16(a)”) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), requires executive officers and directors and
persons who beneficially own more than ten percent (10%) of the Company’s common stock to file initial reports of ownership on Form 3 and reports of changes
in ownership on Form 4 with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) and any national securities exchange on which the Company’s
securities are registered.

Based solely on a review of the copies of such forms furnished to the Company and written representations from the executive officers and directors, the
Company believes that all Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable to its executive officers, directors and greater than ten per cent (10%) beneficial owners
were satisfied during 2008, except as follows: Theodore P. Nikolis filed a Form 4 to report the acquisition of shares of common stock in the open market, which
was late.

ITEM11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

No compensation of any kind, including finder’s and consulting fees, will be paid by us to any of our executive officers, directors, or any of their
respective affiliates, for services rendered prior to or in connection with a business combination. However, we will reimburse such persons for any out-of-pocket
expenses incurred in connection with activities on our behalf, such as identifying potential target businesses and performing due diligence on suitable business
combinations, although they will not be reimbursed for any out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them to the extent that such expenses exceed the amount not held
in the trust account unless the business combination is consummated. As of August 31, 2008, an aggregate of $11,159 has been reimbursed to our executive
officers, directors, and their respective affiliates for such expenses. Of such amount, $3,026 was paid to our officers and directors.

After an initial business combination, directors or executive officers who remain with us may be paid consulting, management or other fees from the
combined company with any and all amounts being fully disclosed to stockholders, to the extent then known, in the proxy solicitation materials furnished to our
stockholders. It is unlikely the amount of such compensation will be known at the time of a stockholder meeting held to consider an initial business combination,
as it will be up to the directors of the post-combination business to determine executive officer and director compensation. We do not intend to take any action to
ensure that members of our management team maintain their positions with us after the consummation of our initial business combination, although it is possible
that some or all of our executive officers and directors may negotiate employment or consulting arrangements to remain with the company after the initial
business combination. The existence or terms of any such employment or consulting arrangements to retain their positions with the company may influence our
management’s motivation in identifying or selecting a target business but we do not believe that the ability of our management to remain with the company after
the consummation of an initial business combination will be a determining factor in our decision to proceed with any potential business combination.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation
None.
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Compensation Committee Report and Compensation Discussion and Analysis

We have not included a compensation committee report and a compensation discussion and analysis because members of our management team have not

received any cash or other compensation for services rendered to us during the year ended August 31, 2008.

ITEM12.  SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER

MATTERS.
The following information, including stock ownership, is submitted with respect to our directors, each executive officer that would be named in a

“Summary Compensation Table,” for all executive officers and directors as a group, and, based solely on Schedule 13D and 13G filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, for each holder of more than five percent of our common stock as of August 31, 2008.

Unless otherwise indicated, we believe that all persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of common

stock beneficially owned by them.

D
@
3

C)

&)

Amount and nature of

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner (1) beneficial ownership (2) Percent of Class
HBK Invesments TP (3) . - e e L e Asss3000 e B0
Platinum Partners Value Arbitrage Fund LP (4) 4,455,000 7.92%
QVT Einancial LP (5) : : . T 3 [ T4.000,000 ] T 1)
Brian Taylor (6) 3,500,000 6.22%
United Refining Inc. (7). ' e e o T T T os0 0000 I 20.00%)
John A. Catsimatidis (7) 11,250,000

James E. Murphy : e | e
Theodore P. Nikolis 2,000 *
Michael Bilirakis. . - .o o | . e : L e T
All Directors and Officers as a Group (6 persons) 11,252,000 20.0%

less than one percent (1%).
Unless otherwise indicated, the business address of each of the stockholders is 823 Eleventh Avenue, New York, New York 10019.
Unless otherwise indicated, all ownership is direct beneficial ownership.

HBP Investments L.P. has delegated discretion to vote and dispose of our common stock it holds to HBK Services LLC. In addition, voting power and
dispositive power is share with KBK Partners IT L.P,, HBK Management LLC and HBK Master Fund L.P. The address for HBK Investments L.P., and the
other entities named herein, is 300 Crescent Court, Suite 700, Dallas, Texas 75201.

The address for Platinum Partners Value Arbitrage Fund LP is 152 West 57 th Street, 54" F Toor, New York, New York 10019.

QVT Financial LP (“QVT Financial™) is the investment manager for QVT Fund LP (the “F und”), which beneficially owns 3,303,315 shares of common
stock, and for Quintessence Fund L.P. (“Quintessence™), which beneficially owns 360,725 shares of common stock. QVT Financial is also the investment
manager for a separate discretionary account managed for Deutsche Bank AG (the “Separate Account™), which holds 335,960 shares of common stock.
QVT Financial has the power to direct the vote and disposition of the common stock held by the Fund, Quintessence and the Separate Account.
Accordingly, QVT Financial may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of an aggregate amount of 4,000,000 shares of common stock, consisting of the
shares owned by the Fund and Quintessence and the shares held in the Separate Account. QVT Financial GP LLC, as General Partner of QVT Financial,
may be deemed to beneficially own the same number of shares of common stock reported by QVT Financial. QVT Associates GP LLC, as General Partner
of the Fund and Quintessence, may be deemed to beneficially own the aggregate number of shares of common stock owned by the Fund and Quintessence,
and accordingly, QVT Associates GP LLC may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of an aggregate amount of 3,664,040 shares of common stock. Each
of
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QVT Financial and QVT Financial GP LLC disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of common stock owned by the Fund and Quintessence and held
in the Separate Account. QVT Associates GP LLC disclaims beneficial ownership of all shares of common stock owned by the Fund and Quintessence,
except to the extent of its pecuniary interest therein. The address for QVT Financial LP, QVT Financial GP LLC and QVT Associates GPLLC is 1177
Avenue of the Americas, 9th Floor, New York, New York 10036. The address for QVT Fund LP is Walkers SPV, Walkers House, Mary Street, George
Town, Grand Cayman, KY1 9001 Cayman Islands.

(6)  Brian Taylor shares voting and dispositive power over these shares of common stock with Pine River Capital Management L.P. and Nisswa Master
Fund Ltd. The address for each party is 601 Carlson Parkway, Suite 330, Minnetonka, Minnesota 55305.

(7)  Mr. Catsimatidis may be deemed to beneficially own the shares owned by United Refining, Inc by virtue of his indirect ownership and control of United
Refining, Inc.

Al of the shares of common stock outstanding prior to the effective date of the registration statement relating to our initial public offering were placed in
escrow with Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as escrow agent, and will be so held until the earliest of:

. one year following the consummation of a business combination and three years from the date of the prospectus relating to our initial public
offering, but in no event less than one year from the consummation of a business combination; and

. the consummation of a liquidation, merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction which results in all of our stockholders having the right to
exchange their shares of common stock for cash, securities or other property subsequent to our consummating a business combination with a target
business.

During the escrow period, the holders of these shares of common stock will not be able to sell or transfer their securities except in certain limited
circumstances (such as transfers to relatives and trusts for estate planning purposes, while remaining in escrow), but will retain all other rights as our
stockholders, including, without limitation, the right to vote their shares of common stock and the right to receive cash dividends, if declared. If dividends are
declared and payable in shares of common stock, such dividends will also be placed in escrow. If we are unable to effect a business combination and liquidate,
the holders will not receive any portion of the liquidation proceeds with respect to common stock owned by them prior to our initial public offering.

ITEM13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

On June 25, 2007, we issued 10,000,000 shares of our common stock to our sponsor, United Refining, Inc., which is indirectly owned by John A.
Catsimatidis, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, for an aggregate amount of $25,000 in cash, at a purchase price of approximately $0.0025 per share. On
September 6, 2007, we effected a .625-for-one reverse stock split effectively increasing the per share price to $0.004 per share. On November 29, 2007, we
announced a 2.3-for-one stock dividend effectively decreasing the per share price to $0.0019.

On December 11, 2007 United Refining, Inc. agreed to forfeit 1,437,500 shares of our common stock. F inally, on January 15, 2008, the underwriters of the
Company’s initial public offering informed the Company that they would exercise no part of their Over-allotment Option. In accordance with its contractual
obligations, our Sponsor forfeited an additional 1,687,500 shares of our Common Stock.

United Refining, Inc. purchased in a private placement transaction 15,600,000 warrants from us at a price of $1.00 per warrant. These insider warrants
have terms and provisions that are identical to the warrants included in the units sold in our initial public offering, respectively, except that: (i) the insider
warrants were purchased pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act and will become freely tradable only after they are
registered pursuant to a registration rights agreement signed on the date of the prospectus
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relating to our initial public offering, (ii) the insider warrants are nonredeemable so long as they are held by our sponsor or its permitted assigns and (iii) the
insider warrants are exercisable (a) on a “cashless” basis at any time after they become exercisable, if held by our sponsor or its permitted assigns and (b) in the
absence of an effective registration statement covering the shares of common stock underlying the warrants. The transfer restriction does not apply to transfers
made pursuant to registration or an exemption that are occasioned by operation of law or for estate planning purposes, while remaining in escrow. The
$15,600,000 purchase price of the insider warrants was added to the proceeds of our initial public offering to be held in the trust account pending our completion
of our initial business combinations. If we do not complete one or more business combinations that meet the criteria described in this prospectus, then the
$15,600,000 purchase price of the insider warrants will become part of the liquidation amount distributed to our public stockholders from our trust account and
the insider warrants will become worthless.

On November 30, 2007, we granted to United Refining, Inc., warrants to purchase up to 2,500,000 shares of our common stock, which we refer to as the
sponsor warrants. Such warrants were granted to the sponsor in order to induce it to increase its investment in the private placement preceding our initial public
offering (and such warrants were delivered upon the closing of the private placement) and were treated as a compensation expense for accounting purposes. The
sponsor warrants are identical to the warrants included in the units sold in our initial public offering, except that: (i) the sponsor warrant are exercisable at $12.50
per share, (ii) the sponsor warrants are nonredeemable so long as they are held by our sponsor or its permitted assigns and (iii) the sponsor warrants expire five
years from the date of the prospectus relating to our initial public offering.

The holders of a majority of: (i) the shares of common stock held by United Refining, Inc., which is indirectly owned by John A, Catsimatidis, our
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and (ii) the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the insider warrants and (iii) the sponsor warrants and the
underlying shares of common stock will be entitled to make up to two demands that we register these securities pursuant to a registration rights agreement signed
on the date of the prospectus relating to our initial public offering. Such holders may elect to exercise these registration rights at any time commencing on or after
the date on which these securities are released from escrow. In addition, these stockholders have certain “piggyback” registration rights with respect to
registration statements filed subsequent to the date on which these securities are released from escrow. We will bear the expenses incurred in connection with the
filing of any such registration statements.

Because the insider warrants and the sponsor warrants were originally issued pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements under the
Securities Act, the holders of these warrants will be able to exercise their warrants even if| at the time of exercise, a prospectus relating to the common stock
issuable upon exercise of such warrants is not current. Our insider warrants and the sponsor warrants will become freely tradable only after they are registered
pursuant to a registration rights agreement to be signed on or before the date of this prospectus.

In order to protect the amounts held in the trust account, our sponsor has agreed to indemnify us for claims of creditors, vendors, service providers and
target businesses that have not executed a valid and binding waiver of their right to seek payment of amounts due to them out of the trust account. In the event
that the proceeds in the trust account are reduced and our sponsor asserts that it is unable to satisfy its obligations or that it has no indemnification obligations
related to a particular claim, our independent directors would determine whether we would take legal action against our sponsor to enforce its indemnification
obligations. While we currently expect that our independent directors would take legal action against our sponsor on our behalf to enforce its indemnification
obligations, it is possible that our independent directors in exercising their business judgment may choose not to do so in a particular instance. If our independent
directors choose not to enforce the indemnification obligations of our sponsor, we cannot assure you that the per-share distribution from the trust account, if we
liquidate, will not be less than $9.97, plus interest then held in the trust account.

United Refining, Inc. loaned an aggregate of $300,000 prior to the consummation of our initial public offering to cover expenses related to the offering,
such as SEC registration fees, NYSE Alternext US listing fees,
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FINRA registration fees and legal and accounting fees and expenses. The loan was payable without interest on the earlier of December 31, 2008 or the

consummation of our initial public offering. We repaid this loan from the proceeds of our initial public offering not placed in trust.

We will reimburse our officers and directors, subject to board approval, for any reasonable out-of-pocket business expenses incurred by them in
connection with certain activities on our behalf such as identifying and investigating possible target businesses and business combinations. There is no limit on
the amount of out-of-pocket expenses reimbursable by us, which will be reviewed only by our board or a court of competent jurisdiction if such reimbursement is
challenged. Accountable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by our officers and directors will not be repaid out of proceeds held in the trust account until these
proceeds are released to us upon the completion of a business combination, provided there are sufficient funds available for reimbursement after such

consummation.

All ongoing and future transactions between us and any of our officers and directors or their respective affiliates, including loans by our officers and
directors, will be on terms believed by us to be no less favorable than are available from unaffiliated third parties. Such transactions or loans, including any
forgiveness of loans, will require prior approval by a majority of our disinterested “independent” directors or the members of our board who do not have an
interest in the transaction, in either case who had access, at our expense, to our attorneys or independent legal counsel. We will not enter into any such transaction
unless our disinterested “independent™ directors determine that the terms of such transaction are no less favorable to us than those that would be available to us
with respect to such a transaction from unaffiliated third parties.

While we do not intend to pursue a business combination with any company that is affiliated with our sponsor, executive officers or directors, we are not
prohibited from pursuing such a transaction. In the event we seek to complete a business combination with such a company, we would obtain an opinion from an
independent investment banking firm which is a member of the FINRA and is reasonably acceptable to the representatives of the underwriters of our initial
public offering, that such a business combination is fair to our stockholders from a financial point of view. Other than with respect to the business combination,
we have not adopted a policy that expressly prohibits our directors, officers, securityholders or affiliates from having a direct or indirect pecuniary interest in any
investment to be acquired or disposed of by us or in any transaction to which we are a party or have an interest. Nor do we have a policy that expressly prohibits
any such persons from engaging for their own account in business activities of the types conducted by us. Accordingly, such parties may have an interest in
certain transactions in which we are involved, and may also compete with us.

Mr. Catsimatidis is deemed to be our “parent” and “promoter,” as these terms are defined under the federal securities laws.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPALACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.

The firm of BDO Seidman LLP (“BDO”) is our independent registered public accounting firm. BDO manages and supervises the audit, and is exclusively
responsible for the opinion rendered in connection with its examination. The following is a summary of fees paid to BDO for services rendered:

Audit Fees

Audit fees for the period from inception to August 31, 2008 related to professional services rendered in connection with our initial public offering
(comprised of various financial statements included in our Registration Statement on Form S-1, including all amendments, and our Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on December 18, 2007), aggregating $232,000; the audit of our financial statements for the period ended August 31, 2008 and the quarterly
review of financial statements included in our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly periods ended November 30, 2007, February 29, 2008 and May 31,

2008 amounted to $64,000.
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Audit-Related Fees

‘We did not receive any audit related fees for the year ended August 31, 2008.

Tax Fees
We received $2,000 of tax services for the year ended August 31, 2008.

All Other Fees
We did not receive products and services provided by BDO, other than those discussed above, for the year ended August 31, 2008.

Pre-Approval Policy

Since our audit committee was not formed until September 2007, the audit committee did not pre-approve the appointment of BDO, although any services
rendered prior to the formation of our audit committee were approved by our board of directors and have since been ratified by our audit committee. On a
going-forward basis, the audit committee will pre-approve all auditing services and permitted non-audit services to be performed for us by BDO, including the
fees and terms thereof (subject to the de minimus exceptions for non-audit services described in the Exchange Act which are approved by the audit committee
prior to the completion of the audit). The audit committee may form and delegate authority to subcommittees of the audit committee consisting of one or more
members when appropriate, including the authority to grant pre-approvals of audit and permitted non-audit services, provided that decisions of such
subcommittee to grant pre-approvals shall be presented to the full audit committee at its next scheduled meeting.
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ITEM 15.

PART IV

EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

(1) Financial Statements.

The following financial statements of United Refining Energy Corp. are included in Item 8:

Page

Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 52

Balance Sheet at August 31, 2008 and 2007 53
Statement of Operations for the Years Ended August 31, 2008, for the Period from June 25. 2007 (inception) to August 31, 2007 and for the Period

from June 25, 2007 (inception) to August 31. 2008 54

Statement of Stockholders® Equity for the Years ended August 31. 2008. for the Period from June 25 2007 (inception) to August 31, 2007 and for the

Period from June 25, 2007 (inception) to August 31, 2008 55
Statement of Cash Flows for the Years Ended August 31, 2008, for the Period from June 25, 2007 (inception) to August 31, 2007 and for the Period

from June 25, 2007 (inception) to August 31, 2008 56

Notes to Financial Statements 57

(2) Financial Statement Schedules.

All schedules are omitted for the reason that the information is included in the financial statements or the notes thereto or that they are not required or are
not applicable.

(3) Exhibits.
Exhibit
No. Exhibit
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Registrant Statement on Form S-1 filed on July 19, 2007)
32 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on December 17, 2007)
33 Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on July 19, 2007 and to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 7, 2008)
4.1 Specimen Unit Certificate
4.2 Specimen Common Stock Certificate
43 Specimen Warrant Certificate
44 Warrant Agreement by and between Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company and the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 17,2007)
4.5* Sponsor Warrant granted to United Refining, Inc.
10.1 Investment Management Trust Agreement by and between Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company and the Registrant (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 17,2007)
10.2 Securities Escrow Agreement by and among the Registrant, Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company and United Refining, Inc. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8- filed on December 17, 2007)
103 Registration Rights Agreement by and between the Registrant and United Refining, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the

Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 17, 2007)
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Exhibit

No.

104

10.5

10.6

-10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11
10.12

10.13

14

31.1*
31.2%
32.1*
32.2%
99.1

99.2

Exhibit
Letter Agreement by and between the Registrant and United Refining, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on December 17, 2007)

Letter Agreement by and between the Registrant and John A. Catsimatidis (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on December 17, 2007)

Letter Agreement by and between the Registrant and Myron L. Turfitt (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on December 17, 2007)

Letter Agreement by and between the Registrant and James E. Murphy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on December 17, 2007)

Letter Agreement by and between the Registrant and John R. Wagner (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on December 17, 2007)

Letter Agreement by and between the Registrant and Theodore P. Nikolis (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on December 17, 2007)

Letter Agreement by and between the Registrant and Michael Bilirakis (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on December 17, 2007)

Administrative Services Agreement by and between the Registrant and United Refining, Inc.

Subscription Agreement, dated December 11, 2008 by and between the Registrant and United Refining, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.11 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 17, 2007)

Right of First Refusal Agreement, dated December 11, 2008, by and among the Registrant, Red Apple Group, Inc., United Acquisition Corp.,
United Refining, Inc. and United Refining Company

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14 to Amendment No. 2 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 filed on October 12, 2007)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Audit Committee Charter (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Amendment No. 2 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1
filed on October 12, 2007)

Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee Charter (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.24 to Amendment No. 2 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on October 12, 2007)

* Filed herewith
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant caused this report to be signed on its behaif by

the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

UNITED REFINING ENERGY CORP.

Dated: December 1, 2008 By: /s/ Myron L. Turfitt
Myron L. Turfitt
President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant
in the capacities on the dates indicated here.

Signature Title Date

/s/ John A. Catsimatidis Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief December 1, 2008
John A. Catsimatidis Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Myron L. Turfitt President and Director December 1, 2008

Myron L. Turfitt

/s/ James E. Murphy Chief Financial Officer December 1, 2008
James E. Murphy (Principal Financial Offficer)
/s/ John R. Wagner Secretary December 1, 2008

John R. Wagner

/s/ Theodore P. Nikolis Director . December 1, 2008
Theodore P. Nikolis

/s/ Michael Bilirakis Director December 1, 2008
Michael Bilirakis
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Exhibit 4.5
WARRANT

Neither these securities nor the securities into which these securities are exercisable have been registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission
or the securities commission of any state in reliance upon an exemption from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities
Act”), and, accordingly, may not be offered for sale, sold or otherwise disposed of except pursuant to an effective registration statement filed under the
Securities Act or pursuant to an exemption from registration under such act and in compliance with applicable state securities or blue sky laws.

WNo. 1

UNITED REFINING ENERGY CORP.
OMMON STOCK WARRANT

This certifies that United Refining, Inc. (“Holder”) is entitled to purchase, subject to the terms and conditions of this Warrant, from United Refining
Energy Corp., a Delaware corporation (the “Company™), TWO MILLION FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND (2,500,000) fully paid and non assessable shares of
the Company’s Common Stock, par value $0.001 per Share (“Common Stock™), in accordance with Section 2 during the period commencing on the effective
date of the Company’s registration statement for its initial public offering and ending at 5:00 p.m. EST, five (5) years from the date of the first closing of the
Offering (the “Expiration Date™), at which time this Warrant will expire and become void unless earlier terminated as provided herein. The shares of Common
Stock of the Company for which this Warrant is exercisable, as adjusted from time to time pursuant to the terms hereof, are hereinafter referred to as the
“Shares.”

1. Exercise Price. The initial purchase price for the Shares shall be $12.50 per share. Such price shall be subject to adjustment pursuant to the terms hereof
(such price, as adjusted from time to time, is hereinafter referred to as the “Exercise Price™).

2. Exercise and Payment. Commencing on the date hereof, this Warrant may be exercised, in whole or in part, from time to time by the Holder, during the
term hereof, by surrender of this Warrant and the Exercise Agreement annexed hereto duly completed and executed by the Holder to the Company at the
principal executive offices of the Company, together with payment in the amount obtained by multiplying the Exercise Price then in effect by the number of
Shares thereby purchased, as designated in the Exercise Agreement. Payment may be in cash, by wire transfer of immediately available funds to an account
specified by the Company or by cashier’s check payable to the order of the Company.

3. Reservation of Shares. The Company hereby agrees that at all times there shall be reserved for issuance and delivery upon exercise of this Warrant such
number of shares of Common Stock or other shares of capital stock of the Company as are from time to time issuable upon exercise of this Warrant. All such
shares shall be duly authorized, and when issued upon such exercise, shall be validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, free and clear of all liens, security
interests, charges and other encumbrances or restrictions on sale and free and clear of all preemptive rights.
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4. Delivery of Stock Certificates. Within a reasonable time after exercise, and in no event more than 7 business days thereafter, in whole or in part, of this
Warrant, the Company shall issue in the name of and deliver to the Holder a certificate or certificates for the number of fully paid and nonassessable shares of
Common Stock which the Holder shall have requested in the Exercise Agreement. If this Warrant is exercised in part, the Company shall deliver to the Holder a
new Warrant for the unexercised portion of this Warrant at the time of delivery of such stock certificate or certificates.

5. No Fractional Shares. No fractional shares or scrip representing fractional shares will be issued upon exercise of this Warrant. If upon any exercise of
this Warrant a fraction of a share results, the Company will pay the Holder the difference between the fair market value of the fractional share and the portion of
the Exercise Price allocable to the fractional share.

6. Charges, Taxes and Expenses. The Company shall pay all transfer taxes or other incidental charges, if any, in connection with the transfer of the Shares
purchased pursuant to the exercise hereof from the Company to the Holder.

7. Loss, Theft, Destruction or Mutilation of Warrant. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to it of the loss, theft, destruction
or mutilation of this Warrant, and in case of loss, theft or destruction, of indemnity or security reasonably satisfactory to the Company, and upon reimbursement
to the Company of all reasonable expenses incidental thereto, and upon surrender and cancellation of this Warrant, if mutilated, the Company will make and
deliver a new Warrant of like tenor and dated as of such cancellation, in lieu of this Warrant.

8. Saturdays, Sundays. Holidays. Etc. If the last or appointed day for the taking of any action or the expiration of any right required or granted herein shall
be a Saturday or a Sunday or shall be a legal holiday, then such action may be taken or such right may be exercised on the next succeeding weekday which is not
a legal holiday.

9. Adjustment of Exercise Price and Number of Shares. The Exercise Price and the number of and kind of securities purchasable upon exercise of this
Warrant shall be subject to adjustment from time to time as follows:

(a)Subdivisions, Combinations and Other Issuances. If the Company shall at any time after the date hereof but prior to the expiration of this
Warrant subdivide its outstanding securities as to which purchase rights under this Warrant exist, by stock split or otherwise, or combine its outstanding securities
as to which purchase rights under this Warrant exist, the number of Shares as to which this Warrant is exercisable as of the date of such subdivision, stock split or
combination shall forthwith be proportionately increased in the case of a subdivision, or proportionately decreased in the case of a combination. Appropriate
adjustments shall also be made to the Exercise Price, but the aggregate purchase price payable for the total number of Shares purchasable under this Warrant as
of such date.

(b)Merger. If at any time after the date hereof there shall be a merger or consolidation of the Company with or into another corporation when the
Company is not the surviving corporation, then lawful provision shall be made so that the Holder shall thereafter be entitled to receive upon exercise of this
Warrant, during the period specified herein and upon payment of the aggregate Exercise Price then in effect, the number of shares or other securities or property
of the successor corporation resulting from such merger or consolidation, which would have been received by Holder for the shares of stock subject to this
Warrant had this Warrant been exercised prior to such merger or consolidation.
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(c)Reclassification, Etc. If at any time after the date hereof there shall be a change or reclassification of the securities as to which purchase rights
under this Warrant exist into the same or a different number of securities of any other class or classes, then the Holder shall thereafter be entitled to receive upon
exercise of this Warrant, during the period specified herein and upon payment of the Exercise Price then in effect, the number of shares or other securities or
property resulting from such change or reclassification, which would have been received by Holder for the shares of stock subject to this Warrant had this
Warrant at such time been exercised.

10. Notice of Adjustments; Notices. Whenever the Exercise Price or number of Shares purchasable hereunder shall be adjusted pursuant to Section 9
hereof, the Company shall execute and deliver to the Holder a certificate setting forth, in reasonable detail, the event requiring the adjustment, the amount of the
adjustment, the method by which such adjustment was calculated and the Exercise Price and number of and kind of securities purchasable hereunder after giving
effect to such adjustment, and shall cause a copy of such certificate to be mailed (by first class mail, postage prepaid) to the Holder.

11. Rights As Stockholder: Notice to Holders. Nothing contained in this Warrant shall be construed as conferring upon the Holder or his or its transferees
the right to vote or to receive dividends or to consent or to receive notice as a shareholder in respect of any meeting of shareholders for the election of directors of
the Company or of any other matter, or any rights whatsoever as shareholders of the Company. The Company shall give notice to the Holder by registered mail if
at any time prior to the expiration or exercise in full of the Warrants, any of the following events shall occur:

(a) dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the Company shall be proposed,

(b) a capital reorganization or reclassification of the Common Stock (other than a subdivision or combination of the outstanding Common Stock and
other than a change in the par value of the Common Stock) or any consolidation or merger of the Company with or into another corporation (other than a
consolidation or merger in which the Company is the continuing corporation and that does not result in any reclassification or change of Common Stock
outstanding) or in the case of any sale or conveyance to another corporation of the property of the Company as an entirety or substantially as an entirety; or

(c) a taking by the Company of a record of the holders of any class of securities for the purpose of determining the holders thereof who are entitled
to receive any dividend (other than a cash dividend) or other distribution, any right to subscribe for, purchase or otherwise acquire any shares of stock of any
class or any other securities or property, or to receive any other rights.

Such giving of notice shall be simultaneous with the giving of notice to holders of Comimon Stock. Such notice shall specify the record date or the date of
closing the stock transfer books, as the case may be. Failure to provide such notice shall not affect the validity of any action taken in connection with such
dividend, distribution or subscription rights, or proposed merger, consolidation, sale, conveyance, dissolution, liquidation or winding up.
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12. Restricted Securities; Registration Rights. The Holder understands that this Warrant and the Shares purchasable hereunder constitute “restricted
securities” under the federal securities laws inasmuch as they are, or will be, acquired from the Company in transactions not involving a public offering and
accordingly may not, under such laws and applicable regulations, be resold or transferred without registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
“Securities Act”) or an applicable exemption from such registration. Unless the Shares are registered in accordance with the requirements of the Securities Act,
the Holder further acknowledges that a securities legend substantially in the form appearing on the first page of this Warrant shall be placed on any Shares issued
to the Holder upon exercise of this Warrant.

The Holder of this Warrant shall be entitled to the registration rights with respect to the Shares as set forth in the Subscription Agreement entered into by
the Company in connection with the purchase of this warrant by the original Holder.

13. Certification of Investment Purpose. Unless a current registration statement under the Securities Act shall be in effect with respect to the securities to
be issued upon exercise of this Warrant, the Holder covenants and agrees that, at the time of exercise hereof, it will deliver to the Company a written certification
executed by the Holder that the securities acquired by him upon exercise hereof are for the account of such Holder and acquired for investment purposes only and
that such securities are not acquired with a view to, or for sale in connection with, any distribution thereof, This Warrant is acquired by the Holder for investment
purposes, and not with a view to, or for sale in connection with, any distribution thereof. The Holder is experienced in business and financial matters and has the
capacity to protect the Holder’s interests. The Holder is an “accredited investor” as defined in Rule 501(a) promulgated under the Securities Act.

14. Market Standoff Period: Agreement. In connection with the initial public offering of the Company’s securities and upon request of the Company or the
underwriters managing such offering of the Company’s securities, each Holder hereby agrees not to sell, make any short sale of, loan, grant any option for the
purchase of, or otherwise dispose of any securities of the Company (other than any disposed of in the registration and those acquired by the Holder in the
registration or thereafter in open market transactions) without the prior written consent of the Company or such underwriters, as the case may be, for such period
of time (not to exceed 180 days) from the effective date of such registration as may be requested by the Company or such managing underwriters and to execute
an agreement reflecting the foregoing as may be requested by the underwriters at the time of the Company’s initial public offering, provided that the Company’s
officers and directors are subject to lock-up provisions of similar terms and conditions.

15. Miscellaneous.
(a)Construction. Unless the context indicates otherwise, the term “Holder” shall include any transferee or transferees of this Warrant, and the term
“Warrant” shall include any and all warrants outstanding pursuant to this Agreement, including those evidenced by a certificate or certificates issued upon
division, exchange or substitution.

(b)Notices. Unless otherwise provided, any notice required or permitted under this Warrant shall be given in writing and shall be deemed
effectively given upon personal delivery to the party to be notified or three (3) days following deposit with the United States Post Office, by registered or
certified mail, postage prepaid and addressed to the party to be notified (or one (1) day following timely deposit with a reputable overnight courier with next day
delivery instructions), or upon confirmation of receipt by the sender of any notice by facsimile transmission, at the address indicated below or at such other
address as such party may designate by ten (10) days’ advance written notice to the other parties.
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To Holder: United Refining, Inc.
823 Eleventh Avenue
New York, New York 10016

To the Company: United Refining Energy Corp.
823 Eleventh Avenue
New York, New York 10016

(c)Governing Law. This Warrant shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of New York.
(d)Entire Agreement. This Warrant, the exhibits and schedules hereto, and the documents referred to herein, constitute the entire agreement and

understanding of the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersede all prior and contemporaneous agreements and understandings,
whether oral or written, between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof.

(e)Binding Effect. This Warrant and the various rights and obligations arising hereunder shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the
Company and its successors and assigns, and Holder and its successors and assigns.

(DWaiver; Consent. This Warrant may not be changed, amended, terminated, augmented, rescinded or discharged (other than by performance), in
whole or in part, except by a writing executed by the parties hereto, and no waiver of any of the provisions or conditions of this Warrant or any of the rights of a
party hereto shall be effective or binding unless such waiver shall be in writing and signed by the party claimed to have given or consented thereto.

(g)Severability. If one or more provisions of this Warrant are held to be unenforceable under applicable law, such provision shall be excluded from
this Warrant and the balance of the Warrant shall be interpreted as if such provision were so excluded and the balance shall be enforceable in accordance with its

terms.
(h)Counterparts. This Warrant may be signed in several counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Agreement to be duly exercised effective as of November 30, 2007.

UNITED REFINING ENERGY CORP.

By: /s/ John A. Catsimatidis
John A. Catsimatidis, Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT A TO WARRANT

NOTICE OF EXERCISE

To:  United Refining Energy Corp. Dated:
Attn: Chief Financial Officer

The undersigned, registered holder of the Warrant to Purchase Common Stock delivered herewith, hereby irrevocably exercises such warrant for, and
purchases thereunder, shares of Common Stock of United Refining Energy Corp., a Delaware corporation, and herewith makes payment of the warrant
price of § for such shares in full.

INVESTOR

Signature:

Print Name:

Address:

Telephone:

Facsimile:
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

1, John A. Catsimatidis, certify that;
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of United Refining Energy Corp. (the “registrant™);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(©) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

((3)] Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: December 1, 2008 Signature: /s/ John A. Catsimatidis
John A. Catsimatidis
Principal Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

1, James E. Murphy, certify that:

1. 1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of United Refining Energy Corp. (the “registrant™);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

(@

®

©

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.
Date: December 1, 2008 Signature: /s/ James E. Murphy

James E. Murphy
Principal Financial Officer

Source: United Refining Ener, 10-K, December 01, 2008



Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
ASADDED BY
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of United Refining Energy Corp. (the “Company™) on Form 10-K for the year ended August 31, 2008, as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report™), I, John A. Catsimatidis, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as added by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. To my knowledge, the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations
of the Company as of and for the period covered by the Report.

Dated: December 1, 2008 By: /s/ John A. Catsimatidis
John A. Catsimatidis
Principal Executive Officer

Source: United Refining Ener, 10-K, December 01, 2008



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
ASADDED BY
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of United Refining Energy Corp. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended August 31, 2008, as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, James E. Murphy, Principal Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as added by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. To my knowledge, the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations
of the Company as of and for the period covered by the Report.

Dated: December 1, 2008 By: _/s/_James E. Murphy
James E. Murphy
Principal Financial Officer

Created by 10KWizard _www.10KWizard.com

Source: United Refining Ener, 10-K, December 01, 2008
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January 30, 2009

Martin Sosland, Esq.

Michael A. Saslaw, Esq.

Weil Gotshal & Manges

200 Crescent Court, Suite 300
Dallas, Texas 75201

Gentlemen:

We appreciate your attempt to reach out to us through our counsel to resolve the
apparent conflict between the management of SEMGroup, LP and its subsidiaries
("Debtor"), certain professionals, and the Management Committee. It is our intention
to overcome these problems through negotiation, but if it is necessary for us to seek
the assistance of the Bankruptcy Court, then that too is an acceptable option.

With response to the content of your letter of January 29, 2009, we think that you
should be aware of the following facts:

1. The resolution of the Management Committee referred to by you was in fact
adopted by the Management Committee and is in effect. While Riverstone's
designees did not sign the written consent, Riverstone did not "exercise its
veto powers" over the resolution; in fact, it does not have any such veto
power except over specifically enumerated actions.

2. Mr. Catsimatidis is not, and never has been, an "active bidder." As a member
of the Management Committee his only current interest is in assisting the
Debtor in adopting a plan of reorganization that will cause the Debtor to
maximize the value of the Debtor’s estate and thereby return the largest
possible recovery for its creditors.

3. With respect to the letter of Terry Ronan and Lisa Donahue dated January 15,
2009 to which you refer, please note the following facts:
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(a)

(b)

©

)

(e)

®

Neither Mr. Catsimatidis nor any undersigned member of the
Management Committee has violated any term of the Confidentiality
Agreement executed on behalf of United Refining Energy Corp. that
he is aware of. If you know of any specific violation, please reveal it
to us.

Neither Mr. Catsimatidis nor any undersigned member of the
Management Committee has contacted any person or entity which has
(to our knowledge) expressed an interest in acquiring SemMaterials,
nor has Mr. Catsimatidis expressed a personal interest in acquiring the
SemMaterials business.

Mr. Catsimatidis' statements to the press were not intended to, and
have not, "chilled" the bidding process. If you know of any specific
facts that prove this allegation of "chilling” please reveal them to us.
We note that the unprecedented collapse of the economy and the
financial markets, and the resultant freeze in acquisition activity and
financing, is not of our doing, but presumably is significantly
affecting potential bidders.

Mr. Catsimatidis has never contacted representatives of SemGroup
Energy Partners, L.P as a "bidder." He has spoken to them as a
member of the Management Committee to help resolve the apparent
inability of the present management of Debtor and its advisors to
work cooperatively with SGLP in the Debtor's best interest.

Mr. Catsimatidis has never made a "premature pronouncement which
gave false hopes to company employees." Although you do not
mention any specifics, we can assure you that Mr. Catsimatidis
statements reflect his belief that the Debtor can be successfully
reorganized and that an important asset of the Debtor is its employees.
He also believes that the continued loss of these employees, and their
feelings of hopelessness about the bankruptcy process, has severely
damaged the value of the assets of the Debtor. He believes that the
employees should have faith in the reorganization process and that
they should continue to work for the company while this process goes
forward.

Mr. Catsimatidis has never misrepresented his authority or the
authority of the Management Committee. If you believe that he has,
then please provide us with specifics. :
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(&)  IfMr. Catsimatidis’ decision to replace Mr. Kivisto and Mr. Wallace
with Management Committee members totally unconnected with the

professionals. We also note that your firm was initially retained by
Mr. Kivisto and his attorney, and yet you continue to represent the
Debtor.

(h) We believe that the bankruptcy process should be transparent to the
public. Senmreory com has been set up to provide €asy access to
information about the bankruptcy to everyone. If the facts revealed in
the webpage make the company's management and professionals
appear in a bad light, then they should attempt to change their conduct
in response, If any of the information contained on the webpage is "a
blatant violation of the UREC CA" please provide us with specific
details of any such purported violation. To our knowledge, all
information on the webpage is otherwise publicly available from the
Tulsa World website and PACER.

We are pleased to hear that the "disinterested fiduciaries" of the Debtor intend to
carry out their duties to the "trye stakeholders." Who are these "disinterested
fiduciaries” and to whom do they report? While the "professionals” continue to

Debtor's management or professionals.

In your letter, Yyou assert that representatives of Kivisto, Ritchie and Catsimatidis
"interests" are not disinterested fiduciaries, Your list excludes Carlyle/Riverstone:
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by the outcome of the Debtor's reorganization. What investigation have you
performed with respect to these potential conflicts?

We wish to make it clear that the only truly disinterested members of the
Management Committee, Messrs. Catsimatidis, Turfitt, Coughlin, Bring and Happy,
intend to exercise their rights and duties as defined by the governing documents of
the General Partner of the parent Debtor and the principles of the U.S. Bankruptcy
Code.

If, ultimately, the interests of the Debtor may be better served by the appointment of
a Trustee that would have no conflicts of interest and would work to obtain a
successful reorganization for the best interests of all constituencies, then we are
certainly open to discussing this option with you and your clients.

Finally, we want to reiterate that Mr. Catsimatidis is only interested in seeking to
reorganize the Debtor for the benefit of its stakeholders. Since you have chosen not
to cooperate with us, we are currently working on the framework of a plan of
reorganization that will be considered first by the Management Committee and then
provided to you. We would appreciate it if you would assist us in obtaining
information from the present management that will help us and our professionals
complete a term sheet with respect to such framework which we anticipate will be
completed soon. Also, Mr. Catsimatidis has instructed his counsel to respond to you
on various legal issues related to this matter.

Very truly yours,

|t ) @@u.cd/t«;/\)

Matthew F. Coughlin, I1I

John A. Catsimatidis

\Miet,: R Do, /

Martin R. Bring N

—

J}|Nelson Ifap‘ﬁyj 6

Myron LY Turfitt
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"Richard J. Parks" To -<Andrew.Swartz@weil.com>
<RJP@Pietragallo.com>

01/15/2009 07:43 AM

cc "Wagner, John" <jwagner@urc.com>
bce

Subject RE: United Refmmg/SemMatena!s

I History: & This message has been forwarded,

Andrew

As discusses on the phone yesterday, we would like to seek a continuance of discovery
as well as all other proceeding deadlines in the adversary action scheduling order to
obtain a 90-120 day continuance of all further deadlines to see where the bankruptcy
goes from here given the involvement of John Catsimatidis in the bankruptcy of Sem
Group. Obviously, if Mr.. Catsimatidis is successful, the adversary action is moot. Given
the relatively early stages of this Bankruptcy, it is our desire not it divert expense and
resources at this time if the company is reorganized and becomes part of the Red
Apple Group. If you are not familiar with the involvement, | have attached a link to an
article about the efforts of Red Apple.

Please let me know as soon as possible so we can get this into Court if we are in
agreement.

http://www.reuters.com/article/innovationNews/idUSTRE4BFONC20081216

Richard J. Parks, Esquire

Pietragallo Gordon Alfano Bosick & Raspanti, LLP
54 Buhl Blvd

Sharon, PA 16146

Office: (724) 981-1397 | Fax: (724) 981-1398
http://www.Pietragallo.com

RIP@Pietragallo.com |BIO

SR & kfs‘s"’**\{’ "

The information contained in this transmission including any attached documentation is privileged and confidential.
It is intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copy of this communication is
strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify Pietragallo Gordon Alfano Bosick
& Raspanti, LLP immediately by replying to this email. Please delete all copies of this message and any attachments
immediately.



From: Andrew.Swartz@weil.com [mailto:Andrew.Swartz@weil.com]
Sent: Wednesday, January 14, 2009 10:54 AM

To: Richard J. Parks

Cc: john.strasburger@weil.com

Subject: RE: United Refining / SemMaterials

I'll have to patch John in, so let us call you. Will you be at your office?

Andrew R. Swartz
Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP
Phone: (713) 546-5168

Fax: (713) 224-9511

"Richard J. Parks" <RJP@Pietragallo.com>
To

01/14/2009 09:52 AM cc
Subject RE: United Refining / SemMaterials

<Andrew.Swartz@weil.com>

Yes. Do | call you?

Richard J. Parks, Esquire

Pietragallo Gordon Alfano Bosick & Raspanti, LLP
54 Buhl Blvd

Sharon, PA 16146

Office: (724) 981-1397 | Fax: (724) 981-1398
http://www.Pietragallo.com
RJIP@Pietragallo.com | BIO

The information contained in this transmission including any attached documentation is privileged and confidential.
It is intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copy of this communication is
strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify Pietragallo Gordon Alfano Bosick
& Raspanti, LLP immediately by replying to this email. Please delete all copies of this message and any attachments

immediately.



From: Andrew.Swartz@weil.com [mailto:Andrew.Swartz@weil.com]
Sent: Wednesday, January 14, 2009 9:51 AM

To: Richard J. Parks

Cc: john.strasburger@weil.com

Subject: RE: United Refining / SemMaterials

John Strasburger and I are available for a call at 3:00 eastern. Does that time work for you?

Andrew R. Swartz
Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP
Phone: (713) 546-5168

Fax: (713) 224-9511

*Richard J. Parks" <RJP@Pietragallo.com>
To

01/13/2009 05:04 PM ce
Subject RE: United Refining / SemMaterials

<Andrew.Swartz@weil.com>

I have tried to call about three people at your office regarding this file as well as your local counsel about
this case. Are you aware that the principal of United Refining is leading a group to buy Sem? Please call
me tomorrow or | will call you in the am so we can discuss these proceedings and working out how to

complete discovery. | have to leave now for a game with my son but | will call you at 10:00 my time 9:00

yours if that is a good time. If not let me know | am pretty open tomorrow except at 11:00 am .

Richard J. Parks, Esquire

Pietragallo Gordon Alfano Bosick & Raspanti, LLP
54 Buhl Blvd

Sharon, PA 16146

Office: (724) 981-1397 | Fax: (724) 981-1398
http://www.Pietragallo.com
RIP@Pietragallo.com | BIO




 PIETRAGALLO

PrE KO

fi A #

The information contained in this transmission including any attached documentation is privileged and confidential.
It is intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copy of this communication is
strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify Pietragallo Gordon Alfano Bosick
& Raspanti, LLP immediately by replying to this email. Please delete all copies of this message and any attachments

immediately.

From: Andrew.Swartz@weil.com [mailto:Andrew.Swartz@weil.com]
Sent: Tuesday, January 13, 2009 5:42 PM

To: Richard J. Parks

Subject: United Refining / SemMaterials

Richard,

In relation to the United Refining/SemMaterials adversary proceeding, we served document requests on
United Refining on December 11, 2008. Copies of the Requests and Notice of Services are attached.
According to the request, United Refining's responses were due on January 9, 2009. My understanding is
that we did not receive responses to our document requests. Please let me know if United Refining

intends to respond. If so, when.

Also, we would like to arrange for the deposition of the individuals named in United Refining's initial
disclosures as "possible witnesses": Charles Topa, Michael Kolos, John Wagner, Ashton Ditka, and
Edward Kline. Please let me know when these individuals are available to be deposed. If United Refining

requires a formal deposition notice, please let me know.

Warm regards,

Andrew R. Swartz

Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP
Phone: (713) 546-5168

Fax: (713) 224-9511

The information contained in this email message is intended only for use of the individual or
entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or the employee or
agent responsible to deliver it to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any
dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this communication in error, please immediately notify us by email
(postmaster@weil.com), and destroy the original message. Thank you.

The information contained in this email message is intended only for use of the individual or
entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or the employee or
agent responsible to deliver it to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any
dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have



received this communication in error, please immediately notify us by email
(postmaster@weil.com), and destroy the original message. Thank you.

The information contained in this email message is intended only for use of the individual or
entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or the employee or
agent responsible to deliver it to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any
dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this communication in error, please immediately notify us by email
(postmaster@weil.com), and destroy the original message. Thank you.





